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NAMES Role on the board
Mr. Marce]MIKFQHIMANA Ag. Chairnerson
| Prof. Senait FISSEHA. Member
Mr. Patrick MARARA SHYAKA. _ Member
Mr. Kephers USENGE _ _ Member
| Ms, Liliane BWAKIRA _ - s 1. Member
1D Vigletie AYINGENEYE . Member
| Mr. Yves GATSIMBANY] Member
| Mr. Alain NDAYISHIMIYE | Member

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1. Background of RSSB-

RSSB law is governed by Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 estdblishing Rwarida Social Security Board-
effective from 16% February 2021. RSSB is categotised as a specialized organ and has a legal

personality, administrative and financial autonomy. The mission of RSSB is to manage and promote

social secutity in Rwanda. The supervising authority ‘of RSSB is the Ministry in charge of finance.

-Responsibilities of RSSB

Reésponsibilities of RSSB are the following;

1. To manage and promaote social security in Rwanda (old -age penswn, survivorship benefits,

nonoccupatlonal invalidity benefits, occupatmnal hazards insurance, maternity' iéave benefits

scherne, health insurance and the long-term saving s¢heme);

To register employers, employees, beneficiaries and voluntary contributors in social secuirity

schemes under its managenient;

To monitor, collect and manage. sacial security conmbutlons,

To conduct audit and inspection to ensure compllance with social security laws;

To pay social security. benefits to-beneficiaries;

To invest in Rwanda or abroad in accordance with relevarit laws;

To contribute to the elaboration of social security policy;

To contribute in design'mg strategies for shelter, adequate nutrition, ‘education; sapport due to loss of

jobs, provision for family and poverty reduction with intention to. achieve social welfare;

To advise the Government on matters relatmg to social security;

0. To establlsh relations and collaborate with other regional or internationial institutions-with similar
mission;

11. To perform such dther duties as may be assigned by Law.

e

1.2.  Supervising authority of RSSB

'RSSB is supervised by the Minis‘tr_y of Finance and Economic Planning,

1.3.  Management organs of RSSB
Management organs of RSSB are the following:

1) Board of Directors;

2} General management.

1.3.1 Board of Directors

The Board of directors is responsible for providing, governance and oversight over the management of
RSSB. The composition of tlie Board of Directors as at 30 June 2024 was as follows:




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

1.3.2 General management.

The day to day running of RSSB is entrusted to the management team headed by the Chief Executive
Officer. He is assisted by a Deputy Chief Executive Officer. Officers who served on the General
Directorate forthe year ended 30t June 2024 were 4s follows:

e

—

NAMES . . .i POSITION Comments. g

Mr. RUGEMANSHURO Regis _ |- Chief Executive Officer i Served cotife 2023/2024
Mrs, Lounise KANYONGA Deputy Chief Executive Offcer ! Served cntire 2023/2024
Mr. Philippe WATRIN . Chief Investment Officer Served cniire 202372024
Dr: HITIMANA Regis Chief Benefits Otficer Served entire 2023/2024
Mr. Lionél NGENDAKURIYO Chief Technalogy Officer Appointed March 2024
Mr. MURINDABIGWI Innocerit | Head of Finance Department Served enfire 2023/2024

— Resigned January 2024

Mr, GASANA KWIZERA Eri¢ . | Head of Investment Peparmant

Mr. RULISA Alexis _Head of CBIII Department 1 Served entire 2023/2024
Ms. MUJAWABEGA Yvonne Head of Pension and Occupational Hazards | Served entire 2023/2024
Dr. UMUTESI Lysette Head of Médicat Deparfment Served entire 2023/2024
Mr. GATERA Aigustin | Head of Long-Term Saving Scheme (Ejo Heza) Setved éntire 2023/2024

1.4.  Registered office

RSSB Building

Plot 1003 Ubumwe Cell,
African Union Boulevard
Kiyovu, Nyarugenge

P O.Box 250/6655 Kigali
Email : Info@rssb.rw
Toll Free line 4044

1.5.  Auditor
The Auditor General

'Rwanda Social Security Board Headquarters

Office of the Auditor General for State Finances

B.P 1020,
Kigali- Rwanda

1.6.  Bankers
Bank of Kigali Limited

P OBox 175

Kigali, Rwanda

1 & M Bank Rwanda Limited’
P O Box 354
Kigali, Rwanda

National Bank of Rwanda
PO Box 531
Kigali, Rwanda

Kimihurura avenue du Lae Muhazi NEC, OAG, RRA Compiex

GT Bank (Rwanda) Limited

P O Box 331
Kigali, Rwanda

Access Bank (Rwanda) Limited

P.O Box 2059
Kigali, Rwanda

Zigama Credit and Saving Society

P O Box 4772
Ki g_'a[i-, Rwanda
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1.6. Bankers — Continued

Bank Populaire du Rwanda Limited

'P O Box 1348
‘Kigali, Rwanda

Ecobank Rwanda Limited
P O Box 3268
Kigali, Rwanda

KCB Rwanda Limited
P O Box 5620
Kigali, Rwanda

Unguka Bank Plc Rwanda
P.O BOX: 6417 Kigali:
Kigali, Rwanda

Letshego Rwanda Limited

P.O. Box 4062

Kigali, Rwanda

'NCBA Bank Rwanda PLC
Kigali Heights, 8th Floor, Boulevard de

IPUmuganda
P.O Box 6774,
Kigali, Rwanda

1.7 Investmient advisors for Ejo Heza

Rwanda National Investment Trust Ltd (RNIT)

Development Bank of Rwanda Limited

P.OBox 1341
Kigali, Rwanda

Cogebangue Limited
P.O. Box 5230
Kigali, Rwanda

Equity Bank Rwanda Limited

P O Box 494
Kigali, Rwanda

AB Bank Rwanda Limited
P.O Box 671,
Kigali, Rwanda

Bank of Africa
P.O. Box 265,
Kigali-Rwanda
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased submit their. report together with the financial statements for the year ended 30

June 2024 which discloses the state of affairs of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB)..

1) RSSB mandate

RSSE wds established and is governed by Law no. 009/202] of 16/02/2021 which replaced Law N
04/2015 of 11/03/2013, law modifying and complementing Law n® 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing

. Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB)-and determining its mission, organization,and functioning.
'RSSB continues to deliver on its-mandate and serves members through the following six (6) schemes:

il Pension
i1}, Occupational Hazards
iil) Medical
iv) CBHI
v) Maternity
vi) Ejo Heza
2) Our Vision, Mission and Core Values
Our Vision
“To envision a comprehensive social ‘security. system that addresses the social sécurity neéds of afl.
Rwandans”

OQur Mission
“To provide high quality social security services, ensure efficient collection, benefits provision,

‘management and investment of members’ funds.”

Our Core (Corporate) Values
In trying to achieve our vision and mission, we-serve with empathy, creativity, integrity, and
determination by following the ICARE principles:

Integrity
Collaboration
Accountability
Respect '
Excellence

'3) Principal activities.
Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/202]1 establishing Rwanda Social Securlty Board requires. RSSB to manage

and promote socigl security in Rwanda and provide health insurance, as defined under two broad
categories below:

i) ‘Social security: Government strategies - aimed at providing to people Iwmg'm Rwanda health
insurance and socjal protection from effects based on lack.or reduction of income due to the

fol lowing, reasons:

Old age. ~

. Death.
Disability.
Occupational hazards.
Sick leave..
Maternity leave.

;hooae ".cr'?ﬂ'

The strategies may also.provide for shelter, adéquate nutrition, education, support due to loss of job,
provision for family and poverty reduction with intention to achieéve social welfare.
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ii) ‘Health insurance: This will cover:
b. Community-based health insurarice scheme,

¢. Medical insurance scheme for public. servants governed by general statutes governing public
servants, by special statutés or by law regulating labour -in Rwanda; Employees in private.
institutions ‘affiliated to the comipulsory health insurafce scheme; and Pensioners who
cotitributed to-the health insurance scheme.

RSSB has responsibility to manage and promote:
i) Social security in Rwanda
‘= Old age pension, survivorship benefits, nonoccupational invalidity benefits.(Pension scheme)
* QOccupational hazards insurance (Occupational Hazards scheme)
»  Mateérnity leave benefits scheme
‘= Long-tétm saving scheme
ii) Health insurance
* Community-based health insurance schetme

= Medical insurance scheme

4) RSSB Autonomy

This-is the first year of operatmns under the new legal framework for RSSB as a special organ. The
Directors have undertaken various reforms to facilitate RSSE to operate as an autatiomous entity as.

-envrsaged under Law no, 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board effective

from 16th February 2021. The Board has approved key policies, procedures and guidelines required to
operationalise Law no.009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board.

5} Strategic reforms

The Bosrd coritinues to prioritise implementation of reforms.defined in the RSSB 2020-2025 strategic
plan. Annual workplans.and budgets as well as performance targets are dll afigned to ensure focused
implementation of strafegic plan activities.to drive the reforms for transformation for RSSB.

6)  Governance and management of RSSB.

Members of the Board and management team that served during the year is listed under section 1.3

‘above..

7)  Restructuring and staffing

The Board completed the inifial activities of the- restructunng process and has created a new structure for
RSSB. The process of staffing commenced during the year. The Chief Executive Officer and Deputy
‘Chief Executive Officer were appointed by Cabinet and approved by. the Senate in August.2022 and
some other members of have been already onboarded. This key activity will continue to ensure that the
approved structure is filied with the required staff.
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8)  Membership of RSSB schenies:

Membership of the different schetnesis as presented below:

i) Membéership Pension and occapational Hazards schemes

.a) Total members ag 4t 3 June:

C(}nlri.butin_ g members (b)

"Pensioners (¢)

Deferred metmbers

b Contributing iembers:
At start of year

Joiners

Léss:

Reietired {with pension ot lumpsum)

Secessions {withdraw/deferred)

At end of year

¢) Penisionérs

At start-ofthe year

éontributing members wha re_lirctl'\viﬂl_pension

Widows or widowers’ pension and orphans becoming payablc

Members who gof. lump sum

Less: Deaths and:other secessionists

Atend of year

i) Membership of the Medical Insurance (RAMA)
Active members

Affiliates

Dependents

Total

iif) Membership of the Community Based Health Insurance
Population coverage
Target pépulation
Active contributors

.Coverage rate

2024
814,945

58,115
1.397.552

721,871
214,647

936,518

6,823
14,750
814,945

40,265
3,728
2,054
3.095

59,142

2024
233,383
468.462
701845

2024
12,593,425
11,064.239

87.9%

2023’
721,871
50,265
1.217.280

678,713
168368

847,081,

6226
118,984

41,776
2,774
2,808

34352

55,759
6,545
_50.256

2023
385313

2023
12,599,305
11,421,283

90.7%
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iv) Membership-of the Maternity Leave Benefits Scheme

2024 2023
Contribitors- 806,830 714,960
Number of beneficiaries: 3.508 3,737
v} Membership of Ejo Heza Scheme
2024 2023
Contributors. 3,244,483 2,714,612,
Number-of beneficiaries 9,895 4,042
9) RSSB'pl:rforﬁlance'_-and financial position as at 30 June 2024
2024 ) 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Performance during the year
Net surplus from dealings with members 201,939 180,402
Net investment income: 240,141 105,475
Net increase in fund assets 418,048 276,193
Financial position as at 30 June 2024
Total assets 2,482,530 2,059,346
Net assets 2,419,592 2,001,384
10) RSSB investiment portfolio st 30 June 2024
2024 2023
Frw'millions % %geoftotal g ilions
: : asset_s-
Investment. propertics 221,114 8.9% 252,786
Equity investments 724,683 29.2% 610,514
S;’p‘;‘::“;:;:;‘;’;i;’gi;:&i‘ﬁ‘:e?"“& papefs, commercial ) 466 09 56.6% 1,110,187
Total 2,351,870 94.7% 1,976.887

11} Actuarial valuation:

The Board. commissioned .an actuarial valiiation of the Maternity Leave benefit scheme (MLBS). Thé
actuarial valuation was performed by Muhanna and €o. Actuaries AND Consultants on .behalf of the
Board and considered data up to 30 June 2022. The valuation report was-issued on 11 May 2023 whose
results have been. disclosed in these financial statements.

The Directors have relied on the actuarial valuation done in 2020 for three schemes: Pension, Medical and
Occupational Hazards. The Directors are of the view that circumstances and assumptions made have not:
significantly changed to alter the:conclusions and recommendations made in the 2020 actuarial valuation.
The Board will commission another actuarial valuation in‘accordance with company policy.
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12) Going concern

The Directors have made an assessment of RSSB's ability to continue operating as a going concern.
Nothing has come to the Board’s attention to make it doubt RSSB’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board is implementing various reforms and initiatives to improve RSSB capacity,
operational efficiency, portfolio mix and return on investment. There is growth in contributions and total
assets and this trend is expected to continue and improve as more reforms take root. Accordingly,
financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

M‘ ........................ by:

.f-‘"". - p : -~

Mr. Regis RUGEMANSHURO ~ dv/lr,Mﬂ_ﬁEsmMANA Mareel
Chief Executive Officer S T Ag Chairperson — Board of Directors
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2.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements. that' give a true and

fair view of Rwanda. Social Security Board (RSSB) compnsmg the statement of financial

position as at 30 June. 2024, and the statements of comprehenswe income, changes in Member
funds and reserves and cash-flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a summary of significant. accounting policies and other explanatory
notes as set out on pages 12 to 189, in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by. the International Accountmg Standards Board { IFRS Accounting Standards) and in-the
manner required by the provisions. of Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establlsh_mg Rwanda

Social Security Board (RSSB).

The Directors” responsibility includes the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied
upon in the preparation of financial statements, oversesing. and endorsmg the. designing,
implementing: and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether. due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying .appropriate accounting policies; making -accounting
estimates that are reasoriable in the citcumstances. The Direétors are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Board.

The Directors have made an assessmet ofthe ability of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) to
continue as going concern and have no reason to believe that the business will niot be a gmng
concern in the year ahead from the date of this statement.

In our opinion, the financial statéments of Rwanda Social Security Bodrd (RSSB) for the year -
ended 30 June 2024 give a tnie and fair view of the state of financial affairs of Rwanda:Social
Security Board (RSSB). We. further accept responsibility for maintenance of accounting
records that may be relied upon.in the preparation of financial statements and ensuring adequate
system of internal controls to safeguard assets of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB).

11
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3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1. Statemerit of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2024

e

e
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2024 2023
Notes: Frw'millions Frw'millivns
‘Dealings with members
-Contributions 9 388,330 347,599
Benefits paid 10 (186,391) (167,197)
Net additions from dealings with mémbers 265.939 180,402
Returas on investments
Investment income 11 155,628 124,619
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 12 70,748 (17.247)
‘Change i fair value of investmient properties 13 - -
Realized {loss)/gain on disposal of assels- 14 20,269 658
Impaimment losses on financial assets held at. amortized cost 15 (2.540) (575)
Less: investment management expenses 16 {3.964) (:2_,-58 1
Net returns on invesiments 240,141 104,874
Grants 17 6249 14,013
Other income 18 7,095 7,691
Expenditures
Staff costs 19 (12,314) {11,614)
Administiative expenses 20 {9,618, (8436}
Depreciation and amottization charge 21 '(_2;182)_ ('2',206_')
Othier expenses 22 (12,763): (8531}
“Tatal expenses (37,376). (30,787)
‘Net inconte for the year. 418,048 276,193
Other compréhensive income
Revaluation gain on property and equipment {administrative assets) 23 - -
Inerease in net assets for thic year 418,048, 276,193
The notes on pages 17 to 189 form an integral part of these financial statements.
12,
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3.2. Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024

Assets

Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment properties

Investment properties in the process of construction
Assets held for sale

Equity investments

Corporate bonds

Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Commercial papers

Loan and advances to third parties
Mortgage loans

Inventory

Advances to contractors

Dividend and other income receivable
Other assets

Deposits with financial institutions
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Less: Liabilities

Amounts retained on construction contracts
Benefits payable

Other payables

Deferred income

Total liabilities

Net assets available for benefits

Represented by:

Capital

Retained eamings and Accumulated member funds
Revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

Unallocated pension contributions reserve
Statutory reserves

Ejo Heza member Savings

Total reserves and member funds

The financial statements were approved b
signed on its behalfby:

Mr. Regis R MANSH
Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 17 to 189 f

Notes

43
43
43
44

2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
13.258 14,955
1.694 1.732
197173 230.118
23.940 22,668
724.683 610,514
98.256 73,829
573,935 518,686
93,259 64,070
96,959 57,938
81,028 29.936

15 32

250 245
3,034 3.400
9,772 13,423
21,610 22,138
350.251 268,100
193414 127,565
2,482,530 2,059,347
2.644 2,526
39259 37.271
21,035 16,860

. 1.305

62,938 57,962
2,419,592 2,001,385
1,232 1,232
1,155,751 967,819
94982 94,982
32011 (37.837)
2,180 2,154
1,083,805 934,200
48,730 38.835
2,419,592 2,001,385




. Accumulated )
B ‘Oceupational Pension .!.mu_._.wn.. o Unallocated .
Capital hazard. - funds. and Ejo Heza Fair ) pesiion Total
FESErVEs reserves retained nwember valuc  Revaluation contributions
] carnings- funds  reserve réserve Teserve
Frw' Fro' Frw' Frw' Frw' Frw' Frw! Frw'
miflions millions ‘millions millions milliens _ miflions millions rillions i
Asatl July 2022 1,232 75732 727,537 816,494, 27656 20,590 94,982 1964 1,724,998
Prior year adjustment - - . (55 - - - - (55)
‘Netincome for the year - 2,790 128,151 162,499 - (17247 - - 276,193
Net increase in Ejo Heza member savings - - - (11,120) 11,120, - - - -
‘Net increase in Ejo Heza unallocaled member funds - - - 59 - - 59
Revalugtion of property - - - - - - - - -
Reclasification of unallocated pehsion
contributions from other payables to reserves - - - - - - - - -
Additional unallocated pension contributions - - - - - - - 282 282.
Allocation of previously unallocated conleibutions .
during the year : - - - - - - - 93) {93}
As ar 30 June 2023 ) 1,232 78,522 835,678 967,819 38,835 (7837 94,982 2,154 .M.cu..—..w.mm.
Prior ycar adjustment - - - {5). - - - - (5)
Net income for the year - 2,601 147,004 197,695 70,748 - - 418,048
Net increase in Ejo Heza member funds - . - (9,758) 9758 . - - -
Net increase in Ejo Heza unallocatéd member funds = - - 137 137
Revaluation of property u, - - - - - - - -
Reclassification of unallocated pension . _ ) ) . A
contributions: from othier payabies 16 reserves - - -
Additional uhaltocated pension contributions - - - - - - - 162 162
Emcnm:os of previously unallocated .Baiu::..o.%. . ; . _
during the year - - - (135) (135)
As at 30 Junc 2024 1,232 81,123 1,002,682 1,155,751 48,730 32,911 . 94,982 2180 2,419,592
Thenotes on pages. 17 to 189 form an integral part of these financial statements.
14
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3.3. Statement of changes in members’ funds and reserves
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3.4. Statement of cash flows

endnad ]

2024 2023
Erw' Frw'
millions millions
Cash Nows from operating activities: .
Increase in nct assets for the year 418,048 276,193
-Adjusted for:
.Deépreciation and amartization _2__1'32 2,206
Investment income {154,697 (124.619)
g{ea]:zn:d loss on difsp_cffsal of assets {equity’ fny'nsnﬁgnts, PPE, Asscts Held for sale-and (20.279) 657
nvestment properties)
‘Change in fair value of equity invesiments (70,748) 17,247
Change in fair valueof inﬁestmgnt'propenies - -
Unrealised foreign exchange Inss - -
Govemnment grarits (6,249} (14.013)
[mpaitment provision {IFRS 9 ECL) 2,198 575
Adjustment of opening balances 1 54
In-kind expenditure - -
In-kind ibcome = -
Operating income for changes in workiung capital 170,465 158,301
{(Increase)/Decrease in advance to contractors 378 3,051
(Inicreasey/Dérease i other assels 492 {12,174y
(Inérease)Decrzase in amounts due’ffom/(due to) other schemes. - -
{Increase¥Decrease in inventory (6) 31
Increase/{Decrease) in m_e_dical!inatemjfy claims payables 1,988 8,067
Increase/{Decrease} in other pﬂyablés 4,173 {3,053)
Tncrease/{Décrease) in contract retentions 113 1,073
‘Increase/(Decrease in deferred income (1,305) 468
“Increase in unafiocated pension contributions reserve 164 248
Net cash flows [rom operating activities 176,468 156,011
Cash flows used in investing activities;
Dividend income received 20,690 19.497
Rent received 2,725 3,691
‘Ofther interest income recefved (current accounts, call deposit and: mortgage loans) 8,599 8,096
Purchases for investment property under construction (1,272) {10,638)
Purchase of propefty and-equipment (687) (2,715)
Purchase of intangible asset - -
Purchase of investment propertigs (68.270) 9,536
Purchase of equity investments (53.038) (86,948)
Proceeds from disposal &f Equity Tivestments 39,500 3,849
Purchase of Corporite bonds (50:645) (15,500
Receipts from settlement-of Corpérate bonds {Interest and principal) 12,915 7.438
Receipts from Treasury bond - coupor inerest income received. 101,021 63,965
Receipts from Treasury bill maturities ({nterest aid principal) 131,881 94325
Reecipts from Commercial papers. maturitics (principal and interést) 6,000 4,628
TInvesiment in Treasury bonds ' (88;806) {234,684)
Tnvestment in Treasury bills (153,032) (91,808}
Investment in Commercial papers {33{',203)_ 27.324)
Receipts fom'settlement of loans snd advances o third partis 3,247 3,987
Additional loans and advances io third parties during the year {54.508) -
Increase/{Decrease) in mortgages 27 27
15
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED-30 JUNE 2024

3.4. Statement of cash flows continued
‘Placefnent of termi dc_posi_ts during the year
Settlement oftetm deposils duririg the ycar
(Increase)/Decrease in call d_e'_p_csit
Proceeds from disposal

‘Net'eash used in investing acflivities

Cash-flows from financing activities:
Govemment grants

Government: granis refunded

Increase in unidentified member contributions

‘Net eash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July

Cash and eash equivalents at 30 June

The notes on pages 17 to 189 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2024 2023
_'F ™' Fry'
millions millions
{238,231) (160,481)
189,179 198,237
‘54;028 6,365
{116,869) (245,529):
6,249 13,534
6249 13,934
65,849 (75,584)
127,565 203,149
193413 127,565
16
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

4,  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.  Reporting entity
Rwanda Social Security Board was established by Law n® 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishingz' Rwanda

Social Security Board (RSSB) as medified and complemented by Law n° 04/2015 of 11/03/2015 which

was replaced by Law No. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021.

The Board runs the following schemes under one management with each scheme governed by a specific
law:

= Pension and Qccupational hazards scheme

= Medical scheme

= Community Based Health Trisurance {(CBHI) scheme:

= Maternity Leave scheme.

= Long term savings scheme (Ejo Heza) Prime Minister Order No.58 of 4/04/2018 - Determining the

administrator of the Long-term savings scheme appointed RSSB-as the administrator of the Long-term
saving scheme:

RSSB is required to manage and promote social security in Rwanda and provide health insurance, as
defined under two broad categories below:

1) Social secarity in Rwanda
= Old age pension, survivorship benefits, nonoccupational invalidity benefits (Pension scheme)
» Qccupational hazards insurance (Occupational Hazards scheme)
= Maternity leave benefits: scheme
» Long-term saving scheme
2) Health insuraince
» Community-based health insurance schieme

= Medical insurance scheme

2.. Basis of ac’counting

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Board have begn prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IFRS Accounting Standards). These are
separate financial statements and are not consolidated, as would be required by JFRS 10: Consolidated
Financial Statements, in respect of the investees over which the Board exercises control. The directors, in
their judgment believe that despite this deviation, the financial statements provide reliable dnd useful
information to its stakeholders.

Under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10, a parent entity that is-an Investment entity is exempt from consolidation if
that‘entity- meastires-interests in subsidiaries at fair value through profit-or loss (FVTPL). Paragraph 27 of
IFRS 10 requires a parent entity to determine if it is an investment entity. An investment entity is an entity
that:

1} Obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of prov.i'd'ing those investor(s) with
" investment management services;

17
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of accounting (Contined)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

2) Commiits to its investor(s) that.its business purpose-is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
-appreciation, invéstment income, orboth; and '

3) Measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Accordingly, the directors have determined RSSB to be an investment entity as its mandate includes the
management of funds on behalf of contributing members. to ensure the following.

1) ‘Collects and invests funds-contributed by fund members providing investment management services.
over invesiments made on behalf of contributing members with aim-of ensuring that long term fund
obligations to contributing members-are met as and when they fall due,

2) Commits to contributing members to invest funds :solely for returns from. capital appreciation,
investment income or both.

3) And measures the performance of substantially ali of its investments on a fair value basis.

The directors have thus chosen to apply the exemption from consolidation under paragraph:4B of IFRS 10

and to account for RSSE inferests in entities that qualify to be subsidiaries at fair value through profit or

loss.

In addition, under paragraph 18 of 1AS 28, when an investment in an associate or a joint venture is held by,

or is held indirectly through, an entity that is a venture capital organisation, or a mutual fund, unit trust and

similar entities including invesiment-linked insurance funds, the. entlty may elect to measure investments in-

those associates and joint ventures at fair value through prof' it or loss in accordance with [FRS 9. RSSB as

an investment entlty has. elected to measure its associates and joint veatures at fair value. through profit.or

loss. The cdmpanies in which’ the Board has mterestsfshareholdmg_ and a summary of their key financial

data are disclosed in note 28 to these financial statements.

The Board has carefully evaluated the mandatory consolidation requirements under para_graphs IFRS
10.B8SE, IFRS 10.B85C and IFRS 10.B85D to the exemptions under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10 and are
satisfied that these.requirements have been complied with.

b) Basis for measurement )

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except where otherwise mentioned in
the policy notes. Financial assets including equity investments designated at fair value through profit or
loss, investment properties, land and buildings and asséts held for-sale have been measured at fair value.

3. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Rwanda francs (Frw), which js the Boaid’s functional currency
and all values are preseited in millions (‘000,000), except. where otherwise indicated.

18
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD-

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR-THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4. Use of judgements and estimates.

In preparing these financial statéments, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that

-affect the application of the Board’s -accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,

income ‘and expenses: Actual results may differ from these estimates.. Estimates and underlying
assumiptions are reviewed on an- ongoing basis. Revisions to accountitig estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate are revised and in any future périods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have asignificant risk-of ‘causing a material adjustinent to the carrying

-amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are'sum'ma'rised below;

Financial assets measured at amortised. cost

Critical estimates are made by the directors i determinitig the recoverable amount of financial assets: The
carrying amount of financial assets receivables is set out in Note 55(c) - Credit risk., Financial asscts at
amortised cost include corperate bonds, treasury bonds; treasury bills, commercial papers, loans and

advances to third parties, mortgage loans, advances 10 contractars, dividend and other income receivable,
other assets, deposits with financial institutions, Bank balances.

Imivestment Properties

The directors have made assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value of investment property (see
note 7 and note 26)

Property and equipment

The directors have made assumptions and judgements in-estimating fair value of land and'buildings
reported under property and equipment (see note 7 and note 24)

Eq’uity investments

The directors have made assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value of equity investments (see-
note 7 and note 29). ' '

In the process of applying the Branch's accounting policies, management has made judgments in
determining:

= [nvestment entity - T:h_e board has detérmined that it 'is an investment entity as defined in JFRS 10:
Consolidated Financial Statements (see note 2 — Statément of compliance)
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

-ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

.Basis of dccounting (Contirined)

5. Significant_’_ accounting policies

Significant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

a) Members’ funds

The Board is ﬁir_ldcdf through contributions from members and investment income. Contributions are
accounted for.as follows:

(i) Contributions from members

Contributions from employees remitted by the employers are recognized on a cash basis. Contributions due
bt not yet received at the-erid of the finaricial year are not accrued. They are accounted for and récognized
in §ibsequent years. when received. The. conttibutions remitted by employers for Pension, medical and
maternity dre based on the respective laws for pension, medical and matemity schemes. Confributions for-
CBHI are remitted directly by the beneficiaries and from other sources of income as defined by the law.

(i1} Benefit payments to members

Benefits to members are accounted for on an -accrual basis. Benefit payments made but not collected by
members ate written back in the cash book and né liability thergof récogiiized in the financial statements.

(iii)  Actuarial valuation

The available actuarial valuation for the pension, occupational hazards and medical benefit. insurance:
scheines was performed using the financial information of the Board as at 30 June 2020 and incorporated
projections for a 50 year period to 2070.See details in note 53.

The available actuarial valuation for ‘the maternity leave schemie ‘was performed. using the financial:
information of the Board as at 30 June 2022 and incorporated projections for a 50 year period to-2072. The
policy of the Board is to carry out actiiarial valuations every three years. See details in note 143.

The policy of the Board is to-carry out actuarial valuations every three years.

b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to'the Board and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms
of payment. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

(i) Interestincome

For all financial instruments measured at. amortised cost, interest income - or expense is recorded using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or

recelpts through the ‘expected life of the finan¢ial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to-the-
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

(u_) Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right to recéive dividends is established.

(iii} Rental income

Reéntal income from investment properties is recognized in the statement of comprehensive on the straight--
liné basis. over the tetm of the propeity lease,
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)

b) Revenue recognition continued

fiv) Other income

Other income comprises gains less losses related to trading.assets and liabilities and includes gains from
disposal of Board’s assets and:all realised and unrealised foreign exchange differences.

¢) Foreign currencies

Transactions-in foreign curréncies during the year are translated. into Rwanda francs at the exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. at the
reporting date are translated into Rwandan francs at the exchange rate’ ruling at that date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities: denominated in forelgn currencies' that. are measured:at fair vafue are translated to
Rwandan francs at. the-date when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency gains-and losses artsing:
from translation are recognised in-the statement of comprehensive.income for the year.

d} Financial instruments
Financial Assels
i) Classification.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost,; Fair Value through

Other Comprehenswe Income (FVOCI) or Fair Value Through Profit/L.oss (FVTPL).

A financial asset is measured at amortiséd cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at F VTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to fold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

—- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI -on'ly if it meets both.-of the following conditions and is not

designated as.at FVTPL:

~— the asset is held within a business model whose cobjective is achjeved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and ‘selling financial assets; and

— the contractual terins of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

‘On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the RSSE may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCL This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

'All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

‘In addition, on initial recoghition, the RSSB may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise

meets the requirements to be measured at ‘amottised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminhates or significantly reduces.an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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ANNUAL REFORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continiied)
! Significant Accounting Policies (Continuéd)

Financial Instruntents (Continued)

Business model assessment

§ The RSSB makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
_‘! ' portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

—

—— the:stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those-policies in practice. In
s. particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual intetest revenue,

mai'nt_':aining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that.are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the

]

assets;
- — how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the RSSB’s management;
% : —— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that

business modél) and its strategy for how those risks aré' managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated (€.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash. flows collected); and

— the: frequen_cy, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. Howevert, information. about sales activity is not considered
in isolation, but as part of an overall assesstent of how the RSSB’s stated objective for managing
the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are'realised. '

e

B

The RSSB’s business comprises primarily investment in commercial entities for earning dividends,
corporate bonds and government paper (treasury bills and bonds) loans to customers that are héld for
collecting contractual cash flows.

B

Certain ‘debt securities are held by the RSSB in a- separate portfolio for long-term yield. These
securities may be sold, but such salés are not expected to be'more than infrequent. Thé RSSB considérs
that these securities are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets' to collect the
contractual cash flows.

; Certain other debt securities are held by the RSSB in separate portfolios to meet everyday liquidity
: needs. The RSSB seeks to minimise the costs of managing these liquidity needs and therefore actively
! manages the return on the portfolio. That return consists of collecting contractual cash flows as well as

.gains and.losses from the sale.of financial assets, The‘investment strategy often results in. sales-activity
that is significant in. value. The RSSB considers that these financial assets are held within a business

: ‘model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and sefling financial
! -assets,

% -1 Financial assets that are héld for trading or managed and whose performancé is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL. because-t_hey_ are neither 'h_eld to collect contractual cash flows nor
'held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets,

"" Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For-the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial -asset on
‘initial recognition. “Interest’ is defined as consideration for the. time value of money and for the credit
fisk associated with the principal amount outstandmg during a particular period of time and for other
basic ]endmg.nsks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk-and administrative costs), as well as profit margin
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the RSSB considers the contractual terms of -
‘the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial :asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or-amount of contractual cash flows such that it 'would not meet this condition.

In makmg_ the assessment, the RSSB considers:

— cofitingent events that would change the amiount and timing of cash flows;
— leverage features;

— prepayment and extension terms; _ _ _
— terms that timit the RSSB’s.claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and
— features that modify cotsideration of the tilme value of motiey (é.g. periodical. reset of interest

rates).

Equity instruments have contractual cash flows that do not meet the. SPPL criterion. Accordingly, all such
financial assets are-measured at FVTPL unless the FVOCT option is selected.

The Board’s classification of financial assets is summarized below:

Business Model | Business Objective Characteristics Products
Hold to Intent to -originate financial | = Providing. financing  and | Corporate bonds, Treasury
'col_l'ecif assets and hold them to originating assets to earn | bonds,. Treasury  bills,
maturity, collecting  the interest income ‘as a |.commercial papers; loans
contractual ‘cash flows over’ ‘primary income.stream. and advances to ‘third
the term ‘of the instrument “  Performing credit risk | parties, mortgage -loans,
management activities advances to contracto_rs;
*  Costs include funding ! dividend and -other income
ctosts, transacdtion and | receivable, other assets,
impairinent losses deposits  with  financial
institution and Cash and
bank baldances,
Hold to collect | Business  objective met | =  Portfolio held for liguidity | None
and sell through both hold to collect- needs; or where a certain
and by selling financial assets interest yicld profile -is
maintained;- or that are
normally  teébalanced to
achieve  miatching  of
duration of assets and
liabilities.
. Income streaiiis come from
interest income, fair value
changes and impairment
losses
Fair value { All othier business objectives, | ®  Assets held for trading None’
through profit or { including  trading  and | »  Performance of portfolio is
Toss. managing financial assets on evaluated on a- fair value
fair value basis basis
»  Income streams are from
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Business Model | Business Objective Characteristics | Produets

fair  value changes or
trading gains and losses

_Fair value | Objective is achieved by both | »  Hold the financial asset for | None
through other | collecting <contractual cash. the longer term

comprehensive flows. and selling financial | =  It'is not held for trading

income assets. 8 An irrevocable election’ is

made at initial acquisition

Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to. their initial recognition, except in the period after the
RSSB changes its-business model for managing financial assefs.

i) Derecognition

‘The RSSB derecognises a financial asset when the contractual ri ights to the cash flows from the financial

asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownershiip of the financial assét are transferred or in which the
RSSB: neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and réwards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset,

Cn derecognmon of ‘a financial assét, tlie difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or. the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of thie asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recogmsed in OClis recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as at
FVOCI is not recognised in profit or loss on derecogmuon of such securities. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is.created or retained by the RSSB is recognised as a
separate asset or liability.

The RSSB enters into transactions whereby it transfers asset§ récognised on its statement of financial
position but retains either all or substantialiy all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a
portion of them. In such ¢ases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

When assets are sold to .a third party with a concurrent total feturn swap on the transférred assets, the.
transaction is accounted for as_a secured financing transaction similar to sale-and- -repurchase transactions,
because the RSSB retains all or sub_stantl ally all of the risks and rewards of ownership. of such assets.

In transactions in which the RSSB rieither retdins nor transférs substantially afl of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the RSSB coritinues to recognise the.
asset to the extent of its confinuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is' exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset.

[ti certain transactions, the RSSB retains the obligation to service the tranisferred financial asset for a fee.

The transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is
recogmsed for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is less than
adequate (liability) for performing the servicing.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL, STATEM ENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accon nting Policies (Continued)
Financial Insiruments (Continued).

Financial Liabilities
The RSSB derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire

iii) Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, ‘then the RSSB evaluates whether the cash flows. .of the
modified asset are substantially different.

If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised (see
(it1)) arid a new financial asset is recogmsed at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees
received as part of the modification are accounted for as follows:

— fees that are considered in determining the fait value of the new asset and fees that represent
réimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial méasurément of the asset; arid
— other fees are included in profit of loss as part of the gain-or loss.on derecognition.

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is ‘in financial difficulties, then the objective of the
modification is vsually to maximise recovery of the-ofiginal contractual terms tather than to originate a
new asset with substantially différent terms. If the RSSB plans to modify a financial:-asset in a way that
would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset should be
written off before the modification takes place. This approach impacts the result of the quantitative:
evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in such cases.

If the modification of a findncial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI doés not result in
derecognition of the financial asset, then the RSSB first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset using the ongmal effective interest rate of the asset and recognises the resulting adjustmerit:
as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss_ For ﬂoatmg-rate fi nanc1_al ‘assets, the 0r1gma] effective
interest rate used to calculate the: modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect.curtent market térms at the
time of the modification. Any costs or fees incurred and modification fees received adjust the gross
catrying amount of the modified financial asset:and are-amortised over the remaining térm of the modified
financial asset. -

If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is
presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method or management may elect to present it as a separate iterh on the

Statement of profit.or loss and other comprehensive income.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniihued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continueil)
Financial Insz‘mmen_ts (Continued)

‘Financial liabilities

The _R3SSB derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modiﬁe_d, and the cash flows Qf‘ the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is récogniseéd at fair value. The: difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is-recognised in profit or loss. Consideration paid includes non-
financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities, including the new modified. financial
liability. ' '

If"the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the:amoitised cost of

the liability is recaleulated by discounti ng. the modified cash flows at the-original effective interest rate and

the resultmg gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial liabilities, the original
effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market
terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred are recognised as an adjustment to the
carrying amount.of the liability and amortised over the remaining term of the modified ﬁnanclal liability by
re-computing the effective interest rate on the instrument.

Interest rate. benchmark reform (policy applied from 1 January 2020)

If the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability measured at
amortised cost changes as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, then the RSSB updates the effective
interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by the reform. A

change in the basis for determining the contractudl cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark

reform if the following conditions are met:

— change is necessary as a direct consequence of the reform; and
— the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is ecoriomically equivalent to the previous
basis — i.e. the basis immediately before the change.

If changes are made to a fi nancial asset or financial lability in addition to changes to the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows required by interest rate benchmark reform, then the RSSB. first
updates the effective interest rate of the financial asset-or financial liability to reflect the change that is
required by interest rate benchmark reform. After that, the RSSB applies the policies on accounting for:

‘modifications set-out above:to the addl‘uonal changes.

iv) Offsetting.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the: net. amount presented in the statement of
finaricial position when, and only when, the RSSB currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amourts and it intends either to ‘settle them on a nét basis or to realise the asset and settle the. liability
-51multanen_usly.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under lF:R-S"}-S't_anda.r_ds, or for gains
.and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the RS5B’s trading activity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

v) Fair value measurement
‘Fair-value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to trafisfer a liability in ari orderly

tranisaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most_
advantageous market to which the RSSB has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its

-non-performance risk.

When one is available, the RSSB measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in-an activé market, then the'RSSB uses valuation techniques that maximise the
use. of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation
technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a
transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial fecognition is normally the
tranisaction price —i.e. the.fair value of the consideration glven or received. If the RSSB detérmines that the
fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by-
a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor-based on a valuation technique for
which any unobservable inputs are judged-to be insignificant in relation to the difference, then the financial
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the. fair value on
initial recegnition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that differénce is recognised.in profit oi loss on
an appropriate basis over ilie 1ifé of/ the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly
supported by observable market data or'the transaction is closed out.

If an asset of a liability measured at fait value has a bid price and an ask price, then the RSSB measures
assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities-and short positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial labilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that are

managed by the RSSB.on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit fisk are measured on thé

basis:of a price that would bé received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for

the particular risk exposure. Portfolio=level adjustments — e.g.-bid-ask adjustment or credit risk adjustments

that reflect the measurement on the basis of the net exposure — are allocated to the individual asséts and
liabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the 1nd1_v_1dual instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature'(e:g. 4 demand deposit) is not less tharn the
amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on which the amount 'could be réquired to be
paid,

The RSSB reeogniee's' transfers' between levels of the: fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

Significant Accounting Policies {Cotitinned)

Financial Instruments (Contintied

vi) Impairment
The RSSB recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on' the following financial
instrumients.that are not measured at FVTPL:

— financial assets that are debt instruments;
— lease receivables;

— financial guarantee contracis issued; and
— mortgage loan commiitments issued.

'RSSB has recognized impairment [oss on-equity investments-

Thé RSSB measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for

which they are mieasured.as 12-morith ECL.:

— debt investment securities that are détermined to have. low credit risk at the reporting date; and

‘— other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial

recognition.

The RSSB considers a debt. investment security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of *investment grade’.

12-mhonth ECL aré the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that-
are possible within the 12 months after the: reporting date. Finaricial instruments for which 12-month ECL

are recognised are referréd to as*Stage 1 financial instruments”. Financial instruments allocated to Stage 1
have not undergone a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and are not credit-impaired.

Lifettme ECL are the ECL that result from all possible defailt events overthe expected life of the financial
instrument or the maximum contractual period of exposure, Financial instruments for- which hfet!me ECL

are recognised but that are not credit-impaired are referred 1o as ‘Stage 2 financial instruments’. Financial

instiuments allocated to -Stage 2 are those that have experienced a signifi icant increase in credit- risk since -
initial recognition but are not credit-impaired. Financial instruments for which: lifetime ECL are recognised

and that are credit-impaired are referred to as “Stage 3 financial instruments”.

‘Measurement of ECL

ECL ate a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measired as follows:

— financial assets. that aré not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls. (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the RSSB expects to receive);

— financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting dater as the difference. between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

— undrawn loan commitmerits: as thi¢ present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to the RSSB if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the RSSB expects to
receive; and '

— financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that the
RSSB expects to recover.. '
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2074

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conitinued).
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued).
Financial Instruments (Continued)

Restructured financial asséts

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial-asset is replaced with a.
new one due to financial difficulties of the horrower; then an assessment is made of wliether the financial

-asset should be 'deréCOg_n'iSed.and ECL.-arfe measuréd as follows.

If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected cash
flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the
exnstmg asset.

If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing.asset, then the expected fair value
of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition. This amount is. inéluded in calculating the- cash shortfalls from the ex1st1r1g financial asset
that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to ‘the reporting date using the original
effective interest rate of the existing financial asset

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the RSSB assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost, debt financial
assets carried at FVOCI and finance lease receivables are credit impaired (referred to as *Stage 3 financial
assets’). A financial asset is “credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated. future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes thé following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

— a breach of ‘contract such as a default or past-due event; _

— the restructuring of .a loan or advance by the RSSB on terms that the RSSB would not-consider
otherwise;’ ' )

— it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reerganisation; or

“— the disappearanceé of an active market-for-a security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotlated due to a deterioration‘in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to
be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows las reduced
significantly and there are no-other indicators-of i impairment.

In mdkin‘g an. assessment of whether an investment in sovereign debt is credit-impaired, the. RSSB
considers the following factors.

'— The market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in bond yields.

— The rating agen'c"i'es.’ assegsments of creditworthiness.

— “The country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance.

— The probability of debt being restruchired, resulting in holders suffering losses through voluntary -or
mandatory debt forgiveness.

— The international support mechanisms in place to provide the hecessary support as ‘lender of last
resort’ to that country, as well as the intention, reflected in public statements, of governments. and
.agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of the depth of those mechanisms and,
irrespective of the political intent, whether there is. the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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ANNUAL REFORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE: 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coritinued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Presentation of allowance for ECL in.the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost: as'a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

— loan commitments.and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision; and

— where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the RSSB-cannot
identify the ECL on the loarn comimitment component Separately from those on the diawn component:
‘the RSSB presents a-combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented

as a deduction from the gross. carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss
allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision.

‘Werite off _ _
‘Mortgage loans ard debt securities are written off (either pattially or in:full) when there is no reasonable

expectation of recovering a financial assét in its entirety or:a portion thereof. This is generally the case

‘when the RSSB determiines that the borrower does not have assets.or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjeet to the write-off. This assessment is ‘carried out :at-the
individual asset level,

Recoveries of amounts previously - written off are recognised when cash is received and are included in
‘impairment tosses on financial instriiments’ in the statement of profit or loss and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to camply with

the RSSB’s procedures for iecovery of amounts due.
vii) Designation at fair value through _proﬁt' or loss.
‘Financial asséts

On initial recognition, the RSSB has .designated. certain financial assets as at FVTPL because this
designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch, that would otherwise. arise.

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the RSSB- occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of its equity
investments as equity instruments at FVYOCI when they meet the definition of definition of Eqmty under

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held fortrading: Such classification is determined

on an instriment-by instrurment basis..

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit. Dividends are recognised in

‘profitor loss as other operating income when the right of the payment has been establishied, except when

the RSSB benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case,
such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVOC] are not subject to an impairment assessment;

Financial liabilities

‘The RSSB has not designated any financial liabilities as-at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) '

¢) Equity Investments

Under IAS 27: =Sep_arate-'Pinancia] Statements, when separate financial statements-are prepared, an entity
accounts for investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures either at:

— Cost '

— 1n accordance with IFRS 9, or

— Using the equity method described in IAS-32

As an investment entity under IFRS 10, RSSB is expected.to measure and evaluate the performance of

‘substantially- all of its investments o a fair valie basis. RSSB also elected to measure investments in

associates and joint ventures: at fair value through profit or loss. Accordingly, all equity-investments are
accounted for on fair value basis. The classification for the respective investments have been done in

-accordance with IFRS 9. The measurement of fair value was determined in accordance with [FRS 13: Fair.

'valug measuremerit,

‘For the purpose.of these financial statements, the Board. has measured all equity investrments:(except those

that are publicly listed and equity investments in preference shares) using the net asset valuation method
restrlcted to the. shareholdmg of RSSB in the respective investments. The directors believe that this basis of
valuation provides the most relevant estimate of the worth of these investments:

fy Property and equipment

Initial recognition and measurement

Property and equipment is initially recognised at cost. Cost includes expenditures. that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-tonstructed assefs includes:the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly atiributable to bringing the assét to a working coridition for its
intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part-of that equipmerit.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying value of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Board and
its cost can be measured rellably The carrying value of the replaced part is de-recognised. The cost of day
to day servicing. of the property-and equipment is tecognized in the profit or 1oss.as incurred,

Subsequent measurement

IAS 16 permits an accounting entity to choose the cost or revaluation model as its accounting policy for
subsequent measurement of property and equipment. The accounting standard: requires. the accounting
entity to apply the chosen model consistently across a class of property and equipment.

‘The Board has chosen the revaluation: model for the class of land and:buildings and the cost model for the

rest of the classes of property and equipment i.e. office equipment, motor vehicles, furnituré and fittings,
computers, laboratory, and kitchen equipment.

— Revaluation model.

Land and buildings are subsequently measured at revatued amounts. It is the policy of the Board to revalue
assets under the class of land and buildings once in two years by internal valuation committee and ance in
four years by an independent certified valuet. Revalued amounts of asséts determined at revaluation are
.compared to carrying values and are written statup of down to match revalued amounts. Accordingly, the
resultant, revatuation surplus or deficit is recognised as part of othér comprehensive income during the year
of revaluation-and accumulated under
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property and equipment (Continued)

the revaluation reserve. Assets are then subsequently measured at revalued amoimts less accumulated
depreciation until the next revaluation or until de-recognition of the asset.

— Cost model

Other classes of assets excludlng land and building are- measured subsequently -at cost less accumulated
depreciation..

Depreciation expense

Depreciation is recognized in the statément of compiehensive income and cilculated to write off the
cost/revalued amounts of the property and equipment on.a straight line basis over the expected useful lives

of the assets concerned. Land is not depreciated. The estimated depreciation rates for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Class _ Depreciation rate.
'Bﬁilding__'s — SR — .- : : = - =Y
Office equipment - S - o o 20%
Motor vehicles - ” o N | _ i _ 25%
Furniture and fittings: " . 0%
Computers _ o ' [ - 50%
Kitchéﬁ_éqﬁipment | _ T o _ T B 25%
I.,abdrat_ory equi pmerﬁ: T | | TT25%

Management and directors review the depreciation methods, residual value and useful life of an asset at the-
year end and any change considered to be appropriate is recorded in surplus or deficit as a change in
estimates:

De-recognition

Assets are de- recogmsed through disposal at sale or Board approved write off: Gains and losses on disposal
of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the. proceeds from disposal with the
carrying value of propérty and. equipment and recognized riet within other income in profit or loss. At
disposal of revalued assets, the revaluation surplus-of revalued. assets is transferred from the. revaluation
reserve to retained. eaml_ngs

g) Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost: Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economiic life and assessed for

.jmpairment whenever there is.an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired..
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible (Continued)

Amor:iSatfon:

‘The amortisation. period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are,

reviewed at least at each financial year end, Changes | m the. expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of fiture: economic. benefits. embodied in. the asset are accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or mietfiod, -as ‘appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The
amortisation expense on mtanglble assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
inconte in the expense category consistent with the:function of the intangible asset: There are no intangible
assets with indefinité useful lives. Intangible assets are amottised-at a rate of 50%.

De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the-
net disposal proceeds and- the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of

‘comprehensive income when the asset is-derecognised.

h) Investment properties
Initial recognition

Investment properties are measured. initially at cost, including transdction costs. The carrymg amount
includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the-
recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-fo-day servicing of an investment. property.

Siubsequent medsurement:

_Sub‘_s_equeri"r to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the reporting:date..

Gains or losses. arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in surplus or
deficit in the period in which they arise. Fair values are evaluated every afier five years by an:accredited
external, independent valuation expert.

De-recognition

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn. from use and no future ecoriomic benefit is-expected - from its dlsposal
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset.is recogmsed n
surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition:

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is.a-change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owrigr-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair
value at the date of change in use. When the use of property changes from owner occupied to investment
property, the property is.re-measured at fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any gain arising
on revaluation is recognized through other comprehensive income. Any loss arising on revaluation is.
recognized through the surplus or deficit.

i)  Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lowetr of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inveritories is based on
first-in-first out (FIFO) principle and includes the expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventory, and
other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net realizable value.is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and selling
expenses or-the replae_ement cost as appropriate.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE, YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Board’s non-financial assets other than investment properties and inventories
and are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is-any indication of impairment. I such
candition exists, the asset’s recoverable-amount is estimated, and an impairment loss recognised in surplus
or deficit whenever the carrying amount of an asset-exceeds its.recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher-of ‘an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (EGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use and is determined for-an individual -asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those: from other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there

has been a change in the estimates used to determine. the recoverable amount and impaitment loss is

reversed only to the extent that the assets’ carrying amount that would have been determined. net. of
depreciation or amortization if no impairment loss was recognized.

k) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past.event, the Board has a present iéga] or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that-an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligatton Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate. that reflects current ‘market assessments of the time value of money and, where:
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where the Board expects a proyision to-be reimbursed, for
‘example undér an-insurance contract, the reimbursement:is recagnised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virfually certaii.

I} Tax
The Board is exempt from corporate income tax under Article 46 of law No.14/2018 of 13/04/2018.
Revenue, expenses, and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax except:

— where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or rendering of services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the value added tax is.recognised as part of the cost of
‘acquisition of the assét or as part of the expense item as applicable;.atid '

— receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of value added tax included

The et amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as-
part of accounts receivables or account. payables in the statement of financial position.

m) Cash and cash egunivalents
Cash and cash equivalents arve- measured at amortised cost subsequent fo initial recognition. For the

purposes of the statemient of cash flows, cash and cash equivalerits comprises of cash and. bank that are
available on demand as at the reporting date.

n) Capital work-in-progress

The ongoing constriction/installation of capital projects are récorded at the ¢ost to date or valuation and
are only transferred into the rélevant assets categories once completed and commissioned. No depreciation:
is computed on capital work-in-progress as these assets-are not yet available for use. However, an expected
impairment. loss on capital work-in-progress is recognized immediately in surplus or- deficit. Currently,
capital work in progress consists.of Investment properties under construction and 1T ‘modernisation project.
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NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

0) Leases
RSSB has applied IFRS 16 — Leases on 1 July 2019 ‘using the modified retrospective approach, The
adoption of IFRS 16 did not-have a significant impact on tive RSSB’s financial statements,

At inception. of 'a contract, RSSB assesses whether a contract-is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to controtf the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to- control the use.of an
identified asset; the Board uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16. This policy is applied to contracts
entered into (or ¢hanged) on or-after 1 July 2019.

RSSB acting as a lessee

At commencement or on -modification-of a contract that contains a lease component, the Board allacates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component:on the basis of its relative stand-alone: price. The.
Board has elected to separdte non-lease components and account for the lease and associdted non-lease.
components separately. The Board récognises a -right-of-use asset and a lease fiability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measuréd at cost, which comprises the initial.
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commericement date;
plus any initial direct costs incurréd and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove atiy improvements
made to branch office premises.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the. st'rai'ght—'lihe method from. the commencement
date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment.
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present.value of the lease payments. that are not-paid at the
comimencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Board’s incremerital botrowing rate, Generally, the Board uses its incremental borrowing’
rate as the discount: rate. The Board determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtammg interest rates
from various external ﬁnancmg._sourc_es and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease. and
type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

— fixed-payments, including in-substance fixed payments;.

— variable léase payments. that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

— amounts expecteéd 1o be payable under a residual value guaranteg; and

— the ‘exercise price under a. purchase: option that the Board- is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
‘payments in an-optional renewal period if the Board is reasonably certain 1o exercise an extension
option, and penalties. for eatly termination of a lease unless the Board is reasonably certain not to
terminate-eatly.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a' change in future lease payments arising from a change in

an index or rate, if there.is a charige in the Board’s estimate of the amountexpected to be payable under a.

residual value. guarantee, if the Board changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,

extension ot termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment When the lease:

liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is:made to the carrying amount of the right-

of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-ofiuse asset has been reduced

to zero. The Board presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

RSSB has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. The Board recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straighit-line basis over the [ease term. All leases for RSSB during the year ended 30 June 2021 were low
value in nature.

p) Statutory reserves.

The statutory reserves are set up under-article 11 of law number 06/2003 of 22 March 2003 modifying-and
completing law of 22/08/1974. The atticle stipulates that the Natlona] Social Security Institutions. provide
the following reserves for both the occupational hazards and pensions branches.

Pension’s branch Statitory reserve
This comprises the working capital and technical reserves as explained below:

Working capital reserve is equivalent to a quarter of the total ‘expenses of the pension’s branch previous
year. Technical reserve should not be lower than the total expenses of the branch for the current: three
Years.

Qccupational Hazards branch statutory reserve
This comprises the occupational hazards technical, security and working capital reserves as explained
below:

Technical reserve must be equal to- the total amount of occupational hazards pzud duri ng the year. Security
reserve is equal to-a quarter of the expenses incurred durmg the last three years. Working cdpital réeserve
should be equal to.a quarter of the expenses of the previous year.

6.. New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements

i) New and currently effective requirements

The following standards or amendments issued by the Internationsl Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2023:

Effective for-annual periods

New amendments or interpretation
' ‘beginning on or after

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts | January 2023

| Disclosure of Accountitig Policies — Amiendmeritsto IAS 1 and IFRS

Practice Statement 2 1 January 2023

Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8 | January 2023

The adoption of the above standards and amendments did not have a significant effect on-the results of the
Board.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

i} New and currently effective requirements

IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and aims to increase comparability and transparency.
about profitability. The new standard introduces a new comprehensive model (* ‘general model”) for the.
recognition and measurement of liabilities arising frem insurance contracts. In addition, it includes a
simplified approach and modifications to the general measurement model that can be applied in certain
circumstances and to specific contracts, such as:

= Reinsurance contracts held;
*  Direct participating contracts; and
* [nvestment contracts with discretionary participation features.

Under the new standard, investment componerits are exé¢luded from insurarice reveénue and service
expenses. Entities can also choose 10 present the effect of changes in discount rates and other financial
risks in profit or loss or OCI.

The new standard includes various new disclosures and requires additional granularity in disclosures to
assist users to assess the effects of insurance contracts on the entity’s financial statements.

The entity is in the process of determining the impact of IFRS 17 and will provide more detailed
disclosure on the impact in future financial statements.

The ‘standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Early adoptien -is:
permitted only if the entity applied IFRS 9.

The adoption of this. standard and the related amendments is expected to have a material impact on the
Board. The Board has commenced the implementation of the standard and will adopt this standard info its
Sfinancial statements for the financial year ending 30 June 2025,

Disclosiire of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)

In October 2018, the Board refined its definition of material to make it easier to understand and apply: This
definition is. now aligned across IFRS Standards and the Conceptual Framework.

“Iiformation is material if omittiig, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected 1o inflirence
decisions that the primary users of general-purpise financial statements inake on the basis of those

Sfinancial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporiing entity.”

The refined definition of material complements the non-mandatory IFRS Practice Statement 2 guidance the
Board issued in 2017, which outlinés a four-step process ( summarised as identify, assess, organise and
review) that preparers can use to help them imake materiality judgéiments and provides guidance and
examples on how {6 make matériality judgements in preparing their financial statements.

“The Board has recently‘issued amendments to [AS | Presentation of Financial Statements and an update to

JFRS Practice Statement 2 M:rkrm,f Materiality Judgements to help companies provide useful accounting
policy disclosures.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
New standards or amendments and forthcotning requirenients (Continued)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) Continued

The key amendments to JAS 1 include:

. requiring companies to disclose-their siaférial accomiting policies rathier than
their sfgnificant accounting policies:

. clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial tratisactions, other events or coriditions are
themselves imimaterial .and as such need not be diselosed; and

. clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events.or
conditiong are themselves material 1o a company’s financial statenients,

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples of
the application of materiality to acéounting policy disclosures,

The amendinents are-congistent with the refingd definition of material:

“decownting policy informuation is material if, when consideréd together with other inforinction inclded in
an entity’s financial staféments; it Can reasonably be expected o influence decisiony that the primary tisers
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements ™.

Definition of accounting estimates (Amendments to IAS §)

‘The amendments introduce a new definition for accounting estimates: clarifying that they are monetary
amounts in the financial statements that are-subject to measurement uricertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that a company develops an-accounting estimate to-achieve the objective set out by an
‘accounting policy. '

Developing an accounting-estimate includes both:

*  Selecting a medsurement technique (estimation or valuation technique) for example: an estimation
technique used to measure aloss allowance for expected credit losses when applying [FRS 9 Financial
Instrumenis; and

‘= Choosing the inputs to be used when applying the chosen measurement technique for example: the

expected cash outflows for determining a provision for warranty. obligations when applying TAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asséts.

The effects of changes in such inputs of measuremeni techniques are'changes in accounting estimates..
The definition of accounting policies remains unchanged.

‘The amendments did not have a material impact on the results of the Board.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
New standarids or amendmenits and forthcoming requirements (Continued)
ii} New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of the finanéial statements-of Rwanda Social Security Board for the year ended
30 Junie 2024, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue butnot yet effective.

New amendients or interpretation Effective for the Board’s.
annual periods beginning on
or after
— Non ~ current Liabilities with Covenants — Amendments to [AS 1 and )
Classification of Liabilities as-current or Non— current Amendments to 1 July 2024
IAS 1
— Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-curieit 1 July 2024

(Amernidments to [AS 1)

— Lease Liability in-sale and Leaseback — Amendments to TFRS. 16 1 July 2024
— Sale or Contribution of Assets betwéen an Investor and-its Available for optional
Associate or Joint Venture {Amendments to [FRS.10 and 1AS 28 ‘adoption/effective
date deferréd indefinitely

— Lease Liability in sale and Leaseback — Amendments to IFRS 16 1 January 2024

— Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amernidments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 1 January 2024

— Lack of Exchangeability — Amendments to TAS 21 | July 2025

— Definition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to IAS §) 1 July 2024

— Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to TAS-1 and IFRS 1 July 2024

Practice Statement 2)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (and its related amendments), effective, not yet adopted

"IFRS. 17 supersedes IFRS 4 [hsurance Contracts and aims to increase comparability. and transparency:

about profitability. The new standard introduces a'new comprehensive model (“general model”) for the:
récognition -and measurement of liabilities arising from insutance contracts. In addition, it includes a
simplified approach and modifications t6 the general measurement model-that can be applied in certain
circumstances and to specific contracts, such as:

»  Reinsurance contiacts held;

*  Direct participating contracts; and

* Investment contracts with discretionary participation features.

Under the new standard, investment components are excluded from insurance reverue and service

expenses. Entities can also choose to present the. effect of changes in discount rates and other financial
risks in ‘profit or loss or OCI.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30/ .JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements (Continned)

ity New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet adopted continued.

The entity is in the process of determining the impact of TFRS 17 and will provide more detailed
disclosure on the impact in future financial statements.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Janvary 2023. Early adoptlon is
permitted only if the entity applied IFRS 9.

Under Article:55 of the Guidelines No 4230/2024-00039 [613] Of 08/02/024 On The Implementation Of
The International Financial Reporting Standard 17- Insurance Contracts issued by the National Bank of
Rwanda, special insurance schemes were allowed 2 1 year deferral period to ensure: that they adopt [FRS
17 for annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2024

The adoption of this standard and the relatéd amendments is expectéd to have a material impact on the.

financial statements of the Board. The Board is currently evaluating the impact of this standard and will

adopt it for the financial year ending 30 June 2025,
Classification of liabilifies as current or non-current (Amendments to TAS 1)

Under existing 1AS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as-currenit when they do not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve moriths after the end of the
reporting period. As part of its amendments, the Board has removed.the requirement for a right to be
unconditional and instead, now tequires that a right to defér settlement must have substance and exist at
the end of the reporting penod _

There. is Jimited guidance on how to determine whether a right has substance.and the assessment may
require management to exercise interpretive judgement. The existing requirement to ignore management’s
intentions or expectations for settling a liability when determining its classification is unchanged.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively from the effective date,
The standard is effective for-annual perieds beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the Board..

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investoi and its Associate or Joint Ventiure (Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

The amendiments require the full gain to be recogrised when assets transferred between an investor and its
associate or joint venture meet the definition of a ‘business’ under IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Where
the assets transferred do not meet the definition of a business, a partial gain to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in th‘e- associate or_joint venture is recognised. The definition of a business is key to
determining thie.extent of the gain to be recogriised:

The IASB has decided to-defer the effective date for these amendments indefinitely. Early Adoption is still
pertitted. '

When a parent loses control of a subsidiary in a transaction with an associate or joint venture (IV), there is.
a conflict between the: ex1st1ng guidance on consolidation and equity accounting.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements (Continued)

#)  New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet adopted continued

Unider the consolidation standard, the parent recogmses the full gain on the loss of control. But under the
standard on associates and JVs, the parent recognises the gain only to the extent of unrelated investors’
interests in the associate or JV. In either case, the. loss i is recognised in full if the underlying assets are
impaired. _

In response to this conflict and the resulting diversity in practice, on 11 September 2014 the IASB issued
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Veénture (Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28). '

The Board continues to assess the likely impacts of these amendments as they could potentially be:
significant.

Disclosure 6f Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)

In October 2018, the Board refined its definition of inaterial to make it easier to understand and apply. This
definition is now ah(rned across IERS Standards and the- Conceptual Framework.

“Informetion is material if vmifting, misstuting or-obscuring it-could reasonably be expected to influence

decisions that the primary. users of general purpose financial statements make'on the basis o;' ‘those
Financial starements, which provide: financial information. about specific reporting entity.”

The refined definition of' material complements the non-mandatory IFRS: Practice Statement 2 guidance the
Board issued in 2017, whichoutlines a four-step process ( summarised as identify, assess, organise and
review) that preparers can use to help them make materiality judgements and provides guidance and
examples on how to make materiality judgements in preparing their fipancial statements.

The Board has r’ec'eni-ly issued ameéndments to IAS | Présentution of Financial Statesents and an update to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Maferialiti-Judgenients 1o help companies provide useful accounting
policy disclosures.

The key amendments to [AS 1 include:
._o. requiring compinies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies:

* clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or condlnom are
themselves immaterial .and as such need not be disclosed; and

- clarifying that not atl accounting policies that-relate to matetial transactions, other events or

conditions are theinselvées material to & company’s financial statements.

‘The Board also amended 1FRS Practice Statement 2 fo-include guidance and two additional examples on

the application of materiality to-accounting. polzcv disclosures,

‘The amendments-are consistent with the refined definition of material:-

“Aecounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other- information included in
amrentity’s financial statements, 4t can reasongbly be expected to influence decisions that the priviary users

of general purpose financial statements make.on the basis of those financial statements ™.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continned)
New standards or amendments and  forthcoming requirements ( Continned)

i) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet adopied continued

The amendments are eftective from 1 January 2024 but may be applied earlier. The amendments are.not
expected to have material effect on the financial statements and ruﬁuccl disclosures of the Boaid.

RSSB has ot early adopted these standards. All standards and Interpretations will be-adopted at their
effective date {except for those standards and Interpretations that-are not applicable to the entity). The
adoption of thése amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statenients-of the
Board.

Lack of Exchangeability — Amendiiients to IAS 21

[n August 2023, the International Accouniting Standards Board (JASB) amended 1AS 21 1o clatify:

= when a currency is exchangeable into another currency; and _
= how a company estimates a spot rate when a-currency lacks exchangeability.

A currency is exchangeable into another currency when a company-is able to ekchangg that currency for'
the other cuirrency at the measutement date and for a specified purpose. Wheir 4 curfency s nof
exchangeable, a company needs to estimate a spot rate.

Under the amendments, companies witl need to provide new disclosures to help users assess the impact of
using an estimated-exchange rate on the financial statements. These diselosures might include:

= the nature and financial impacts of the currency not being exchangeable;

# the-spot exchange rate used;:

= the estimation process: and
wrisks to_the__w]_npany because the currency 1s not-exchangeable,

The amendments apply for annial repotiing pcrlods bcgmnmg on or after |- January 2025. Barlier
application is permitted. '

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Board as the Board currently does not
have transactions in currencies where there is lack of exchangeability.

7. Determination of fair value
i) Fair value measurement

Fair values of cash and.deposits with.commercial banks, trade receivables, loans and-advances and other
payables reasonably approximate their carrying amounts largely due to-the short-term maturities of these
instruments. and/or because they carry interestrates that reasonably approximate to market rates.

The carrying amounts of equity securities held for trading and at fair value through profit of loss ate the
same as their fair values since the instruments are presented at fair value.

ii). Valuation hierarchy
IFRS 13 requires a three_—ti'ere_d disclosure for all financial assets and ﬁna‘n__ciél' liabilities that are carried in
the books of entities at fair value; Tliis fair valug disclosure is divided into three levels as follows:
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD o
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued).
Detérmination of fair value (Continued)
Valuation Framework (Continueéd)

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities e.g. quoted equity

securities.

Level 2 — inpuits other than quoted prices included within Leveél 1 that are observable for the asset or ]iability
either directly (e.g. prices) or indirectly (e.g. derived from prices).

Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liaBility’ that are not based on observable market data. These items aré not.
Level 1 products and contain at least one significant input parameter which could not:beé price tested from

any of the methods described for Level 2 products. Examples are products where correlation is a significant
input parameter and products where there is severe illiquidity in the markets for a prolonged period of time.

4) Valuation'models

The Board measures fair values using their fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of inputs
used in making the measurements.

Level 1 —inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.
Level 2 — inputs.other than quoted market prices included within level Ithat areobservable either directly
{lfike prices). or indirectly (derived prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments; -quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in

markets that are considered less active; ot other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs-are
directly or.indirectly observable from market data.

b) Valuation Framework

The Board has established clear guidelines on how fair value is to be determined for all assets and
liabilities measured at fair value. These guidelines are included in the board’s operational manuals. The
fair value. of both financidl/non-financial asseéts and fair valués have been determined for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes based on the methods below:

(i) Investment properties and Administrative land and buildings

The Board uses an external independent valuation comipany with. recognized professional qualification
experience and values the Board’s investment properties after-every five years (previouisly on an annual
basis). The fair values-are based on the market. conditions being the price that would be received to sell an
asset in an ordetly transaction between: r_nark_f:t participants on the measurement date. In the absence ofan
active price in an active market, the values are prepared by using three metheds of valuation — the direct
comparison method, the replacement cost method and income capitalisation method.

a) The direct comparison method: Under this method, the estimated market value of the asset is related
to value of a known comparable property whereby the latter’s value is takén to be the best price that
can be obtained by the property being valued with due allowance being made for value affecting
differences such as: location, level and amount of services provided, acce551b1hty, size, cyclical
patternis in the local and regional property markets, development- conditions discerned from land titles,
date of transaction, condition (in cise of buildmgs) sales.data, tenure-and unexpired term,
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Determination of fair value (Continued)
Valuation Framework (Continued)

'b) The replucement cost method: This method is a method of last resort in the event of the absence of an
active market or related market (under the direct comparison method). Under this method, the
estimated value of the property is made in’ relation to-what it will cost to acquire the -asset at ‘current
price. The basic premise/assumption being that no prudent investor would pay for an asset on offer
more than it would cost to acquire the asset new by undertaking property development. The valuation
is thus based on the current cost of constructing & similar building capable of performing the same.
function as the asset being valued. Since the subject asset’s life will have been relatively consumed:
with. its age, then the cost estimate is then adjusted to reflect the consumed life. This method was
'apphed in determining value for some investment properties and administrative buildings classifi ed_
under the property and equipment class — land and buildings: This class of property and equipment is-
accounted for using the revaluation model in accordance with the requirements of IAS 16: Property,
Plant andEquipment.

¢) Investment method/ Income Capitalization method: This method estimates. market value of the
property-based income earned from the property. The value of the property under this method is
determined by how much rental incomé the property generates. “The matket.value of each property is
deterimined by considering the annual market rent income of the property and an estimated
multiplier/capitalisation factor (referred to as years purchase, YP). The capitalisation rate and
muitiplier are determined by the valuation experts based on the market for similar property. This
‘method was applied in determining value for some ‘investment properties,

(ii) Valuation of Land

The valuation for land was based on estimated land prices for specific locations across the country and
value was deterinined by multiplying the land size with the estimated price per square metre. The
-estimated value of larid forms-part of the estimated fair value for investment properties and property,
plant and equipment.

(ifi) Investment in debt.and equity securities

The_ fair value of financial assets .at fair value through p_roﬁt or 'lqs_s, held-to-maturity i_nve_stments and
availdble for sale is determined by reference to.their quoted bid ‘price at the reporting date if available.
The fair value for non-quotéd equity instruments has been determined using the net asset value
‘methodology and the fair value of held to maturity investments is determined using the‘discounted cash

flow methodology.
(i)  Trade and other recéivables
‘The fair value of trade and other recewables is: estimated -as the -present value of future cash flows,

discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. The fair value-of trade and other recewables._
is determined at initial recognition.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 38 JUNE: 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Determination of fair valiie (Continued)
¢) Assets measured at fair value

As at 30 June 2024

The tablé:below shows the asseéts measured at fair valiie and their relevant fair liierarchy.

Property and equipment
Investment properties
Equity investments
Total

As at 30 June 2023

Property and equipment
Investment properties
Equity investments

Total

Amount not’

Total as per
statement of

Level 1 Level2 measured-at _ .
fair value ﬁnanc_lal
- - position
Frw'niillions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw!'millions
- 12,078 1,180 13,258
- 197,173 - 197,173
203,220 402,765 118,698 724,683
.-2'03,2 20 612,016 119,878 935,114
_ Amount_ not 'thtal as fe;
Level. 1 Level 2 measured at st en.l.en_ It
fair value ﬁ“““‘“‘."
- position
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
- 12,923 2,032 14,955
- 230,118 - 230,118
194,336 352,432 63,746 610,514
194,336 595,473 65,778 .555,587
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TOR THE YEAR ENDED 30-JUNE 2024

NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continned)

Determination of fair value (Continued)

d) Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

The tables below sets. out the carrying values of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value:

30 June 2024

Schemes Pensian Medical B M‘"“[i ‘;"fye _ Ejo Heza Total

Frw'milliony Frw"mi[lions___r Fr.w"mi'llim_zs r fvy'_m_ilﬁons Frw'millions  Frw'millions

Financidl assets

Comnmte Bond 92.509 4211 .. 1,536_ 98,_256
Treasury bonds 320,314 168,632 - 32,961 52,008 573,935
Treasury bills 37,943 47,127 - 8,186 - 193,259
Commercial papers 96,959 - - . 96,955
Loan and advances to third parties 58,105 22-,924_' - - - 81,028
Mortgage loans 15 - - - - 13
Advances to contractars 3,()3.4 - - - - 3,034
Dividend receivable 9,412 361 - - - 9,772
Othier assets’ 3,938 481 17.143 3T - 21,595
Due from#{Due to) other s¢hemes (4,675} 4,940 (114) _ (152) - -
Deposits with financial instilutions 145,613 181.851 - 16,492 6,294 ‘350,251
Cash.and bank balances 92,102 53,677 33,626 12318 1,691 193,346
“Total 855,270 484,225 50,663 69,836 61,528 1,321,51 5
Financial liabilities

cAonr-:g:lt: retained on constricticn 2551 oy 14 . ) 2644
Benefits payable - 15,526 23277 456 - 39,239
Other payables 3,457 2,383 14,199 435. 560 21,035
“Fotal 6,008 17,986 37491 893 560 62,938
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)}
.Determination of fair value (Continued).

d) Financial-assets and liabilities not measured at fair value continned

30 June 2023

Schemes

Financial assets held at

- amortised cost

Corporate Bond
Tréasury bonds
Treasury bills

Commercidl papers.

‘Loan and advances to third

parties

Mortgage loans

Advances to contractors
Dividend reéceivable

Other assets

‘Due from / {Dué 10) other -

schemes

Depuosits with financial
nstitutions

Cash and bank balances
Total

Financial liabilities
classified as other

Jliabifitics

Amounts retained on

_consiniction contracts

Benefits payable
Othier payables .
Total

Pension Medical CBHI *I\-E‘:::r““" Ejo-Heza Total

Frw'millions  TFrw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'mi'llio;ls Frw'milkions
58,158 15671 - - - 73,829
315403 129,339 - 32,357 41,587 518,686
9,568 32438 19,711 2356 - 64,070
57,938 - - - 57,938
3,825 26,111 . - " 29:936
32 ) } - } 32
3370 30 - - - 3400
12356 1,067 - - - 13,423
6,910 254 14,955 19 - 22,138
(8,204) 6,553 an 232) " -
117,007 134,757 - 12,395 3,541 268,100
68,497 43,195 9,300 5,158 1,515 127,565
646,769 389,410 43,8340 52,053 47,043 1,179,118
vy o
2452 69 4 - - 2.526
{0) 14,334 22,646 291 - 37,271
2,080 993 13,375 21 202 16,860
4,532 15,396 36,025 502 202 56,657
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD.

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continned)

The table below sets oirt the fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

-30 June 2024

Schemes
‘Financialassets

Corporatc Bond

Tréasury bonds

Treasury bills

Commercial papeis

Loan and advances to-third parties
Mortgage loans

.Advances to contractors

Dividend receivable

Other assets

Deposits with financial institutions
"Cash and bank balances

Total

Financial liahilities

-Amounis retdined on-constfuction contracts
"Benefits payable

Other payables:

Total

Level Level 2 Level 3 Fotal Fair Ci_lr_rying
. . _ _ . value ..amnnnt
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
98,256 94,256 98,256
- 573,935 - 573,935 573935
- 93,259 - 93,259 93,259
- 96,959 - 96,959 96,959
- 81,028 - 81,028 81,028
- 15 - 15 15
. 3,034 - 3,034 3,034
- 9,772 - 9,772 9,772
- 21,610 - 21,610 21,610
- 350,251 - 350,251 ‘350,251
- 193,414 - 193414 193.414
- 1,521,531 - 1,521,531 1,521,531
- 2,644 - 2,644 2,644
- 39259 - 39,259, 39,259
- 21,035 21,035 21,033
- 62,938 - 62938 62,938
438
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 Juhe 2023

Schemes

Financial assets

Corporate Bond

Treasury bonds.

Treasury bills

Commercial papers

Loarr and advances to third parties:
Mortgag_c leans

Advances to contractors

Dividend recaivable

Other assets

Dué from / {Due 10} other schemes
Deposits with-financial instifutions
Cash and -bank balances

Total

Finanrcial liabilifies

Amounts retained on canstruction
contracts

Benefits payable,
Other payables

Total

Level Level 2 L Total 'Fair Cariving:
evel 3 value amount

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions: Frw'millions
- 57,699 - 57.699 57,699

- 285,141 - 285,141 285,141

- 62,399 - 62,399 62,399

- 29,751 - 29,751 29,751

. 33,935 - 33,935 33935

- 1t - 11 1

- 6,385 - 6,385 6,385

- 8,870 . B870 8,870
- 10,083 - 10,083 10,083

- 279,136 - 279,136 279,136

- 203,149 . 203,149 203,149

- 976,559 - 976,559 976,559
- 1,453 - 1,453 1,453

- 29,204 - 29,204 29,204

- 19,920 - 19;920 19,920

- 50,577 . 50,577 50,577
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30-JUNE 2024

8. Operating segments

8.1. Basis for Segmentation

Rwanda ‘Social Security Board has the following five schemes as shown:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Reportable segments

1 Operations-

Pension and Occupational hazard

Contributions from-employers and employees in Rwandaand
provides benefits to pensioners, invalids and other beneficiaries

Medical

L Provides medical insurance services:

Community Based Health
Initiative

"Provides community-based health insurance scheme

Maternity

.| Provides maternity leave insurance services

Heza)

Long term _sav'iﬁgs scheme (Ejo

| Ass_iéti'ng_ the public to acculnulate_sav_i'ﬁgs__fbr' adi gniﬁ'e_d and

secure retirement, Ejo Heza is an inclusive scheme which targets

both salaried and non-salaried workers

manag_éd separately within the Board’s management-and intemal reporting structure.

8.2. Contribution to performance.

The below table shows key scheme ratios to RSSB as an entity.

Although the schemes are overseen by the samie management team, they have different objectives and are

2023/2024 Pension Medical CBHI Maternity Ejo Heza
Contribufions 47% 25% 22% % 3%
Benefits Paid 2831% 31.04% 39.20% 1.10% 0.36%
Investment income 69.7% 23.9%. 1.1% 2.7% 2.6%
Assets 70% 3% 2% 3% 2%
2022/2023 Pension Medical CBHI Maternity 'Ejo Heza
Contributions 44% 25%. 25% 3% 3%
Benefits. Paid 27.43% 30.28%. 41.06% - 107% 0.17%
Investment income 59.2% 32.1% 1.1%: 3.7% O 3.9%
Assets 70% 23% 2% 3% 2%
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL —ﬂ.mw.om.ﬂ.ﬁ AND —EZ}ZOFP—.. STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8.3. Information about repertable segments

8.3.1. Statement of comprehensive income per scheme

Maternity Leave
- Schierie
2024 023 20624 i 1024 2023 2024 2023 rir2h 2023 2024 2023

Notes  Frowmlllons.  Fro'milions  Fowmbboms  Fro'millans  Frowifliom  Frw'wis  Fw'ellons  F'oifens  Fromitlons  Fes'milions  Frs'mifians

_Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Schemé. Ejo Heza . Total

Dealings with members

Gontritutions, ) 181,827 153,240 98,827 86,249 84,652 85,654 13266 11,336 9,758 15,120 388330 347,599
Benefits paid 10 (52,758)  (45854)  (S7.850) (50,627}  (73052) (6865} (20513 {1,788) (679} (217 (186391) {167,197
Netadditions fram deaings-with members 129,068 107386 0,977 35,622 11,600 17,003 1,216 9,548, 9,079 10,843 201,939 180,402
Rehirns on m.=.4mm=.=.ﬁ.“.~.m
Tnvestment income 1 94,580 19:577 45425 35,141 2,719 1,317 6547 4,049 6,357 4,535 155,628 124,615
Chanpe ii1 fair value of financial assets at fair volue : 1 s ) ; ; B - - - - - o
ihrough profitor loss M..,_ 63568  (16;588) 7,180 {658) 70,748 (17.247
Uhange-in fair value of investment properties. ¥ - - - - - - - - - - - =
Wrilé' back/{off) of prior yearFV loss and other - - - - - - . . - - - !
adjustnienls )
Realized (loss)gain on disposal of assets 14 14775 ‘658 5,498 - 3} - - - - - 20,269 £58
o toss an finanial assets held at dmortised 15 (1.703) 108 (533) 375) (78) (114) {94) (risy (122) an (2540 £3575)
Less:investment management experises 16 (3676 (1917) (231) (235) - . - - 57 (%) 3os (2580
Net returns on‘investments 167,544 61,838 57,339 33873 2,638 1,202 b5 3,976 6,167 4088 240,141 104,574
Graats 17 1.716 - B - 3,077 12,988 370 . 1,486 1075, 6249 14,013
Othier fncqme i8 5786 8291 1,238 1.39% 57 1 2 L 12 - 7,095 7,691
Expenditures
Staff costs 19 {2453 {2,150 (27663 (2.283) (6.653) {6:226) 1242) (252} (660 (702 (12814 111,614}
Administrative. expenses 20 (2.827) {2.583) (225%) {1,852) (4,044) (3:592) (235) (223} (257 (185)  (9.518) (8436}
Depreciation and amortization charpe 21 (413 (189 {1,364) (1,207 (309) 1159) (30) (2 (64), {50) (2,182 (2:206}
Other expenses 23 (1,043 351 {10,510) (8311) (L.043) (551) £50) 21 e - (12763) (8:531)
Total expenses {6,738) - (5171 {16,883) {13,653) {12,048 {18,518} {5971 {499} (1,098) (938)  (37376) {30,787}
Net income/{toss} for-the year 297376 170341 82,658 57,240 5323 20,667 17,444 12,926 15,246 15819 418,048 176,193
Other compreheénsive intome
Revaluation gainf{loss} ou property and equipmient 23 - - - . - - - . - - . .
Increase in net assets for the year 97376 170,341 82,658 57,240 5,323 30,667 17444 12,926 15,245 15018 418,048 276,193
51.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continucd)

8.3.2. Statement of financial position per scheme

Pension Scheme ‘CBHI Scheme Mlalernity Leave Scheme Ejo Heza Tmal

2024 2023 2023 2024 2005 2624 2023 2024 2023 2624 2013

. Frw'millipns Fiw'miltions Fry'millions Fre'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frn'millions Frw'iaillions: Fra'millions:  Frw'millisns
Assete
Property-and 24 1324 LI 11455 12,700- 41 443 52 T s 4 13,258 14,955
equipment. - . g § b g !
Intangible assets 25 1512 1512 - 1 - 1 - - 0 2i% 1,694 1,732
Investment properties 26 i1, 644 217,588 12,430 12,530 - - - - - . 191173 230018
Tnvestment propert] 5. ’
in-the progess of a1d0 22668 - - - - - - - - 23,940 -22 668
eonsiriction a7
&ww&.w..:n__n_ far sale 28 - - - -. - - . - - - - -
Equity invesiments 2% 672,320 540,723 53 463 60,79 - - - - - - 724,653 b10514
Cirporate-bonds k11 52,500 58,158, 4210 15671 - - . - 1,536 - 98,256 71829
Treasury bonds 3 320,34 315408 168,652 129,339 . - 32961 32,357 52,008 41,587 573,935 518,645
“Treasury bills 32 o8 6,568 47127 32424 - 19,711 8,186 2356 - - 93,259, 64,070
‘Commerpial papers k) g,mmo 57,938 - - - - - - - - 96,959 41538
L.oan and-advances 1o J— - o :
third paties 34 58,105 3E2S 22,024 - . . B . . 21078 20 536
‘Martgage Toans. 35 15 3 - - - - - - - - 15 32
Inventory 36 74 71 76 72, 92 13 7 7 - 250 245
-Advances ta . : . ) : .

- . - - - - - - b 4

contraclors ¥ 3,034 3370 : el . ) 1,034 400
Dividend receivable 38 942 12,358 361 1,067 - - - - - - 5712 13,423
Oither assets 30 3938 6910 435 254 17,143 14,955 31 19 16 . 21610 23,i37
D from:(Due to) : - . . . en
cther sehemes 40 {3,675) {6,294 4,940 6,553 {114 27 {152 - - -
Deposits wilh . ; - . . . - . . AT
financial insttitions 41 145,613 117,007 181,851 <. - 16,497 12,365 6,294 3941 350,251, 368,100
mm_ww_”ww bank 42 92,102 68.497 53,677 33,355 33.6% 9,200 12318 5,158 16017 1,315 193,414 127,565
Tutal assets- 1,738,584 1,440,106 560,749 415,504 51,159 44370 60,896 52,061 61,742, 47,205 2,482,530 2,089,346
Less: Liabisities
Current liabilities
-Ampunts retiined on ez B p g
congtruction contracts 2,351 2450 ki &% 14 4 1 - 2,644 2,526
Benafits payable - - 15,536 13334 23;277 22648 456 251 - - 39,259 31T
Other paysbiés- 43 3,457 2,080 2,383 593 14,199 13,375 435 211 S60 i) 21,035 16,860
Deferred ipcome 44 - - - - - - - - - 1,308 - 1,305
“Tatal liabi 6,008 4,532 17,986 15,396 37,491 ‘36,025 893 502 560 1,507 62,938 £7.362
M”-nww““m_.ui_sz? 1,732976 1,435,574 542,763 469,109 13,468 B34 69,003 51,560 61,182 45,798 2,819,892 1,401,384

[ D | f




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8.3.2. Statement of financial position per scheme

Represented by
Capital

Accumulated
member funds and
retained eamings

Revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve

Unallocated
pension
contributions
reserve

Statutory reserves

Ejo Heza member
Savings

Total reserves

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme Maternity Leave Scheme Ejo Heza Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 0 2024 2023 2024 2023
Notes Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
53 53 1,179 1,179 - - - - - - 1,232 1,232
555.586 471,384 505,043 429,568 13,668 8344 69.003 51,560 12,452 6,964 1,155,751 967 819
45

46 87,148 87,148 7.834 7.834 - - - - - - 94,982 94,982
47 4,204 159,364) 28,707 21,527 - - - - - - 32,911 (37.837)
4= 2,180 2,154 . 2,180 2,154

- ’
48 1,083,805 934,200 - - - - - - - - 1,083,805 934,200
50 . ) ) . . ) ) : 48,730 38,835 48,730 38.835
1,732,976 1,435,574 542,763 460,109 13,668 8,344 69,003 51,560 61,182 45,798 2,419,592 2,001,385

53
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY. BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8.3.3. Statements of changes in members’ funds and reserves

...wm at 30 June 2024

Pension scheme

Medical scheme:

CBHI scherne

Maternily Teave scheme

‘Ejo Heza

Total

As a1 30 June 2023

Peitsion scheme
Medical schieme
CBH]I scheme:

Materuity leave schemé

Ejo Heza

Total

. . Accumulated ) Unallocated
Statement. Capi Onn..__uu.:.onn_ Pension member Ejo _..r.".qh Fair value:  Revaluation " ‘pension )
e apital hazard Lo Munds and mesber R i A, Total
referénce = reserves e . reserve. reserve  contributions
FRSETVES retained funds
- reserve
ezruings . . .
m..‘..s_‘im:?nm .m..,imim_m.anm Fru'millions  Frw'millions ﬁqi..ﬂ:.:oau Frw'millions —.,._...i.”q..:::_.u.um Frw'millions Frw'millions
8334 53 81,123 A1002,682 555,586 . 4204 87,148 2,181 1,732,976
8332 1,179 - - 505,043. - 28,707 7834 . 542,764
83373 - - - 13,667 N - - - 13,667
8334 - - - 69,003 - - - - 69,003
2335 - - - 12,452, 48,730 . - - 61,181
1232 1,123 1,003,682 1,155,751~ 38,730 32,011 94,982 2,181 2,419,592
Accumulated —
i . . " , Unallocated
Statement \ OS:B:.E..E Pemsion Ea.._“u_u..:. m.,.._ﬂ. Heza Fairvalee  Revaluation ‘peasion
. Capital hnzard R funds and member . T -l Total
reference . rFESErves . - TESErvVe reserve  rontribrtions ;
TESErves retained funds
N reserve
earnings
Fro'milliens Frw'millions Erw'milliors Frw'millions Frw'miltions Frw'millios Frw'mitlions  Erw'millions Frw'millions
8331 33 “78.522 855,673, 471,384 - (59,364) B7.148 2,154 1,435,574
8332 1,179 - - 429 568 - 21,527 7.834 460,109
8333 - - - 8,345, - . - - 8,345
8334 . - - 51,560 - - - - 51,560
‘8335 - - - 6,963 38:835 - - . 45,798:
1,232 78,523 855,678 967,819 38,835 _u..q..w.uc 94,982 2,154 2,001,385

Note: Since the establishment of Pension and Occupational hazards in 1962, the two schemes have been managed as one. Pension and Occupational hazards

contributions rates being 6% and 2% respectively. Their reserves are apportioned as per the Presidential Order of 22 August 1974 as modified and complemented

m.iu.zc?...

I

by Law No. 06/2003 of 22/03/2003 Modifying and Completing the Decree Law of August 24; 1974 Concerning Organisation of Social Security.
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ANNUAL-REFORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)

8.3.3.1. Statement of member’s fund and reserves — Pension and oceupational kazards scheme

Orecupationil Hazards Reserves Tensions reserves
X - Ceeupobic Accumalated i
.azeqw_._au._qﬂ Creupaianal falhizard _.w. s”“ Pension - Total Toral members Foirvale  Rovafuation - m.au__.“..mmsa .
Capital . LI b orard Scturity Working o Labon Techpieal: Feniion~ siatutary fund amd - pensy Tutal
. Technical e iint Hazard LS Reicrves crtuined rescrve reserve | eoniribitions.
reserve feserye capiLit Friecves reserve FESEVES Rahidd’ i ‘resérve
FRSETVE o .nnw_.-_hn.u -
Frw' millians  Fres "millions. Fro' millions. Fro' millisns  Few* millions.  Fro* millions Few' millions  Frov'millions  Fre' millions Fre 'millions”  Few' willionis
A | C D E=BCHD F G HaF+G. I=E+H.
At 1.July 2022 53 63,922 8,668 3,341 75,732 641,035 46,492 727,527 503,259 415396 (42,716} 87,048 1,964, 1;265,044
Adjustnient for priar-year - - - R . . . . B () . R . "
H“HM.,.ME et assets for - 1379 978 333 2790, 118,161 9,990 128,151 130,541 55988 (16,588) - - 70,348
_.ﬂ.m.e_v_rw._.ﬁ.on gainf|oss) for R . B . . B . . B A .
thé year ) - -
Reclassification of
unallocated contnibutions N R . . N - - - - - - a8 282
fram other payables to ) : ’ ’ ) : ’ : i .
§.mﬂf_mw
Additiondl unallocated . )
contributiens during the “ - . . - - - - - - - - {93) (53}
yor
Allacation of previously o B . . ) . .
unallocated contnbutions 53 65,401 8646 3475 78,512 FU0,196 - 56,482 B55,678 934,200 471,384 (%9,264) 37,148 T,054 1,435,514
during the year . ’
A1 30 June 2023 53 65,401 G646 3475 78,522 795,196 55 482 855,678 934,200, 471,384 (59.364) 82,158 2,154 1435574,
Atl u__._m.nep..u wu 65,401 5,646 3475 ﬂ.m.mun. 799,196 ShydBl Mmm_mu“w 934,200 471,384 (39,364) w.u.mhu 2,154, 143551
Adjustment for prior year - - - - - - - - - 1 - - . )
ﬁw‘ﬂﬂa net assets for - 1183 1,618 ] 2,601 15910 1h094 147,004 149,605 B2h4 . 63,568 - 297.3%.
Reclassification of
unallosgted confribulions . . R B . R _ } N N N R B .
from other payables 16
reserves
Additional unallozated
contributions during the - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
year .

..».__.Onnm.nz.om._u-n«.mu:m_w .
unallocated contributions - “ - . . . . - . . . . 162- 142
duning the year

At30 June 2024 - - - - - : - . - - . - (135) 1135}
. 53 66,584 16,694 3,844 §1,123 935,106, 67,576 1,002,682 1,083,805 555,586 4,204. 27,148 2,181 1,732,976
35
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY. BOARD o
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At 1 July 2022

>..&=m.§n2 for prior year
Profit for the year
Revaluation loss forthe year
At30 June 2023

AcT July 2023

Adjustment for prior year:

Profit for the year

‘Revaluation loss for the yéar

At 30 June 2024

8.3.3.2, Statement of member’s fund and reserves — Medical scheme

Capital Retained Fair Value  Revaluation “Tofal
Aplta earnings Reserve Reserve -

Frw'millions Frw'nmillions  Frw'millions  Frw'milliens Frw'millions

1,179 371,670 22,186 7,834 402,862

- n o - (1)

- 37,899 (658) - 57:241

1,179 429,568 21,527 7,834 460,109

1,179 429,568 21,527 7,834 460,109

- (4} T - ..A.S

- 75,478 7.180 - 82658

1,179. 505,043 28,707 7,834 542,764

8.3.3.3. Statement of member’s fund and reserves — CBHI scheme

At 1 July 2022

-Adjustment 16 opening balances

Profit for the year
At 30 June 2023

A1 July 2023

Adjustment to opening balances
Profit for the year

At30 June 2024

I e e

Retained earnings

Frw'millions
12,320)

®

20.667

8,344

8,344

5,323

13,677
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8.3.3.4. mnw.ﬁsni of member’s fund- and reserves — gﬁngmﬁ._ﬁuqm. scheme .
Retained earnings

Friv'millions
At1 July 2022 : 38,634
Adjustmient for prior year “
Profit for the year 12.926
At30 June 2023 51,560
At1.duly 2023 51,560
Adjustrient for prior year -
Profit.for the vear 17.443
At30 June 2024 69,003
8.3.3.5. Statement of member’s-fund and reserves — Ejo Heza
Member Unallocated Retained
‘fund member earninps- Total
unes cdntributions raings .
Erw'millions Fiw'millions Fro'millions  Frw'millions
At'1 July 2022 F1.610 46 3,115 38,772
Adjustment for prior vear - E (51) G1)
Member coqtributions 11,120 (11;120) -
Govemnmerit cotitributions - - - -
Unallecated member funds - 39 39
Net income/(Joss). for the year - - 15,019 15,019
JInterést allocated to membérs - - -
At 30 June 2023 38,730 103 6,963 45,798
At 1 July 2023 38,730 105 6,963 43,798
.>&._.~mn:na for prior year . - - -
Membercontributions 7125 - (7,125) -
Government contributions . 2633 - (2,633) -
Changé in unallocated mefber funds. - 137 137
Net-income/(loss) for the year - - 15246 15,246
Interest allocated to members - - -
At 30 June 2024 _ 48,488 242 12,452 61,181
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (i naa:.azm&.
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'RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT ANP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

8.3.4. Statement of cash flows per scheme.

Pensinn Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI S¢hemic ‘Maternity leave Scheme Ejo Heza Total
2024 2023 ‘2004 2023 024 2023 2024 208 3024 2023 2024, 2023

Fro'milloss  Frw'milliogs Frw'millions.  Frw'millions ons Frw'millions  Few'millions  Fro'millions  Fro'miliens,  Fro'millions  Frw'millions  Frw'millions

Inevease in net assets for the year 1316 170,341 82,656 37,2 5,333 20,667 17,444 12,925 15,246 15019 418,048 276,193 ;
Adjusted Fur: m
onnd amartization 415 789 1364 1207 kD] 159 30 3 &4 50 2,182 2,206 ;
Invesiment income. {54,580; (795771 {44:498) (35,141} (2,715} {1,317 {6,546) {4,048 (E35T) (4,535) (154,697} {124.619) w
Realized gain on disposal of assets (equity o )
investments, PPE, Assets held.lor sale and (14,774 638 (5,498) - 3 - - - - - (20,270) 657
Investment properties)
Fait vafue loss/{gain) on equity : - . . . . o
nvestents (65.36%) 16558 (1150 658 - . - - - - {70,748 17,247
Fair value- Joss/igatn) on'invesimeni _
propériies - - - " - - - - b - -
Write backiwiite-offs - - - - - - - - - - - -
Unreatised m..oqmu.m_._.—. ngn___nbmm foss. - - - - - - - - - - - -
Goverament grants T - . - 3,077 - {12,938) 370) - (1,086) {1.026) {6,249 (g
Impairment provision (IFRS 9. ECL) 1611 {104) 476 kyid (70} 114 5 M 13- 17 2,199 575
Otherad; ts.of opening bl Il 1 i ] - 2 1 - - 51 i 54
In-kind expenditure - - - - - - - - - - - -
In-kind income - - - - . - - - - - - -
Operating income Tor changes in : iRl g L o i . . .
warkiog capital 124,763 108,656 27,324 24,339, (rx3]] 6,637 16,610 g2 7,999 9,576 170,465 158,308
. e e . -
_._anqnmm&_ Decrease in-advaack to 347 3,081 3 N - _ - - . - - 378 3.051
contractors. . . B k
i Increasey/ Decrease in other.assels 2,977 {3447y (229) g (2,216) (3,1 112y 2 116} - 492 (12174
{Increase)Treciease in amounts due N ¥ i . -
froriif{due fo) other schemes’ {1,619} A178 1612 (5,681} 87 AN () 0 ’
{Increase VDecrease in nventory k| 14 [ 5] 9 4} 11, m 1 - - (3] 31
reasef( Dectease} in medicalln - - 1,192 4938 631 3,206, 165 mn - - 1388 8067
claims payables ! : : :
Incrensed{ Decredse) in other payables 1,377 (776} 1,398 62) B2§ 12,386) 225 14 358 57 4,175 {3,053)
Iacrease/{Detrense) i contrict rétentions . 9% 1,066 B [ 10 i 1 - - - 118 1,073
Increaseidecrease in deferred income - - - - o - - - 11,305) 468 {.305) 68
.j_._ﬁn.‘.wmn ._.=._._=m=._..=.um3n_ pension 7 189 _ - - - - - 137 59 164 248
cantributions reserve -
Net cash Eows from operating activities 127,046 113,968 31,326 23,567 (885} {1.:284) 10,508 9,601 174 10,160 176,468 156,811




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARENDED 3) JUNE 2024
Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme Maternity eave Scheme Eja.Heza Tatal
2084 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2013 2024 2024 2023

¥rw'millions Erw'millioss Fro'millions  Frw'milions  Fri'millions  Fiw'millions  Frw'millions  Fro'million.  Frw' miltions Fro‘miltions  Fro'millivos
Cash Mows used in investing activities:
Dividend incame recéived iB,07T0 17,290 2,620 2,207 - - - - - - 20,690 19,57
Rent received 3,163 3054 (455 637 - - - - - - 7725 3,601
Othef inleres incame feceived (current 3177 3,366 2,752 2,749 1,570 1331 “393 650 107 - 8,599 5,096
aceounts, calt deposit and monpage loans) h N T
T._Hrmmnm for investmient property under (1.272) ﬁc,mw.mu _ - _ - " - . - {1,273 :Pm_m..e
construclion : ! .
Purchase 6f property and équipment 204 (B40) {121y {1464} (281 {330) 8 - - 159 (68T {2,715
Purchase of int - - - - - - - - - - - -
Purdhase of investment properiies {68.270) {9,536) - - - - - - - - (68,270} {9,538
Purchasg of equity investmenis. {53.038) {82,300} - 4,648y - - - - - - (53,038) 136,949)
Proveeds from disposal of Equity 1,449 Ta49 29,081 - ~ - _ - - - 30,900 3,849
nvestnenls
Purchase of Corporaté bonds (39141} (500 - (15,000) - - - - (L504) - (50,645) {15,500y
Receipts from settlement of Corporate . . o in . ) . N 5ot € .
bonds (Interest and principal) 8,295 6,458 4,573 180 - R b = 97 12,95 7438
Receipts.from Treasury band - coupon 16T 28,828 17,300 27,224 . - 3838 1,735 5,706 6,177 191,021 63,965
interest income received : :
Receipis from Treasury bill maturities . ; ; . ; N . ; . yar. .
{literest dnd firincipal) 13,380 35,360 32,100 59340 Ti 164 (5,162} {275} 406 131,881 94,325 H
,w.wnm..__.:,m .w.om.m.ﬂ&s.s._na.nmﬁ papers’ 6000 4678 - N R B . . . . 6.000 4608
alarities (principal and interest) i -
Investment in Treasury bands 37.845) (125,350) (39612 (87,883} - - 1633) (25,694): 0,521 (15.857) (83,306} (254,684
Anvestment in Treasury bills {39,583) 121,322 162,833) {56,705 (50,219} {19,781 - - Gen - {153,032 (91.808)
investment i Commercial papers {37,209 (27329) - “ - - - - - - (37.203) (27,3247
Receipts'from settlement of loans and T et oy " _ _ _ _ 394 087
advances 1o ihird parties - L3zl ey 2,665 - - 47 3,
Additionial loans and advances to third : ) : - - - - I -
parties during the year ' (54.50%) - - - - - ' (54.508)
Seftfement of mofigage Joans pia k) - - - - - - - - 27 27
Plavemeit of term deposits during the year- (87.641) (55,6009 130490} 189,600} - - (14,800} {12,081) i6,100) (3,800} {238,231} {160,480
Seufement of lerm déposits diring the year 72741 70,524 100,784 100,514 - - 11,518 24,49 4919 2,709. 189,179 198,237
(Tricrease)/Dectease in cafl deposit - n - - - - - - - - - -
Refund of prior year purchase of. _ _ _ _ .
Tavestme properties - Ru plats - - - - - h b
Proceeds from dispozal of PPE and L ~ _ - . . . N - 6368
‘Investment properfies 34,028 6,365 54,028 3
Net cash used in investing activities {(186;057) (150,245) (20,843) {53,584) 2223 {19.001) #119) (1,17 {8,084} (10;826)- {116,86%) (245,529}
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL! ATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CDHI Scheme Muternity leave Scheme Ejo Heza Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 2683 2024 025 2024 2023

Frw'millions  Fra'millisns  Fra'millioas - Frw'millions  Friv'niilliogs Fri'millions  Fre'millions-  Few'millions  Fro'miflions  Frw'millions  Frw’millions

Cashllow from fnancing sictivities

Government subsidjes 1LHE - - - 3,077 12,988 o - 1,086 946 6,249 13,934

Govemment'grants retunded - - - - - - - - - - - =
I in unidentified b

conkributinns " " - - = B - - - - - =

‘Net cash frem financing activities 76 - - - 3017 12,958 370 -. 1,086 46 6249 13,934

Net inctease in cash and cash equivalents 23,605 136,977} 10,483 30,016} ‘24,426 {7,208y 7,159 {1,573 176 30 65,849 (75,5845
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 82497 105,473 43,194 73211 9,200 16.498 5,159 6,712 1,515 1,235 127,565 203,345

Cash nnd cash equivalenés ai 30 Jure 92,102 68,497 53,617 3,194 33,636 9,200 12,318 5,159 1,691 1,515 193,413 127,565
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATLMLNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9, Contributions

Sub-Note - 2024: 2023

Frw'millions Erw'millions

Pension scheme 9.1 181,827 153,240
Medical scheme 9.2 98,827 86,249
Commuriity Based [ealth Insurance (CBHI) scheme ) 84,652 85,654
Materniity leave scheme 9.4 (3,266 11,336
Ejo Heza 9.5 9,758 11,120
388,330 347,599

9.1. Contributions — Pension scheme

In accordance with Law. No 45/2010 concerning the responsibilities, organization and functioning of the
Rwanda Social Securlty Board, pension contributions are: determined at 8% of an employee’s gross salary
{exclusive of transport allowance), of which 5% is pald by the employer and 3% is paid by the employee: Of the
amounts paid by the employer, 2% relates to- employee occupational hazards while 3% goes towards the
employee’s pension.

2024 2023

Frw'millions Frw'millions

Pension And Oceupational Hazard Contributions 168,509 142.886
Pension And Occui;afional"Hazard Coniributien Penafties 12,259 9,523
Pénsion and Occupational Hazard Coniribution arrears _ 1,059 831
181,827 153,240

9.2 Co_ntributions - Medical scheme

Rwanda Social Secunt_y .Boarc_l, b_o_th emp]oyee an_d empl_o_yer ‘medical contrlbut_tons are determined at 7.5% of an
individual’s basic salary,

2024 2023

Frw'millions Frw'millions

Medical contributions from eniployers 97,537 85,117
Pénsioners medical contributions 1,290 1,132
98,827 86,249

9.3. Contributions — CBHI scheme

In accordance with Article 2 of the Prime Mitister’s order No.034/01 of 13/01/2020 related to the Community-
Based Health Insurance Scheme contributions, contributors to community-based health insurance are the
following:

The Government.

Employees-in State organs and those in private sector.

1
2
3. Entities providing health insutarce services operating in Rwanda,
4 Telecommunication comparies.

3

Petrol-and gas oil trade companies.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY. BOARD -
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

CBHI contributions received by RSSB during the year were as follows:

Government contributions
Members coniributions
Insurance contfibution
Employees contributions
Telecommunication contribution
Pétrol and gas ol coniributions
CBHI Contribution Pariners
Other CBHI Subsidics
Contributions - RDB:
Contributions - RNEC

2024 2023
Frvw'millions Frw'millions
8,062 11,853
30,890 29010
£3.189. 11672
8,745 7,381
8,397 8,055
10,028 12,670
4,800 4,552
417 336
124 126
84,652 85,654

*Amount for partner contribution from Tmbuto Foundation has been reclassified to other income as grants.

The Prime minister’s order No.034/01. of 13/01/2020 introduced new sources of CBHI contribution income
which include Employees,; Telecommunication companies, Patrot and Gas oil and other CBHI subsidies.

9.4, Contributions — Mat_er‘n'i_ty leave scheme

Pursuant to- Law N° 003/2016 of 30/03/2016. establishing and governing maternity leave benefits scheme. The
contribution for maternity leave benefits is equal to zero-point six percent (0.6%) of the salary to which the
coritribution is subscribed. The émployer and the employee each contribute zero-point three percent (0.3%) of

the. salary to which the contribution is subscribed.

Contributions -Public sector

Contributicns -Private sector

9.5, Contributions/Savings — Ejo Heza

Members contributions/savings’
‘Government contributions to member savings

2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw!'millions
5,510 5,003
7,156 6,333
13,266 11,336
2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions:
7,125 11,120
2,633 -
9,758 11,1200

62




e

B

e

rred

B

S |

RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
10. Benefits paid

Sub-Note
Pension scheme 10:1
Medical scheme- _ 0.
Conimunity Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme 10.3
‘Maternity leave scheme 104
Ejo Heza scheme 10,5

10.1.  Benefits paid — Pension and Occupational hazards scheme

Benefits paid to pensioners

Benefits paid to deceased members’ beneficiaries

-Sub-total benefits paid

in‘capaé_ity benefits

Other occupational hazards

Subtotal - O¢cupational hazard paid
Total benefits paid

10.2.  Benefits paid — Médical scheme

Acts medical from partner hospitals, health centres and clinjcs

Partners p}iarmacyj tosis’

10.3.  Benefits paid — CBHI scheme

CBHI medicine
CBHI medical acts

10.4. 'Benefits expense - Maternity leave Scheme
Maternity légve bernefits’

10.5. Benefits expense — Ejo Heza Scheme

‘Benefits

2024 2023

Frw'millions Frw'millions.

52,759 45,854

57.850 50,627

73,052 68,651

2,051 1,788

679 277

186,391 167,197

2024 2023

Frw'millions Frw'millions

41,530 36,166
10,045 3,209

51,576 44,376

1,183 469

- 1,009

1,183 1,479

52,759 45,854

2024 2023

Frw'millions Frw'niillions

33,136 32,332
24,714 18,295

57,850 ‘50,627

2024 2023

Frw'millions Frw'millions

29,001 26,707

44,041% 41,944

73,052 68,651

2024 _ 2023

Frw'millions Frw'millions

2,051 1,788

2,051 1,788

2024 2623

Frw 'millions Frw 'millions

679 277

679 277
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD.
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contitiued)

11. Investmentincome

RSSB generates most of its income from interest on Treasury .wonaw and bills, term deposits-with financial msmmgsoﬂm and current accounts.

Pension Scheme CBHI Ejo Heza Total
..qm.MN 2024 2023 2024, 2023 2024 2023 2024 ucu..u. 2024 2023 2624, 2023
Frw' Frw' Erw’ Frw' Frw' Fre' Frw' Frw' Frw! Frw! Frw' Frw'
millions millions millions millions millions: millions  millions miflions millions millions millions millions
Dividend income :L _ mLow 21.030. 1 boo. 3,057 . - - - S . .. 17,017 24,087
Rental income 112 3,163 3.054 465 522 - - - - - - 3,629 3,576
Interest income:-
Tredsury bills R 2,295 155 4,031 2,878 1,150 14 692 112 3 - 8.171 4,158
Term deposits with 13 " | _
financial institutions : 13,876 10,654 17,664 14,475 - - 1,638 1,615. 404 253 33,581 26597
Commercial papers. 33 m,.mm..m 3,025 - - - - - - - - 8.3 m..w ..m.om.m
Carporate bonds 30 7212 .m.,.owm 1,145 1,246 - - 1 - 135 - 8494 8233
Tréasuty bonds 31 40,760 27469 17.468 10,214 - - 3.822 1,672 5,708 4,250 67,758 43,605
Mortgage loang 35 10 15 - - - - - . - - 10 15
Cutrent accounts 3,777 4,187 2,744 2,749 1570 1,303 393 650: 107 31 8.590 8.92¢
94,589 793577 43425 35,141 2,719 1,317 6,547 4,049 6,357 4,535 155,628  124,61%
. 64
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECGRITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11.1. Dividend income

Pensian Scheme . Medical Scheme. Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Friv'millions Frw'millions Frw'mitlions
Local investments
Bank of Kigali Limited 7,326 9.850 187 251 T.513 10,101
Bralirwa Limited 2,279 1,740 241 184 2,520 1,924
Crystal Telecom Lid 479 796 - - 479 796
Ruliba Clays Limited 44 . ; 44 -
1&M Bank 106 138 - - 106 138
Cagebanque. - - 918 - 918 -
Rwands Investment Group Limitcd 1,877 324 563 97 2,440. 421
Rwarida stock exchange 15 17 - - . 15 17
CIMWERA - 1,062 - 1062 - 2,125
Sub-tofal (1) 12,126 13,927 1,909 1,595 14,035 15,522
Foreign investments
Safaricom Limited 521 360 - - 921 560
Eastern and Southern Africa. Trade Develepment Bank (PTA Bank) ] 1,452 - 1,462 - 2,914
Afrexim Bank 110 84 - - 3t} 84
EABL 11 253 - - iT 253
Equity bank group 1,941 2,803 - - 1,941 2,803
KCB Bank .Oﬁoﬁt.. Limited - 1,950 - - - 1,850
Sub-total (2) 2,982 7,103 - 1,462 2,982 8,365
Grand total (1+2) 15,108. 21,030. 1,909 3,057 17,017 24,087
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11.2. Rental income

Pension Sclieme - Medieal' Scheme CBHL Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'miflions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions. Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
Kacyiru Executive Apartments | 263 345 - - - - - - 263 345
Grand-Pension Plaza, 1,227 1,150 . . - - - - 1,227 1,190
Other Rental income 435 36 - - - - - - 45 36
Nyanza Penston Plaza 107 111 . . - - - . 107 111
Karongi Pension Plaza 222 227 . - - - - - 222 227
Musanze Pension Plaza. 104 85 - - - - - - 104 85
Rwamaggina Pension Plaza 15 8 - - - - - - 15 8
Nyarutarima Plaza 1,208 1,052 - - - - - - 1,208 1,052

Dacters’ plaza

TowerT - - 36 37 - - - - 36 w
Tower I - - 429 485 - - - - 429 485
3,190 3,054 464 522 - - - - 3,654 3,576
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1L3; Interestincome on term deposits with financial institutions

Feasion .m..nwm_um.

Ejo Heza Total .
2024 2023 2024 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2033
Erw'millions; Frw'millions Frw'millisns Frw'milliond Frw'milliens - Fro'miliioss  Frw'millions .ﬁ..!..!::.:_u .m.:w.._.bm:.m:_._.m
Intcrest income an long ferm defosit

.cm,a._o_uani Bank of Rwanda (BRD) 2,048 2222 ENED 2334 - - - - 4,189 4557
Bank of Kigali 3.408 1,30 251 13 - z - _ 1656 1,338

. Bani Populaire dy Rywinda 170 176 715 811 9% 2z - - 992 ‘L0

‘Commercial Bank-of Afted n.mf.y.mhe_& - - = = = = = - o = -
Zinama C56 4349 2,925 3,657 1,967 - - - - 8.006 4892
KB Rwanda Limited m 138 1 i - - - - 330 213
Equits Bank Limited - - 677 240 - - - - 677 240
Bank of Africa 137 1o - - - - - - 157 1ar
.ﬁam«&man_cn - - = - 60 - = = 60 "
KEB Rwand4 Limited - 2 - - - 1 - &

 Aceess Bartk Limited 180 61 218 120 - - - - 398 181
1&M Bank Rvvaida Limited 120 135 - - - z Ry 135
Jali - - - - 65 39 - - 65 39
£ro Bank Rvanda Limited 120 - = = - - - - 120 -
sub-total (1) 10,581 6,986 8,054 5,702 an 7 s - 18,841 12,765
Interest income on short term depaosits
Actess Biwk Limited 159 106 1089 1304 - - - - 1,248 1411
m.EEEu wov:".n_.ﬂn SA 408 - 2,802 -BhE - 108 34 a9 3,383 . 201
Cogebangque = - - 347 - 467 - - N ..w:

. Bank of Kigali Limited 2,059 1,860 2997 2,267 - a1z - - § 36 4369
Feobank Rwanda Limited 370 426, 126° - 352 - - - g4z ey
KCB Rwanda Limited 128 656 1,080 l412 480 362 - - 1,699 2428
1M Bank Ruwanda Limited - - 333 1,064 - - - - 353 1064
Zigama CSS - - 184 2640 - - - - 54 26
Equity bank: limited - - 958 1454 287 312 - - Laes 1765
Unguka Bank - - - - - - 53 54 68 54
AR Banik = 104 - - 209 E1) 7 - 281 161
LETSHEGO' - - - - 51 . . . 51 .
NCBA Hank Rwanda - 3 - - " - E St 32 a7
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RWANDA SOCTAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Nwmmmm:.ma.u.aﬂn ..f_m..._"mmu_ m.n.__.nEn. Ejn Heza Tl
2024 2023 2084 3023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2623
Frw'millions - Fryw'milliens’ Frw'millians Frw'millions Fro'millions  Few'millicas  Fre'millions  Fre'millihs  Frw'millions
GT Bank - - - - - - - I3 . 14
DUTERIMBERE.IMF Ple - - 3 - - - 2 43 ng 43
Jali - 9 B - 3 21 - - 36 30
Bk of Africa 81 - - - - - - - Bl -
Gushen - = - - - - 47 23 a7 .-
MUTANGUHA - - - - - - 27 . a7 -
Seh-1oal (2) 3,294 3,518 9626 8,773 1,416 1,538 At 25% 14,740 14,083
Intérest income on DR Nest Fund'
Banl; of Kigali Nest Fund - 149 - - - - - - - 148
Sub-taial (3)- - 149 - - - - - - - 143
Grand toial (1+2+3) : 13,876 10,654 17,664 14,475 1,638 14618 404 253 33.581 26,957
68
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"RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO.THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)

12. Gain/(loss) on valuation of financial assets at fair valie through profit or loss

Subsidiaries

Ultimate Developers Limited (UDL)

Akagera Game Lodge SA (AGL)

SONARWA Life Assurance Limited

Rwanda Foreign Holding [nveéstment Company {(RFIHC)

Edge Hostels Limited

SONARWA General Insurance Limited

RNIT [terambere Limited

Joint venture.

Building Materials Investment subsidiaries (RULIBA. and EAGI)
Associates

Rwanda Development Rank (BRD)

Ultimate Coneepts Limited

Inyange Industrics

Bank.of Kigali (BK)

Cogebanque

Crysial Teleconi/ MTN Rwanda

Horizon SOPYRWA Lirmited

Wﬁmuu.m Enterprise Investment Com pany ( REIC)

CIMERWA Limited

Eastern Province [svestment Corporation (EPIC)

Other equity investments

Rwanda Investment Group AE Q).

Ptime Economic Zone Limited (formerly Rwanda Free Ttade Zone)
New Farest Rwanda Limited (NFCR)

Rwanda Stock Exchange (RSE}

Fastern and Soithein Trade Development Bank (formerly PTA Bank)
Brasseric It Limonadetie Du Rwanda (BRALIRWA)

P ST po e e

Pension Scheéwmic Medical Scheme Total

2024 2023 2024 2073 2024
Frw'millio ns Frw'millions Fro'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
1,357 1,692 - - 1,357
(374) (542) - - (374)
(2,879) 2,772 - - {2:874)
1.579 2,045 684 8853 2,262
(48) 23 - - (48)
36 (3,181) - - 36

640 367 - - 640

10 (2,682) - - 10

919 329 - - 919
(81) 2 - - (81
3,369 (843) - - 3,369.
5,756 6,362 147 162 5,903

- - 692 -

226) (513) - (226)
488 224, - - 488

45 . - - 45

854. - 854 E

613 - - - 613
378 33 113 10, 492
205. 187- - - 205
21,271 . - - 21271
43 50 . - 43
6,025 {3.363) 6,068 (3,387) 12,094
1,588 1,033 168 126 1,756

P e T G e e

2023
Frw'millions

1692
(542
2772
2,930

23)

(3.181)

g

(2,682)
32¢

)
(843)
@-MMH—
692
(313
224
1,708

42
187

50
(6,750)
1.159




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. Gain/(loss) on valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or Ioss — Continued

‘Pension Scheme ‘Medigal Scheme Total

_ 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Frw'millions TFrw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Fra'millions Frw'millions

I&M Bank (150) 150 - - :m_.e 150
African Export-import Bank (AFREXIM Bank) 796 368 - - 796 368
Safaricom 4,022 (5.936) - - 4,022 (5,936).
EQUITY GROUP- 6,082 (4,259) - - 6,082 {4,259
RWANDA ULTIMATE GOLF COURSE (2.556) (3.470) ,_ . (2,556) (3.470)
WORLD VU-SATELITES LIMITED {633) 128 - - (633) 128
KCB GROUP 6.113 (8,404) - - 6,113 (8.404)
VIRUNGA AFRICA FUND. 9,265 - - - 9,265 -
EABL 106 32 - - 106 32
| 63,568 (16,588) 7,186 (658) 70,748 {17,247

Fair value gain/loss is determined as the différence between the carrying amount of the asset and the fair valug established. There were significant gains
realised on Ultimate forest (21.2Bn) , PTA/TDB (12.09‘Bn), Virunga Africa.(9.2 Bn) Bank of Kigali (5,9 Bnj), KCB (6.1 Bn) ; Equity (6.0 Bn)S, Safaricom
(4.0 Bn) ...étc. However, tliese were partly offset by significant losses on RWANDA ULTIMATE GOLF COURSE (2.5 Bn) , SONARWA Life ( 2.8 Bn),

ete,

For further details referto note 29.




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2624

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
13. Gain/(loss) on valuation of investment properties

Description of property.

KACYIRU CXECUTIVE APARTMENTS
‘GRAND-PENSION PLAZZA

MUSANZE PENSION PLAZZA
RWAMAGANA PENSION PLAZZA
NYANZA PENSION 1r>hw A
KARONG! PENSION PLAZZA
RESIDENTIAL HOUSE KIYOVU
KIVOVU RESIDENTIAL HOUSE LAND
.Z<>O>.~.>Em HOUSES

LAND mOﬂ INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
LAND FOR INSURANCE _ur>NN>v
"FORMER CECER: PLOT

GACULIRO. VISION CITY LARD
CBD1-RUGENGE LAND

KINYINYA LAND

BATSINDA PARCEL

NYAGATARE LAND

RWAMAGANA PARCEL 1&1]
NYANZAPLOT

RUBAVU PLOT

IAND FROM GPD

BATSINDA PIPELINE INVESTMENT
‘GISOZI PLOT

§Q>E GOLF Orcw r>ZU
owOWCxO PLOTS

NYARUGENGE PLOTS

ASCENSEURS DE KEA

‘CRYSTAL wr>N> BUILDING
"NYARUTARAMA PENSION PLAZA
MOBILIER DES MAISONS I HABITATION
.MOBILIERS DE KEA

Agen. Amén./Placement

ELECTRICAL mO:EZan TFOR ALL PLAZZAS
GASOGI LAND

Land for jnvestmenit-property

Twin Tower 2

Twin Tower Equipment's

Pension

2024

Frw'millions

Fro'millions.

Medical

2024

Total
2024

Frw'millions.

RSSB noﬂu_mn& valuation -of its investment properties. in June 2022 and-adopted the revalued balances as at 30. June 2022, The Jast revaluation. had been.
conducted in the year ended 30 June 2020, The value of land was established based on published reference prices by The Institute of Real Property Valuers in
‘Rwanda (IRPV) and this resulted in fair <m_=m loss for Rusororo plots, Kinyinya land, Rwamagana parcel 1&I1. There was no e.m_:mco: of investment properties

done.in 2024.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD o
ANNUAL REPORT AND FENANCIAL STATEMENTS
_FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Realised gain/loss on disposal of assets

Fension §thome. Medical Scheme CIHI Scheme Total
(2024 2023 : 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024. 2023
Frw'millions  Frw'millions ~ Fra'milions'  Frw'milions  Few'milions - Frowillions  Fw'adlions  Frowillioes.  Few'mdlloss  Frw'millions
‘Realised gair/{Loss) on disposal of adiministrative assets {238) k3] (2 - 3 - - - (241) (3
Realiged m&_E._..o.w& on disposal of Investment propértiés 11,427 659 - - - - - - 11,427 659
Realised gain/(Loss}on disposal of Batsinda houses - 3 - . - - - - - 3
‘Gairt on share exchangé 2.126 - - - - - - - 2,126 -
Gain on-disposal of equity instruments - 1,457 - 5,501 - - - - - 6,957 -
14,775 658 5498 - & - - - 20,269 658

15, Impairmentloss on financial -assets held at amortised cost

Financiat assets at amortised cost Terision Medicat CEMI Matcrnity leave. Ejo Heza Total
2084 202% 2024 3 2024’ 2023 2024 033 2024 033 2024 2033
Frwwilions:  Pow'mitions  Fewmilfon:  Frwmifions  Fro'wilions  Fro‘milions Frwmilions  Few'miions  Fremillions  Prwmillins  Frw'millens  Fewmillions
Corporate bonds ‘530 73. 40 it - - - - 6. - 596 167
Treasury bonds 121 443 6% 297 (84) - 25 106 = g 124 853
Treasury hils 21 {67) 167 46y - 24 3 1 104 - 294 (29)
-Commercial papers 534 (466) “ - - - - - - - 534 (466)
Loan and advances to third parties 24 6] (60} 19 - - - - - - 164 12
K.o:mwmm.._om_.._.m. - - - - - - - - - - - -
>a.<m=nnm to contractors {1 1) (67} (48 - - - - - - - (13 (67}
Dividend-and oiher income receivable (18) 33 ® 5 - - - - - - (26} 38
Other assets (18) 20 1 ER 14, 62 - - B - 3) 82
Depdsits with financial instifutions 64 65 270 124 - - 23 T 21 - 479 257
Cash and bank balances (ehly bank balanées) 136 (131) 60 (116 148 (32 43 3 1 9 388 (274)
1,703 (105) 533 375 78 14 94 173 i3z 17 2540 575
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. Investment-management expenses.

“Peusion. Schente Medical Scheme " Ejo Heza Total

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Frw'millions  Fro'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions’ Frov'millions Frw'millions

Kacyini executive-apartments 707 183 - - - . 707 183
Grand Pension Plaza 468 424 - - - - 468 424
Nyanza Pension Plaza 58 66 - - - - ;58 é6
Karongi Pension Plaza 71 86 - - v - 71 86
Musanze Fension Plaza 62 83, - - - - 62 83
_Rwaniagaha Pension Plaza 53 57 - - - - 33 37
EX-CYL buildings - 3 - - - - - 3
..Zv..mEEBEm Plaza 185 88 - - - - 185 88
Zn:mmmﬂnzwmnmqoﬁﬁ. II'and Doclor's plaza - - 221 253 - - 20 253
:Kiyovu House . 4 4 E - - - 4 4
qu«jmaamn district branch 2 - - - - - 2 -
Kigali Golf Club 239 - - - - - 239 -
‘Othier investinént management expenses 1.828 924 10 (18)- 57 429 1 wmm 1,335
35676 1315 23 235 s7 429 3,964 2,581
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17. Grants

‘Grants to'CBHI scheme- arrcars

Grants fo CBHI schicmeé- current

Grarits to Pension scheme
‘Grants to Maternity. scheme

Grants to Efo Heza

17.1. Government grants for CBHI

Government grant received during the year

Grant tilized during the year

17.2. Government Grants Pension

Sub noté
17.1
17.1
17.2

17.3

2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
- 8.500

3,07 4,488

1,716 -

370 -

1,086- 1.026

6,249 14,013

2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
3,077 12,988

3,077 12,988

The grant of Frw 1.7 billion under Pension relates to funds provided to Sonarwa Life Assurance by the Government of Rwanda. through the Ministry of Finance and
Ecenomic Planning to buttress the company’s. Su:m_ Sonarwa Life Assurance is a-fully owned subsidiary of RSSB.

17.3. Government granis to MLB

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) as.at 1 July
Grants received during the year-

Government grant utilized during the year

2024
Frw'millions

370

2023
Erw'millions

74
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

17.4.  Grants to Ejo Heza

Year ended 30 June 2024
New grarifs utilised during the year

Capital -grant armotised during the. yeat

Year ended 30 June 2023
New. m.._.wam. utitised during the year
Capital grant armotised during the:year

Cash grants

AFRcash grants  AFR capital grants  Govt cash grants. Total
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
- - 1,077 1,077
: 1,077 1077
- - 988 088
- - 38 38
- - 1,026 1,026

The cash grants are cases where funds were transferred to Ejo Heza and utilised to incur specific expenditure during the financial year (Government)
or where the grantor incurred expenditure ‘on behalf of Ejo Heza (AFR). For the year ended 30 June 2024, cash grants represent funds from
Government of Rwanda that were utilised for operatinig expenses of Ejo Heza scheme.

Capital graiits

Ejo Heza received m:ﬁvcn...m:.ﬁnﬂim -of assets. from &nmnmw Finance Rwanda (AFR). The nmw..mﬁ grant represents the amortised portion of the assets
donated and is equivalent to the depreciation and amortisation charged for the year to utilise the assets. This amount-is attributed-to depreciation on
computers and office equipment and amortisation charge for the software donated to Ejo Heza by AFR.

Government incentive for Ejo Heza members

‘The Govemnmient pays life insurance premiums for eligible members. Payments are niade directly by Government to-the insurance company on
“behalf of the members. Thesé amouints are not included in the grants and expenditure of Ejo Heza for the yéar.




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

18. Other income

Pension Scheime Medical Schemi CHBI Scheme le..:...m_'q Leave Scheme Ec. Heza Total

- 2624 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2623, 2024 2023 2024 2023

Frw'millions:  Frw'millions Frw'millions. Frw'milions  Frw'milions  Frw'millions  Frw'miltions  Fre'millions:  Fra'millions  Frw'millions.  Fro'millions  Frw'millions

Hmmcn..nw.nﬁn:mzm

; 2 i . . - } . - :
coritficates 253 i6 56 2 12 33 16
Issie of card diplicatés - - 3 2 - - - - - - 3 2
‘Exchange rate gain 5,533 6,100. 1,081 1,248 1 - - - - - 6,615 7,348
Penalties received 75 154 147 - - . i - - 154 323
“CBHI Sales of Medical . A A X i i}
and Members Cards i i ) ) i )
Interest incdme on Ejo
Heza opérational - - - - - - - - - - - .
account
Total 5,786 6,291 1,238 1398 57 : 2 1 12 - 7.095 7,690
19. Staff costs .
Dieacription, Prasion Scieme Medical .mn.___m_ua. CBill Maternity Leave Ejo Heza Total

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 23 2024 2033 2624 2023

Frw'inillions  Frw'millions Fre'milliois  Frw'millions.  Fre'millions  Frivofllions  Frw'millions  Frw'millions  Fro'millions  Fra’millions Frw'millions  Erw'mitlicns

Basie salaniey 1,683 1428 1,921 1,518 4,628 4,223 92 166 584 702 9,007 8,026
95.5" - - - - - - - - - L = -
Pay:in lieu of leave, - - - = - - - = - - - -
Technical alldwvances 12 13 1 12 M i 1 1 - - 19 42
Respensibilify allowances 1o 135 [ 124 196 227 15 17 - - 430 509
Seial security contributions 100 80 i4 g4 272 253 13 3| 29 - 527 447.
Medical insuranée contribuiions’ 122 103 140- 109 334 304 i 1 a2 - 652 28
-Maternity Leave contributtans k] 5 7 5 16 15 i 1 2 - ‘a2 26
Transport allowances 127 122 159 157 510 517 13 14 - - 809 820
House allowances 168 169 197 188 557 554 2 21 2 - 544 g3
Notice and dismissal costs - = - - - = - - - - - =
" Relifement beagfits. 5 - 12 - o 8 - - - - 24 ]
Funeral charges 30 5 28 3 36 31 3 - - - 98 43
Trgining and internship &xpenses 5 20 4 18 5 23 -. 2 - - 14 63
‘Employee benefits in kind - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other Allowances & Indemnities. b} 30 -26 25 3 29 7 7 - - 92 92
76
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3{ JUNE 2024

NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned)

“Pension Scheme

b amt e 1 e b

Medical Schenie CEHI Miternity Leaye. Efo Heza Total.
2024 2023 2004 2013 2024 2023 2024’ 2023 2624 2013 2014 3023
Frwmillions  Frw'millions  Frw'millions  Fre'millions  Few'millions  Fro'miliions  Frw'millions -Frw'inillions  Frw'milions  Fro'aifiony Fro'milfions  Fri'millions
Personriel sport activilies 3l 10 29 10 37 i2 3 i - - 100 34
Other benefits 2 b T 2 2 3 - - - - 5 7
Death indemnitics ! 5 1 - L $ - - - - 2. 16
Membeiship fees . 3. 5 9 15 to P r - - - 42 27
“Total 2453 2.150 2,765 2,283 6653 6,226 282 as2_ 60 701 12814 L6l
20. Adminisirative expenses
u.hmoq:.:?u Parision Scheme Medical Schieme CBHI Maternliy Lenve Ejo u..-.nn.w. Total’
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 (2023 2024 2023 1014 2023 2024 2023
Few'millinns Frmillinas Fre'mlUlues Fro'millloe Frolmillions Frv'millioos Fro'millicm. . Fro'miltions Fra'miliom Fro'inilloze Frn'mllliops Fro'mllliwes
WATER AND ELECTRICITY 56 42 53 30 67 50 E] 4 - - 181 136.
FUEL 1y 20 18 18 2% 23 Z 2 - - 61, 63
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 31 68 107 130 108- 87 8 7 10 - 318 291
OTHER EQUIFMENT 143 117 118 1434 149 124 2 0 -4 - 426- 351
IT EGUIPMENT 2, Pl 2 44 2. 58 2 5 - - 76 154
TRANSPORT OF STAFF IN THECOUNTRY’ 455 337 M6 252 467 371 54 4. 3l 5 1,35% 1,009.
TRANSPORT EXPENSES FOR STAEF ABROAD 21 15, 18 14 24 18 2 1 2 - 68 50
TRANSPORT EXPENSES FOR NON STAFF 114 128, 107 126 308 307 b iz, 1 ~ 540 567
TRANSPORT OF EQUIPMENT - 3 - 1 5 42 - - - - 6 A6
BUILBING MAINTENANCE 11 40 ins 61 132 29 1l 2 2 - 360 133
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 6. 9 5 9 T 11 1. 1 “ = 13 30
MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT AND FURNITURES 11 8 10 9 13, 10 1 1 - - 35 28
CLEANING OF BUILDINGS' 36 29 3 27 3 35 4 3 - - us 94
MISSION ALLOWANCE IN THE COUNTRY 146 174 137 163 175 208 14 17 14 - 486, 561
MISS1ON ALLOWANCES ABROAT 15 10 14 9 18 11 1 I 5 - 354 31
REPRESENTATION FEES 1 I 1 I 1 i - - - - 2 3
STAFF REPLACEMENT FEES - 1 - I 2 21 - . - - 27 23
UDﬂCEmZ._..&.._.—OZ”ﬁ }tz.?..m.?_H.mZ._.. - - = = - - = = - - - -
PUBLICATION' 42 95 39 36 54 48 4 32 o83 - 249 212
BENSITIZATION - - - - - - - - - 65 - 65
77
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Dreseription Pension Scheme Medicnl ma..wa:.n CHHI Maternily Leave: m.m... Heza, Total
2024 2023 2024 o 2024 2023 2024 LU 2024 2023 2024 2023,
Frwwilon,  BwmiBflos  Foomilios  Emibos  femiles  Patellos  Fremle  Fomities Foomilos fellfe Premilees Fremilom
BRANCH RENTAL EXPENSES m 63 95 59 121 76 10 (3 - - 328 205
HIRE SERVICES 167- 444 8t 2 97 11 5 5 43 - 396 656
SECURITY SERVICES 7 9. 67 6d. 85 ‘82 7 7 - - 230 22
MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS - - - - - - - - - - - -
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE' - - - - - - - - - - - -
MISSION: ALLOWANCE - WITHIN THE COUNTRY - - - - - - - - - - B -
REFRESHMENT FEES 8 31 6 28 33 39 3 3F - - 89 103
‘COMMUNICATION EXRENSES 129 130 133 130 404 355 13 3 24 76 703 698 :
INTERNET FEES 197 203 185 190 473 433 19 20 8 - 883 ‘847
FEES FOR THE UPGRADE.OF IT SYSTEM AT MODERNISATION COSTS 300 - 2 - 2 - - - - - 304 -
HONORARTUM 221 267 138 124 148 159 23 13 - - 530 663
CASUAL WAGES - | . 1 - 1 - - - . - 4
CASUAL WAGES - < : . - - - . . - .
BANK CHARGES 197 10 176 3 TS 1 3 1 2 - 488 15
RRA COMBMISSION FEES 16 40 4% 37 54 48 4 4 - - 147 129
BNR SUPPERVISION FEES 36 79 93 &7 - - 13 1 - - 191 178
‘CBHI COMMISSION FEES - - - - &71 83t - - - - 81 txl |
FACCOs COMMISSIONS FEES - - - - - . - - - - - -
COURT COSTS - CBHI - . - - - ) . . - . . .
‘OTHER SERVICES - - 87 - - L - - - 40, 87 40
Fotal e 2827 1,583 2,255 1,852 4,044 3,582 235 223 157 183 9,618 B.436

21, Depreciation and amortisation expense

Pension:Scheme Medical Scheme . CBHI Maternity Leave EjoHeza ~Total

2023 2013 2024 2023 . m23. 3024 2023 1024

. . Fre'millions Frw'aiillions Fr'mitlions Fro'millions Frw'millions,  Fra'millions Few'siilliods Fiw'mitlicns.

Property and Equipment ) . )
Buildings . 19 i 596 596 - - - - - - 615 615
Motor vehicles ] - - - 4 - - - - - 12 -
Office eqitipment 4 4 - 2 - 2 - - - 1 4 9
Fumiture and fittings 76 83 36 23 9 22 1 2 1 - 121 130
Computérs 305 68! 731 585 296 133 20 0 30 12 1,389 LA
‘Kitchgn equipient - - - - - - - - - - 0 -
Depreciation expense an property and equipment 414 741 1,363 1,205 a8 157 30 2 ‘28 13 2,143 2,165
Computer software 1 1 L 1 1 2 - - 36 36 38 41
Amortisati p on Intangible assets 1 1 1 1 1 2 - - 36 36 38 41
Totaf depreciativn and amartisition expease 415 78% 1,364 1,207 3069 159 30 2 64 50 2,181 2,206
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

22. Other expenses

Descriglion

FIRE INSURANCE
MOTO VEHICLE INSURANCE:
COMPREHENSIVE ALL RISKS

DIRECTORS SITTING ALLOWANCE .

. COMMISSION

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
CONTRIBUTION TO JS5A AND ECASSA
CURRENCY EXCHANGE LOSS

CBHi SUBSIDY

_FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE.

LEGAL FEES

SEMINAR EXPENSES:

FISCAL PENALTIES
CONFERENCE AND WORKSHOPS
COMMEMORATION EVENTS

OTHER EXPENSES

: NET INTER-8CHEME EXPENSEAINCOME)

- Tatal

Maternity
Pension siheme Medzcal scheme CBH1'scheme Mateinity leave ¥chome ‘leave - Tatzl
. . seliéme '

024 2023 2024 2023 For3 2013 2024 213 2024 2024 024 023
Frw'millions Frw'miltinns Frv'milions Frw'willions Frw'isillions:  Frw'mitlions Frw'millions Fra'millions Frw'millisas Frw'millicns Fre'inilllsas  Frw'miliioas
110 34 103 26 132 29 n 2 - - 356 51

7 4 7 4 g s | - - - . 4

- - - - & - - - - - L. -

32 35 30 3z 38 £ ‘3 3 - - 152 11

136 £4 137 il 162 77 1% & 166 e 603, 208

: g - 8. s 10 - L - - - 28

- . 9,883 8,625 - - - - - - 9,883 B.625

37 1 = 19 - - - - - - 37 20

22 a1 - 41 - A8 - 4 - - 2 131

59 &5 45 58 62 82 5 é ] - 174 21

10 1 10 ] 12 1 1 - 4 - 37 4

630 1606) 303 (564} 625 259 17 2} {(53) - 1,522 (9123

1,043 {351) 19,510 8311 1,043 ‘551 st 2 1t - 12,763 8,531

Other expenses mainly comptise the contribution from RSSB Medical scheme to CBHI as required by CBHI Law for all medical insurance-companies
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3¢ JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23. Revaluation gain/(loss) on administrative property

Pension

2024 2023

Class of property ard equipment Frw'millions  Frw'miilions

RSSE HEADGQUARTERS - -

AUTRES IMMEUBLES- - -

GICUMBI BLOTS - -

NYAMASHEKE PLOT - -

NYAMAGABE PLOT - -

‘GISAGARA PLOT - -
‘MUHANGA PLGT - -
RUHANGO PLOT - -

RUTSIRG PLOT - -

NGORORERO PLOT - -
GAKENKEPLOT - -
GATSIBO PLOT - -

NYABIHU PLOT - .

- BURERA PLOT - -
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE - -
AUTRES IMMEUBLES - -

‘Medical
2024 2023
1..5.3:_?:@ Frw'millions-

Total

2024

Frw'millions

Total
2023
Frw'millions

A vevaluation gain on land and buildings arises as a result of a revaluation exercise being undertaken by RSSB. During the year ended 30 Jung
2024, Land and Buiildings were not revalued..




. As at 30 June 2024 . - Asat 30 June2023
-Cost Accurmulated Net book value Cost Accumulated  Netbook value.
Scheme Suh-Note depreciation | depreciation
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'milligns  Frw'millions Frw'miillions  ¥rw'millions
A B C=A-B A B =A-B
Pension Scheme 24.1 5,275 3,951 1,324 6,324 4,554 1,770
Medical Scheine 24.2 16,674 5,219 11,455 17,028 4,328 12,700
CBHI Schieme . 24.3 1,405 994 411 1,263 824 441
Maternity Scheme 244 120 67 53 49 48 i
Ejo Heza 245 208 192 15 208 165 43
Total 23,683 1,425 13,258 24874 9,919 14,953
24.1. Property and equipment- Pension scheme . . . .
. Land and  Motor vehicle Office Furaiture, Computers Tatal
Buildings : equipment fixtares and
. . . fittings .
FErw'millions Fro'millions Frw'inillions. Frv'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions
‘Cost
At 1 July 2022 1,127 108 433 1,653 2,361 5,681
Adjustient 1o opeéning balances: 3 - - - - 3)
Transfer fom PPE to investment properties B - B B B 3
Revaluation adjustment - reversal of cost: - - - - - -
Revaluation - - - - - -
Additions- - - - 39 607 646
Disposals - - - . - -
At30 June 2023 1,123 108 433 1,692 2,968 6,324
Adjustment 10 opening balances 1 - '8 8} 25 31
Transfer from PPE to investment properties - - - - - "
Revaluation adjustment - reversal of cost. - - - - - -
Revaluation - - - - i -
Additions. - 191 - 1 12 204
Disposals (230) (%) (123} (301) (615) (1,283)
At 30 June 2024 892 200. 318 1,391 2,350 '5,275
81
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24. Property and équipment




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD:
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Land and  Motor vehiile Office Furnituie, Computers Total
- Buildings equipment fixtures and
fittings

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions
Accumulated depreciation
At1 July 2022 1 108 430 1,456 1,781 3,775
Adjustment to opening bafances 9) - - - - 9y
Revaluation adjustment - reversal of accumulated depreciation
Chiarge for the vear 19 - 4 83 681 787
Transfar . . N . " -
Disposal - - - - - -
At 30 June 2023 12 108, 434 1,539 2,462 4,554
‘Adjustment to opening balances 7 - Ew... 3 25 3]
Revaluation adjustment - reversal of accurnulated depréciation
Charge for the year 19 9 4 76 305 414
Transfer - - - - - -
Disposal - (14) (123) (298) 613 (1,048)
At30 June 2024 38 103 311 1,320 2,179 3,951
Net book value {Cost Iess Aeccumulated depreciation)
At 30 June 2024 854 182 7 71 211 1,324
At 30-June 2023 1,112 . - 153 506 1,770
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
24.2. Property and equipment- Medical scheme

Lend and Buildings Moot vehicle Furnituré, Computers Cffice Laberatory Kitchen Totil
fixtires & equipm quipment uipment
Fittings i
Frw'millions.  Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw’milions  Frw'nillions Frwimillions  Frw'millions !
Cost :
At 12ty 2022 13,042 190 1,292 St a4 54 103 15,565
Reversal of cost upon tevaluation - - - - - - - -
Revaluation: loss - = - = - - - -
Additions. - - - 1,464° - - - 1464
Disposats - = - - - - - -
At 30 Tuae 2023 13,842 190 1,292 1,973 3N 54 103 17,638
A 1o op - g hal - - 3 Nu _ . _ .
“Transfer - - - - - = - v
Additions - - 12} - - - - -
Disposals: - {96) {76) 267y (52 - {12 (503)
AE30 June2024- 13,042 04, 1,339 1,732 323 7 91 16,644
Accuriulaind depreciai )
At July 2022 645 90 1249 510 m 54 163 3,123
Reversal.of accumulated depreciation on previgusly Tevalued - - - - - - - -
‘aAs5els’
Cliarge for the year 596 - p£) 585 b - - 1,208
Digposaly - N - - - - ~ z
A 30 Jaoe 2023 1241 190 1,212 1,005 3 54 EUc) 4,328
: >&E:dﬂi to oﬁn:.:.._ g balances )] - 3 25 - - - -
Cliage for the year: 596 - 36 731 - - - 1,366
Disposals y - (96)- (74) (267) {32) : {12) (500)
At 30 June 2024 1,836 o4 1,238 1,584 VIR 54 91 5219
Net book value (Cost _.am...bnna-nsﬁwqﬂ_. .n_m_uwnnw_n.—oi
AF30 June 2024 11,206 0y 1 148 ~ - - 11,455
At30 Junie 2023 13,801 - 20 879 - - - 12,700
The most recent valuation for land and buildings was Jast undertaken by RSSB for the financial year ended 30 June 2022.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24.3.. Property m:a.maiwﬁmﬁ. CBHI scheme

Land'and Motor Furniture, Computers. Office Total
Buildings vehicle fixtures & equipment
. . . . Fittings

Frow'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'milliens’
Cost
At 1 July 2022 10 52. 308 322 23 715
Additions - - . 550 - 550
Disposals - - - - - -
At 30 June 2023 10 52 308 872 23 1,265
Adjustments to opening balances - - - 3 - 8
Additions - 6l - 220 - 281
Disposals - - (13) (128) (8) (148)
At 30 June 2024 10 112 296 972 15 1,405
A¢cumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2022 - 52 273 323 19 666
Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among - - - - - -
schemes
Charge for the year - - 22 133 2 157
Disposals - - - - - -
At 30 June 2023 . 52 294 456 22 824
Adjustments to opening balances 0 0 1 7 - 8
Charge for the year 0 4 9 796. - 308
Disposals. 0 0 (13) (128) &) (148)
At 30.June 2024 10 112 296 972 15 1,405
Net book value (Cost less Accumulated depreciation)
At 30 June 2024 10 57 2 341 1 411
At 30 June 2023 10 0 14 416 1 441
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24.4.. Property and equipment- Maternity leave scheme

Landand  Motor vehicle Furniture, Computers. Office. Total
Buildings fixtures & equipment
Fittings . . .
Frw'millions Frw'millions Erw'millions Frw'millions Fre'millions Frw'milliogs
Cost,
At1 July 2022 - - 25 23 1 49
Additions: - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - -
At 30 June 2023 - - 25 23 1 49
Adjustment.to opening balaiices - - - - - -
Additions : - - 82. - 82
Disposals - - 3 18) Y] 23
At 30 June 2024 - - 22 87 - 109
Accumul:ited depreciation
At 1 July 2022 ) - - 22 23 1 46
‘Charge for the yeat - - 2 - - 2
Disposals - - - - . .
At 30 June 2023 N - 24 23 1 48
Charge far the year - - 1 30: - 31
Disposals - : (3) as) (1) 23)
At 30 June 2024 - - 22 34 - 56
‘Net baok value
At 30 June 2024 - - - 52 - 53
At 30 June 2023 - - 1 - - 1
83
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BDARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24.5. Property and equipment- Ejo Heza

Land and Buildings ~ Motor vehicle Furniture, Computers Office Total
. fistures & equipment
. Fittings
Frw'millions Frw'millions, Frw'millions Frw'inillions Frw'millions Frw'millions
‘Cost . .
At 1 July 2022 - - - 133 19 153
-Adjustment for reapportionment.of” " - - - - -
‘ommon assets aimong schemes
Additions. - - - 55 - 55
At 30 June 2023 - - - 188 19 208
Adjustment for reapportionment of - v - B - -
‘common assels amonyg schefiles
Additions. . - - - - - -
At 30 June 2624 - - - 188 19 208

Accumulated depreciation .
At1 July 2022, - - - 133 ) I8 152

Adjustment for reapportionment of
common assets zmong schemes

Chasge for the year - - - 12 1 13
At 30 June 2023 - = - 145 19 163
Adjustment for reapportionment of B B " - - "
common assets among schemes

Charge for the year - - - 28 - 28
At 30 Jurie 2024 . - - - 173 19 192
Net book value

At30 June 2024 .. - - 15 : 15
At 30 June 2023 - - 43 - 43
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. Intangible assets

As at 30 June 2024 Fension Scheme”  Medical Scieme CBHI  Maternity Leave Ejo Heza “Total
Friv"millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw"mitlions ]"rw'mﬁ_li_pns Frw'millions
Cost .
At'start of year 2,141 833 222 1 365 3,572
Disposal - (229) - - - £229]
Additions - - - - - -
2,141 605 222 11 365 3,343
Amortization
At stait of year 629y (833} (221 (1 {146) (1,840)
Adjustment t6 opening balances - - - - - -
Disposal - 229 - - - 229
Charge fof the year _ ey m 1 - (36) 3
' (630) (605) (222 an (182) {1,649
Closing net boak value 1,512 - - - 182 1,694
As at 30 June 2023 Petision Scheme  Medical Scheme CBHI  Maternity Leave Ejo Heza Total
Frw'millions Fro'millions  Frw'millions Fiw'millions  Frw'millions . Frw'millions
Cost )
At start of year 2141 833 222 11 365 3572
Disp_osail - - - - - -
Additions - - - - - -
2,141, 333 m 11 363 ‘3,572
Amortization.
At start of year (627 (832) (219) (ERE (109). (1,798)
Disposal - - - - - .
Charge for the year (1) (D (2) - (36), 4N
(629) (833) 2 amn (146)- (1,340}
Closing net hook vaive 1,512 1 1 - 219 1,732

The contract for IT modernisation project elapsed: before completion of the project and RSSB took-a decision not
to renew the contract. An impairment was made for the estimate of deliverables that will not be utilised by RSSB
after the €lapse of the coniract. This case ended in arbitration and RSSB was requiréd to pay about Frwi.1 Bn.

This amount has been expensed.

26, Invesiment properties

Scheme

Pension Scheme
Medical Scheme.
Total

Closing net book value

26.1
26.2

Carrying values
2024 2023
Frw'millions  Frw'millions
184,644 217,588
12,530 12,530
197,174 230,118
87




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

26, Investment properties (continited)

In 2022, RSSB’s investment properties and. administrative land and buildings (classified under property and

equipment — note 23) wete subject to valuation by Eng. NSHIZIRUNGU Vincent an independent professional
valuer. Valuation methods used were the: Direct coriparison, Replacement cost methods and the income

capitalization method. During the yéar ending 30 June 2023 Land and Buildings were not-revalued.

Valanation of Land

The valuation for land was based on estimated land priges for specif' ic locations across the country and value was
determined by multiplying: the land size with the estimated price per square metre. The estimated value of land,
forms part of the estimated fair value for investment properties and property, plant and equipment. The last

valuation was based on 2021 land reference prices published by the Institute of Real Property valuers:in Rwanda.
Directors believe the 2021 reference prices provide reasonable estimate of the land value ds-at 30 June 2024.

Where the direct. comparison miethod was used to-determine property values, the praperties have been- recorded at
their Open Market values which is the hi ghest price in terms of money which. the property under appraisal should
or could fetch in a competitive and opén market under conditions requisite for a fair sale.

Implicit.ifi this definition is the consummation of a sale at specified date and the passing of ownership from seller

‘to buyer under the following conditions:

1. Both the buyer and seller are economically motivated-and are both acting prudently
2. The sale price is not affected by any undue influence

Both parties are well informed and well advised and are acting’__ in ‘what they consider to be their own best
interest: _ _
4. A reasonabletime is allowed for exposure in the open market value

The valuer has assumed that the property is not affected by statutory notices and neither the property nor its use
gives rise to contravention of any statutory requirements. The Vatuer did not 1nspect any woodwork or othér-
parts of the structure that were covered, inaccessible or unexposed.

The open market values -for the lands for development in urban and rural areas was obtained using the
comparisen valuation method and intérnational valuation standards.

Where replacemeiit cost method was used to determine property values, the cost of construction was recognized
at 1,500 USD per square meter (at an exchange rate of Frw 1,015:US$1) by analyzing the different costs -of
building similar modern- commercial properties completed-in the last 3 years.

As péer the valuation repoft, total valuations of RSSB properties are as.follows: _
Valuation as at

-30 June 2022

(Frw)

Open market 236,445,501,000
Insurance value {excludes land) 84,233,482,000

RSSB management adopted the open market values for the properties in-2022. Management and Directors have
assessed. the potential changes to the: values and considered that the values held in the books of account best
represent the value of the properhes as at 30 June'2024, Any-changes would neither be significant hor material té.
the financial statements given the prevailinig economic conditions.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At 30 Jine 2024

Property description

KACYIRU EXECUTIVE APARTMENTS
‘GRAND PENSION PLAZZA..
MUSANZE PENSION PLAZZA
RWAMAGANA PENSION PLAZZA
NYANZA PENSION PLAZZA
KARGNGI PENSION PLAZZA
RESIDENTIAL HOUSE KIYOVU

‘NYAGATARE HOUSES

LAND FOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FORMER CECFR PLOT

GACULIRO VISION CITY LAND
CBD-RUGENGE LAND

KINYINYA LAND

BATSINDA PARCEL,

NYAGATARE LAND

RWAMAGANA PARCEL I&il

NYANZA PLOT

RUBAVU PLOT

LAND FROM GPD

BATSINDA PIPELINE INVESTMENT
KIGALI GOLF CLUB LAND
RUSORORO PLOTS

NYARUGENGE FLOTS

MATERIEL DES MAISONS D'HABITATION
MATERIELS DE KEA
NYARUTARAMA PENSION PLAZA.
MOBILIER DES MAISONS D"HABITATION
MOBILIERS DE.KEA

GASOGILAND

:26.1 Reconcilistion of movement in Investment properties during the year - Pension Scheme

Transfer
L from Fair N .
E; 3?.:;2{;“:: .v_'a?Iuatiun_ Additions Disposals Juﬁi;:];:
s gainf(loss)
Asatigaty Ol |

2023 o
Triwmillions:  Frw'millions Frw'millions  Few'millions F‘xfw‘_m'illi'o ns  Frw'millions
7,762 - - - (7.762) -
24,896 - - - (i20y 24,776
5089 - - - - 5,089
3,785 - - - - 3,785
4,131 - - - - 4,131
3.804 - - - 3y 3,799
537 gy - - - 537
62 - - - - 62
175 - - - - 175
1,282 - - - - 1,282
53,845 - - - (3,436) 30,409
1,202 - - - - 1,202
32,108. * - - {30.469) 1,640
10172 - - - - 10,172
767 - - - - 761
1,928 - - - - (,928
476 - - - - 476
21 - - - - 211
1322 - - - - 1,322
32 - - - - a2
27,298 - - 9,633 - 36,931
8,400 - - 24 - 8,424
1,572 - - - - 1,572
¢ - - - 8] -
233 - - - {233), -
17,051 - - - - 17,051
4 - - - 2) 2
572 * " - 572y -
8.869 - - - - 8,869.
217,588 - B 9,657 (42,601) 184,644
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD.

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

At 30 June 2023

Propeity description

KACYIRU EXECUTIVE APARTMENTS
GRAND PENSION PLAZZA

MUSANZE PENSION PLAZZA
RWAMAGANA PENSION PLAZZA
NYANZA PENSION PLAZZA

KARONGI PENSION PLAZZ A
RESIDENTIAL HOUSE KIYOVU
NYAGATARE HOUSES

LAND FOR [NVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FORMER CECFR PLOT

GACULIRO VISION CITY LAND
CBD1-RUGENGE LAND

KINYINYA LAND

BATSINDA PARCEL.

NYAGATARE LAND

RWAMAGANA PARCEL &I}

NYANZA PLOT

RUBAVUPLOT

LAND FROM GPD

BATSINDA PIPELINE INVESTMENT
KIGALI GOLF CLUB LAND
RUSORORO PLOTS

NYARUGENGE PLOTS

MATERIEL DES MAISONS D'HABITATION
MATERIELS DE KEA
NYARUTARAMA PENSION PLAZA
MORILIER DES:MAISONS D' HABITATION
MOBILIERS DE KEA

GASOGI LAND

Transfir
from
prnp';:g Fair As at30
Asitt § July 2022 equipment ‘valvafion”  Additions  Disposals June
to Rain/{foss) 2023
inyestment
property .
Fra' Frw' Frw' Frw' Frw' Few'
milligns millicns millions. “millions. milliotis millions
7,762 - . - - 7,762
24,896 - - - - 24 896
5,089 - - - - 3,089
3,785 - - - - 3,785
4,13t - - - - 4,131
3,804 - - - - 3.804
537 - - - - 537
62 - - - - 62
175 - - - - 175
1,282 - - - - “1,282
34523 - - - {1,077 33,845
1,202 - - - - 1,202
37,987 - - - (5.878) 32,109
10,172 - - - - 10,172
769 . - - ) 767
1,628 - - - - 1,928
476 - - - 476
211 - - - - 21
1,322 - - - 1,322
32 - - - “ 32
17,762 - - 9,536 - 27,298
8.400 - - - - (8400
1.637 - - - (66) 1.572
1 - - - - 1
233 - - - - 233
17,051 - - - - 17,051
4 - - . - 4
572 - - - - 572
8,869 - - - - 8,869
205,075 - - 9,536 7,022y 217588
20
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned)

At 30 Fune 2024
Property description

Landg for investment property
Twin Tower 2,
“Twin Tower Equipment's

Total

As at 30 Juine 2023

Property description

Land for investment ﬂa_.um_d.\
Twin Tower 2

Twin Tower Equipmerit's

“Total

26.2 Reconciliation. of movement in Investment properties during the year:- Medical Scheme

At 1 July 2023 Transfer Fairvaluation gain/loss - At 30-June 2024
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions m....ﬁ;.i.m:mo:m :
731 - - 751
11,779 - - 11,779
12,530 - - 12,530
At 1 July 2022 Transfer Fair eu.___m.moa gain/loss ‘At 30 June 2023
m.lq._..._::c_._.m. m..,....i..am_:c«_u q.ﬂ..::.:mc:.m .m:.;..:.:.__.m.‘..nm
751 = - 751
11,779 - - 11.779
12,530 - - 12,530
91
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR-THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

27. Investment properties in the process of construction

Scheme Sub-Nete Carrying values
2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Pension Scheme 27.1 23,940 22,668
Medical Scheme 272 - -
Total 23,940 22,668
27.1 Investment properties under construction — pension scheme
30 June 2024
Property deseription At 1 July Prior year Additions Re_c_l'ass'iﬁc_at_i'. At 30 June
2023 adjustment o 'to other 2024
assets
Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions  FErw'millions  Frw'millions.
Land for Devélapment - - - - -
Lodgemerits Batsinda 2nd Phase. 22,668 . 1,272 . 23,940
Investment in Catchup Limited - - - - -
22,668 . 1,272 - 23,948
'30 June 2023
Property description ‘At 1 July . Reclassificati : :
At 1 July Prior year PR At30 June
3022 adjustment Addltmljs on to othcr_' 2023
_ assets.
Frw'millions Frw'miltions Frw'millions  Frw'millions  Frw'millions
Land for Development - - - - -
Lodgements Batsinda 2id Phase 12:031 - 10,638 - 22,668
Investment in Catchup Limited - - - - -
12,631 - 10,638 - 22,668
27.2. Investment properties under construction — Medical scheme
At 30 Jurie 2024
. Lo At July Prioryear oy
Property description 2023 adjustment At30 June 2024
Frivimillions- Frw'millions Frw'millions
‘Land For Development . -
Propérty description At1July2022.  Additions At 30 Junc 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
Land For Dévelopment - - -
92
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD.

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
¥OR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuied)

'28. Assets held forsale.

2024
Frw'millions

Cost
Opening at 1 July -
Revaluation gain -

Disposals “

2023
Frw'millions

Closing at 30 June -

93




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD .
-ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

29. Equity investments

Seheme

.Pension Scheme
Medical Scheme
Total

29.1. Equity investments — Pension

L ) Type of equity
Equity Investee ihstrament
Subsidiaries
{Control evidenced by ownership of 30% or
more of ordinary shares. with voting rights
and board representation} )

ULTIMATE DEVELOPMERS LIMITED )

A.CU.S_ . . Ordinary shares

AKAGERA GAME LODGE (AGL) Da?.ma. shares

SONARWA LIFE ASSURANCE Ordinary shares-

RWANDA ULTIMATE GOLF COURSE Ordinary shares

EDGE HOSTELS Ordinary shares:

SONARWA GENERAL INSURANCE Ordinary shares

RWANDA FOREIGN HOLDINGS )

INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED Ordinary shares,

(RFMIC) )

Joint Venture

(Joint control evidenced with 50% of-

ordisiary shares {considering Both pension

and medical schemes) with voting rights

and-board representation)

RULIBA Onrdinary shares
[ — [ e

eage holding

2024

100:00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%:
88.52%
79.20%

65.95%

44.03%

Sub-Note Carrying values
204 2023
Frw'millions Frvw'millions
29.1 672,220 549,723
292 52463 60,792
724,683 616,514
. o ‘Number of Number of Basts of Carrying Value Carrying
Yage holding shares-held shares held  measurement 2§ at Value as-at
2024 2023
2023 2024 2023 2024 Fro'millions  Frw'millions
100.00%. 9915 9915 Fair value 98,145 96,738
100.00% 41042,100 4,042,100 Fairvalue 12,264 12,867
100.00% 451,307 551,307  Fair value 4614 572
N/A 407,821,000 407,821,000  Fair value 57,323 41,722
87.01% 10,408,532 10,408,532 Fair valie 12,134 11,949
79.20% 382,586,233 382,586,233 Fair value 9,107 9,07
65.95% 6,675,000 6,673,000  Fair value 6,961 5,382
50,00% . 9487432 Fairvalue 6052 6,121
94
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

_FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

e ‘onze holding Numberof  Number.of Basis of Carrying Valse:  Carrying
Equity Investee H«vnm of equity %age holding: - oitg g shares hield shares held  measurement as at Value as.at
instrument i ’ ) : .
2024 Ncm.u
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 Frw'millions:  Frw'milliony
Assotiates.
(Significant influence cvidence with
ownership {¢onsidering botli pension and
medical sclicmes)of 20% or-more of
ordinary shares with voting rights and
‘board representation)
RWANDA DEVELOPMENT BANK (BRD) Ordinary shares ,._..m,ﬁﬁ. 26.42% 17,892,278 17892275  Fair valoe 29410 28,491
ULTIMATE CONCEPT LTI ‘Ordinary-shares 2295 2,29% 2,316 2,316 Tair value 1,758 1,836
INYANGE INDUSTRIES LTD ‘Ordiridry shares 40.00%. 40.00% 3,280,000 .3,280,000- Fairvalue: 23,913 18,653
BANK OF KIGALL{BK) Ordinary shares 33.49%. 33.49% 302,566,100 302,966,100 Fair value. 92,405 86,648
EASTERN PROVINCE INVESTMENT o —— Py g . TR . |
C Omwow.__ﬂ,_oz (EPICY O—n_Em.Q shares 30,03% 30.03% 55,259 53,259 Fair value 2,447 },834
‘CRYSTAL TELECOM. ‘Ordinary shares 837% 637% 113,053,000 86,053,000 Fair value’ 19,219 19,445
HORIZON SOPYRWA LTD Ordinary shares 30.00% 30.00% 1,262 1,262  Fair value 10,389 9,501
RWANDA ENTERPISE INVESTMENT ) _ o i i . L y
COMPANY LIMITED (REIC). Ordinary shares 26.32% 26.52% 2,652 2652 Fair valug 106 60
CIMERWA Lid Ordinary shares {i% 16.00% 71,153,040 71,153,040 Fair value - 4,392
RNIT ITERAMBERE Fund Fund units Fair value 4230 3,591
Other equify investments
No control or significant influence
evidenced by ownership of less than 20% of
ordinary shares with voting rights)
RWANDA INVESTMENT GROUP N na0r o o) _ N _ .
EEQmU.. HW_.Og : a .. .. . ) Ordinary shares 17.39% 17.39% 2,400 2,400 Fair value .m.ummm. 3274
ey CNOMIC ZONES COMPANY iy inary. sharés 14.40% 14:40% 164,748 164748  Fairvalue 4938 4733
ULTIMATE FOREST RWANDA FORMER  Ordinary shares: ~ 91.55% N/A 100,000 100000 Fair value 29,496 8,225
RWANDA STOCK EXCHANGE {RSE} Ordinary shares 10.00% 10.00% i0 10 Fair ,..mH.E.... 158 115
EASTERN AND SOURTHERN AFRICA
TRADE DEVELOPMENT BANK Ordinary shares: 1.11% 1.01% 1,818, L1818 .Fair value 31,445 23419
{FORMERLY PTA BANK)
Brasserie Et Limonaderig Du Riwarida, i o P e 5 21 anG N, - o
(BRALIRWA) Ordinary shares: 7.72%. 4, 90% qa“m._ m..mcn_. 3041 mumﬂo mu:. value 15,487 13,8568
1&M RWANDA Ordinary shares 6,19% 6.19% 74,982,700 74,982,760 Fair value 3,224 3374
. AFREXIMBANK - Ordinary shares 0.06% 0,08% 124 124 Fair valug 4,518 372
SAFARICOM Ordinary shares 0.20%. 0.12% 80,153,550 47,153,550°  Fairvaiue 19,788 11,703
EQUITY GROUP Ordinary shares 1.39% 1.08% 52,604,300 40,604,300 Fair value 22,870 16,788
95
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REFORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

i . Spaze holding: Number of Number.of Basisof Carrying Vaiue .nu_,Q:..w
‘Equity Investee- ..ﬂ..u...u of equity Yage holding oage holcing shares keld sharés keld  measiirement asat-  Valueasat
instrugent ? - : : . .
2024 2023,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 Frw'millions  Frw'millions
LEAF PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED Oidiniry shares 0.00% 0.00% 697 697 Cost. - -
WORLD VU SATELITES/EUTELSAT Ordinary shares 0.00% 0:00% 106,188. 121213 Fair value/Cost 562 1,195
AKAGERA MEDICINES INC -Ordinary shares NiA N/A 6,000,000 6,000,000 Lost 14,861 14.851
..%«meowmmﬂ COMPANY RWANDA Preference shares. N/A N/A 100,000 100,000 Cost, 5,968 5,968
VIRUNGA AFRICA FUND Ordinary shares 100% NiA 6,327,582 6327582 Fair value 43,368 12,720
EABL. Ordinary shires 0,06% N/A 487,570 3,000,000 - Fair value 36 631
KATAPULT Ordinary shares NiA N/A 5,000 5,000 Cost 540 540
ZIPLINE Ordinary shares N/A NiA 1,049,653 950,063 Cost 33,030 33.030
‘GREEN CITY KIGALI COMPANY ‘Ordinary sharés 7.80% N/A 0.3% 039, Cost 619 619
‘CRYSTAL. YENTURES LIMITED Ordinary shares 6.17% N/A 155,730,908 N/A Cost 21,958 2
KCR Group Grdinary shares 0.48% 0.48% 79,289,541 51,289,541 Fair vilue' 25,497 15384
TOTAL 672,220, 549,73
29.1.1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under pension scheme during the year
a) Snmmary reconeiliation
2024 2023
Frw" milions  Fiw' millions
Asdl b July 549,723 487,095
\.Pa&moun_..wn.e_m.mﬁd.mn.a a:mzm the- year 33,038 £2.300
Disposals during the year (9,392) (3,084)
‘Gain/Loss on share exchange 2,126 -
Conversion-from debt instrumemts 13,157 -
Fair valuation gain/(loss)-duting the year 63,568 (1 m._mwmw.
A at 30 June 672,220 549,723
96
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

29.1.1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under pension scheme during the year continued.

b) Detailed reconciliation per equity investee

Equity Investee

Subsidiartes.

ULTIMATE DEVELOPMERS LIMITED (UDL),
AKAGERA GAME LODGER (AGL)

'SONARWA LIFE ASSURANCE

'RWANDA ULTIMATE GOLF COURSE _
RWANDA FOREIGN INVESTMENT HOLDING COMPANY
LIMITED (RFIHC)

EDGE HOSTELS

SONARWA GENERAL INSURANCE

Joint venture

RULIBA

Pmmon.mwﬂnm :

RWANDA DEVELOPMENT BANK (BRD) -
ULTIMATE CONCEPT LTD

INYANGE INDUSTRIES LTD

BANK OF KIGALT (BK)

CRYTSTAL TELECOM/MTN RWANDA

HORIZON SOPYRWALTD

RWANDA ENTERPISE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED (REIC)

CHAFERWA Ltd.
EASTERN PROVINCE INVESTMENT CORPORATION {EPIC)
RNIT _Hoﬁam.nﬁ.wczm

(rher equity investments

RWANDA. INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (RIG)

PRIME ECONOMIC ZONES COMPANY LIMITED
ULTIMATE FOREST. COMPANY RWANDA FORMER, (NFCR)

RWANDA:STOCK EXCHANGE;(RSE)
EASTERN AND SOURTHERN AFRICA TRADE DEVELOPMENT
BANK. (FORMERLY PTA BANK)

Carrying
valoeas a¢.1
July 2023

Frw millivns

96,788
12,867
5772
41,722

5382
11,549
9,071

6,121

38,491

1,836
18,653
19,445
9,901

60
9,392
1,834
3,591

3274
4,133
8,225

115

25419

:Additional
capitalinfectivng
during iheyear

Frw'millions

Forex
gainfiosy

Fro'milltons

Gain/Loss

on share

cxchange-

Frw'milkions .

Convertilile:

debis

Few'milliosts

U.wm_.._owe ls-
during the
year

Frw'milliohs

Fair
voluation
poin/(lnss}

Frw'millians

1357
{574)
(2,874)
(2.556)
1,579
(48)

36

10

919
(81)
3369
5.756
(226)
488

43

613
640

378
205

21271
43

6,025

Carrying value
as ut 30 June
W4

Frw'millioas

98 145
12204

4614
57,323

6,951
12,134
5,107

6,052

29410
1,755
22913




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Equity Investee:

BRALIRWA

1&M RWANDA

NEW FORESTS COMPANY HOLDINGS. LIMITED (UK)
AFREXIMBANK

-SAFARICOM

EQUITY GROUP

LEAF PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

WORLD VU SATELITES/EUTELSAT

AKAGERA MEDICINES INC

"NEW FOREST'COMPANY RWANDA (NFCR) PREFERENCE
SHARES

VIRUNGA. AFRICA FUND'

EABL

KATAPULT

ZIPLINE.

GREEN CITY:KIGALI COMPANY
CRYSTAL VENTURES LIMITED-

KCB GRQUP

TOTAL

Larrying. Additional . GainfLoss Disposals Fuir Carrying value
valueasatl ‘capitalinjection Forex on share Canverfible during the valuation asar3v June
July 2023 during the year grinfloss exchange debts- year gaini(foss) 2024,
13,898 - - - . - 1,588 15487
331 - - - - - £130) 3224
3,122 . - - - - 796 4518
11,703 4,062 - - - : 4,022 19.788
16,788 - - . - . 6,082 22,870
1,195 - - - - - (633) 562
14,861 - = - - - . 14,861
5,968 - - - - 2 - 5,968
12,720 21,383 - - - - 9,265 ‘43,368
631 - - - - - 106 736
540 : - - : - - 540
33,030 - - - - - - 33.030
615 - - - - - - 619
- 6,596 - 2205 13,157 - - 21,958
19,384 - - - - - 6113 ‘25497
549,723 ww.c...wm - N.M—Nm. 13,157 .Ghamu m.u..mmw 672,220
98
I o [ _.\ s P [ [ o [ —




. RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
% ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

- 29.1:1. Reconciliatibn_.nf changes in gar_r:ying-.values of equity investments under pension scheme
during the year ¢ontinued.

€) Significant fair valvation gains during the year. ended 30-June 2024 ‘continued

- .
: * Ultimate Developers Limited (UDL): Frw 1.4 billion. fair valie gain
z The nét asset valuc of UDL. has increased. from Frw 96. billion in 2023 to Frw 98 billion in 2024, giving rise'to
Lo the’increase in net asset value per share and thereby thie fair value gain increase during the year.
i g . o . :
§ “ Rwanda Foreign Holding Investment Company: Frw 1.6 billion gain
1
: The fair value gain of Frw 1.6 billion was a result of an increase in the net total assets of the company in the

i-\..Z.L'_;.\J

petiod compared to what was reported in the previous year. the total liabilities reduced and intangiblcs dropped'
: & significantly.

P = Tastern and Southern Trade Development Bank: Frw & billihn_gaih

During the year, a fair value gdin it total of Frw 12 billion on equity investment in Eastern arid Southein Trade
Devclopment’ Bank was realized and the portion for Pension is Frw 6 hillion. The growth of overall
shareholding subscribed in the } company-was duc to an increase in the net asset value and Iargcly increase in the:
i exchange rate of USD as. the investment is held in dollars, the rate increased from Frw 1,165 as at 30% Iine
‘2023 to Frw 1.3 11 at closing date of 2024.

®  Bralirwa: Frw 1,58 billion gain

, The fair value gain is due 1o the increase of the share price that increased from Frw 173 per sharc as at. 30 June.
— 2023 to Frw 195 per share on 30 June 2024 as the company is listed on-Rwanda stock exchange.

= Bank'of Kigali: Frw 5.7 billion gain

BK is listed on the Rwanda stock exchange and the majar reason 1o incredse in fair valie gain is due to the

PREEWIER :_-.}

increase in market price per share of Frw 305 as at 30 June 2024 over the figure in 2023 of Frv 286 price pér
share on 30 June 2023.

« InyangeIndustries: Frw 3.3 billion gain

ezl

The company’s assets Zhav;‘ increascd fiom Frw 46 billion in 2023 to-Frw: 35 billion in 2024 which led to an

averall net asset value per share and thereby the fair value of the company.
= Ultimate Forésts. Company Limited (UFCL) Former New Forests‘Company Lithited: Frw 21 billion gain

The fair value gain of Frw 21 billion‘is primarily dus-to revalued blolnglual asseis which increased thenet asset
value of the company from'Frw 8 hillion as reported in 2023 to Frit 29 billion-in 2024.

*  Safaricom: Frw 4,02 billien gain

1

: Safaricom is listed on the Nairohi stock exchdnge and the major reason for the increase in fair value gain is dug
§ to the increase.in inarket price per share of KES 178 as at 30 Junc 2024 over the figure.in 2023 of 146 price per.
| share on 30 June 2023 and inaddition. to. the. exchange value of Kenyan shillings was Frw 8 in 2023 and we
H

closed while: the valuc has increased. 1o Frw 10. per KES 1, there was also purchase of additional shees
equivalent to 31 million shares.

99
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

£) Significant fair valuation g’a:i_n_s du_ring-__tﬁe year enﬂed-30.'_.] ure 2024 continued

KCB Group: FRW 6.1 billion gain

The fait value has increased because of an increase’in share price-and exchange rate from KES 29.30:_-_per sharc
and Frw 8 per KES' 1 to KES 31.25 and Frw 10 respeetively.

Equity Bank Group: Frw 6.08. billion gain

Equity Bank Group is Histed on the Nairobi steck exchange and the. major teason for the increase.in fair value
gain is due to the increase in market price per share of KES '42.25 as of 30. June 2024 over the figure in 2023 of
38.25 price per share-on 30 June 2023 and in addition to the exchange value of Kenyan shillings was Frw 8 in
2023 and we closed while the value has increased to'Frw 10 per KES 1.,

Virunga Africa Fund - Frw 9:2 billien gain

Thc.cor’ripany-"s‘.'bogk vatue increased ini 2024 due to adoption of the net asset reference in determining the fair

value model inthe current year. In addition, the board approved capitat irﬁection'of Frw 21 billion dl'.lri'ng_ the
year.

d) Significant fair valuation loss during the year-ended 30 June 2024

»  Rwinda Ultimate Golf Course ~ Frw 2.5 billion loss

The fair value loss of Frw 2.5.billion is attributed to the decrease in.the net-assets of the company 'ar'isihg.'fmm
losses during the period.

SONARWA Life Assurance Limited — Frw 2.8 billion loss

The fair value loss of Frw 2.8 billion is-attributed to the decrease in the net assets of the company arising from
losses during the period.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
29.2. Equity investments — Medical

P . . . R i Corrying Yalue Carrying Value
o Typi-of eguity o i o - Number of Nurilier of Basis'of ’ !
Equity Investee. instruntent Yange holding Yeage holding shares bild shares held wiéasurement: as at 3¢ Juge as at 30 June
; 2024 2023
1014 2023, 3024 2033 Frv'myillions: Frw'millians
Subsidiiry .
RWANDA FOREIGN HOLDINGS - . ) . . -
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED Ordinary sharcs 28.55% 285574 2:889,606 2,889,606 Fair value 3004 2,330
(RFHIC)
Associate
BANK OFKIGALI (BK) Crdinary sharés 0.85% 0.85% 7,723,900 7.723.900 Fair value 2,356 2209
'COGEBANQUE s3 Ordinary sheres 0% 060 - 21,375 Fair vilue: - 14,158
CIMERWA Lid Ordinary shates 0% 10.12% 4,153,000 71,153,020, Fair valie - 9392
CcvL Ordinary shares 2.26% NA $7,025,049 NiA Cost 5042 -
.Di.n.n equily investmenis
RWANDA INVESTMENT GROUP . P o . e ) .
LIMITED (RIG) Ondiniary sharcs 522% 5.22% 720 720 Fair veilue 1,09 582
EASTERN AND SOURTHERN AFRICA o . . .
TRADE DEVELOPMENT BANK Ordinary shares 1.12% 1120 1,376 1376 Fair value 31,665 25,601
(FORMERLY PTA BANKO B
BRALIRWA Grdinary shares 0.82% 0.82% 8;404,200 8,404,200 Fiir value. 1,639 1471
ZIPLINE, Grdinary shares HA NiA 99,590 - Cost 4,648, 4648
KT RWANDA LIMITED Preference sharcs. NA NiA 0, 11 Amodised cost . -
TOTAL 52,463 £0,79%

29.2.1.. Reconciliation of changes in.carrying values of equity investments under medical scheme during the year

®  Summary recenciliation.

2024 2023

Frw'millions Frw'millions

Asat'1 July 60,792 56,802
Additional Investments during the year - 4,648
Disposals (23,5509 -
Conversien form debt instiumeiifs m..b.hw -
Fair vatuatiori gain/(loss) during the year 7,180 (658)
As:at 30 June 52,463 68,792

243
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RWANDA SOCIAL mmgwaﬂw‘ BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL m.—ur.;ua—mz,nm
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned)

29.4.3. Recondiliation-of changes in carrying values of equity investments under medical scheme during the year continued

# Detailed reconciliation per equity investee

Equity Investee

m-_wmm&u.-.q. .

RWANDA FOREIGN HOLDINGS
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(RFIIC)

Associate

BANK OF KIGALI (BK)
COGEBANQUE SA

CIMERWA LIMITED

Crystal ¥entufes Limited

Other equity investments
RWANDA INVESTMENT.GROUP
LIMITED (RIC) :
EASTERN AND SOURTHERN
'AFRICA TRADE DEVELOPMENT-
BANK (FORMERLY FTA BANK)
"BRALIRWA

"ZIPLINE

‘KT RWANDA LIMITED

TOTAL

Carrying value asat 1 capi —.Mﬂ M__”_mﬂ”nm._oa“ —_“M“Mn ”ﬂ.__ﬂw. D"mﬁcwu_m.azqin .Oo-.ﬁq,ﬁ.cn from Fair valudlion Oﬂﬂwwu_wmaa..—mhnm
Huly 2023 n:..?m.:_n.. year dividends the year  Debt instrumcnts ‘gain/(toss) 2024
Frw'millions Frw'imillions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millighs Frw'millions Frw'millions
2330 - - - - 684 3014

2209 - - - - 147 2,356

14,158 - . {14,158) - - -
9392 B . (9,392) - -

. - - - 8,042 - 8,042,

982 - - . : 13 1,096

25601 . - - 6,068 31,669

1471 - - - - 168. 1639

4648 - - - . - 4,648

60,792 - - {23,550) 8,042 7,180° 52,463

®  Significant fair valuation gains/losses during tlie year ended 30 June 2024..

w  Eastern and Southern Trade Development Bank: Frw 6 billion gain

During the year; a fair value gain in‘total of Fiw 12 billion on equity investment in Eastern and Southern Trade Deveiopment Bank was realized-and the 50%
portion for medical scheme is Frw § billion. The m_deﬁr of overall shareholding subscribed in thie company was due’to an increase in themet asset value and
largely an increase in the exchange rate of USD as the investment is held in dollars, the rate increased from 1,165 Frw as.at 30t June 2023 to RWF 1,311 af

closing date of 2024,

= Rwanda Foreign Holdings Investment Company Limited (RFHIC): Frw 684 million gain
The increase in fair value of RFHIC is primarily due to the increase in net assets.of the company.




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURETY BOARD
ANNUAL REFORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinuzd)
30. Corporate bonds.

Corporate bonds - Pension
Agaciro Developmeni Fund
Crystal Ventures Limited:
ENERGICOTEL
GASMETH

UFCL

REPLI

BRD

30..Corporate bonds —Medical

NPD
30. Corporate bonds — Ejo Heza
BRD

Classification of Corporate bonds (Nof-currént Vs Current)’

Non-current,

Crystal Ventures Limited
Agaciro Development Fund.
ENERGICOTEL
GASMETH

UFCL

NPD

REPLL

BRD- Pension.

BRD- Ejo Heza

Sub nate

301
302.
303
304 .
305
306
307

308

309

2024 2023
Frw'millions.  Frw'millions
4,866 '8,500
10,383 23,041
963. 1.120
13.036' 11,463
13,795 14,034
40,270, -
9,196 -
4711 15,671
1,536 -
98,256 73,829
2024 2023
Frw’millions Frw'millions
8,465 21711
3,939 (1,226)
828 1,068
11,476 10,845
12,234 9,532
3,066 9,710
39,965, -
8,389 -
1,401 -
89,764 51,640
103




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30. .chmowm»m..counm continued

2024 2023
Current Frw'millions  Frw'millions
Crystal Ventures Limited. 1918 1,331
Agaciro Development Fund 926 9,726
ENERGICOTEL 135 52.
GASMETH 1,560 617
UECL 1,561 4302
NPD 1,145 5,961
REPLI 304 -
-BRD- Pension 307 -
BRD- Ejo Heza 135 -
8,493 22,189

30.1 Agaciro Develapment. Fund ,
2024 2023
Frw'millions  Frw'millions
At1 Iuly 8,551 9773
Placement - -
Accrued interest. 926 1,111
Maturity {4,591} (2,333)
Gross at.30 June 4,887 8,551
Impaivment provision (IFRS 9) (2t (51)
Net at 30 June 4,866 8,500

104
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30.2. Crystal Ventures Limited

(At1 July

Placement

Accrued juterest

Maturity

Conversion & equity

At 30 June

Impairmeiit provision (IFRS 9)
Net at.30 June:

B

30.3. ENERGICOTEL

At 1 Tuly

Placement.

Accrued interest:

Maturity

At30 June

Impairment provision (IFRS 9)
Nét at 30 Jane

30.4. GASMETH

At 1 July

‘Placement

Accrued inferest

Maturity
At 30 Juhe
Impairment provision (IFRS-9)
Net at 38 June
— 1 [ i I 4 [

2024 2023
Frw'millions Erw'millions
23,180 23,180
1,918 2,841
(1,299) (2,841
{13.157) -
10,643 23,180
(260) (139)
10,383 23,041
2024 2623
Frw'millions Frw'millions
1,127 1,259
133 151
(267) (284)
995 1,127
(32) (N

963 1,120
2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
11.532. 10,182
1,560 1,350
13,092 11,532
(55) (69)
13,036 11,463

105
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD o
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30.5. Corporate bond issued by Ultimate Forests Company Limited

2024 2023
Frw'mitlions Frw'millions
At 1 July 14,119 13,583
Placement - 500
Accrued interest 1,561 1,536
Maturity (1,560) (1,500)
At 30 June 14,120 14,119
Impairment provision (IFRS 9)- (323) Awm._u..
Net at 30 June 13,795 14,034
30.6. Corporate bond issued by REPLI
2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
At July - -
Placement 40,136 -
-Accrued interest 304- -
Conversion to shares. - -
Mahirity | -
-At3June 40,441 -
Impaisment provision (IFR$ 9) (171) -
Net st 30 June 40,270 -
106
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
30.7. Rwanda Dévelopment Bank - BRD

At1 fuly

Placement

Accrued nterest:

Conversion to: shares

Maturity

-At 30 June

Impairment provision(IFRS 9)
Netat 30 June

30.8. NPD

At 1 July

‘Placement

..}nnqcmn interest

Converted to Shares

Maturity

At 30 June

Impairment provision (IFRS 9)
Net at 30 June

30.9. Ejo Heza- BRD

At 1 July

Placemeént

Accrued interést

Maturity

At 30 June'

Tmpairment provision (IFRS 9}
Net at 30 June

2624 7023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
9,005 -

807 -

(579) -

9,233 -

(37) -

9,196 -

2024 2023
Frw'millions ‘Frw'millions
15,765 -

- 15,000

1,145 1,246
(8,042) -
(4,523) {480)
4,346 15,765

{135) (95)

4,211 15,671

2024 2023
Frw'mittions Frw'millions
1,504 -

135 -

97) -

1,542 -

(6) -

1,536 -




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY. BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
“FOR THE, YEAR ENDED. 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31. Treasury bonds

The treasury bonds held by RSSB as at the end of the year per scheme were as follows:

Description Sub-Note .wmundan m.w... at Balance .s.m.uq.
o i K 30-Jun-24 30-Fun-23.
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Treasury bonds - Pension schenic 3 320,314 315,403
Tréasury bonds - Medical scheme 31.2 168,652 129,339
‘Treasury bofids - Mateinity scheme 313 ww.bm._. ..w.m..«m 57
Treasury:bonds - Ejo Heza scheme 314 52,008 41,587
Total 573,935 518,686
Classification of Government Bonds (Nor-cyrrent Vs Curreitt)
Non-current
Treasury bonds - Pension scheme 308,043 167,534
“Treasury bonds- Medical scheme 168,313 52,995
‘Treasury bonds - Maternity leave schetme 29190 6:477
Tréasury bonds: Ejo Heza 51,453 25,240
“Sub-total (1) 556,999 252,247
Current
Treasury bonds - Pension scheme 12,271 147,869,
Treasury bonds.- Medical scheme 339 mm»m‘aw
Treasury bonds - Maternity leave scheme 3970 25,879
Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza . 555 16,348
Sub-total (%) : 16,935 266,439
.nzﬂ_ M .N»%_u_ 573,934 518,686
108
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _ _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE. 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31.1 Treasury bonds — Pension scheme

Particular

Dpening balarce 1 July

Prior year adjusirments

Investment n_E.w._.._m...:._m year

Interest incomié earned during the.year
Receipts during ile yedr

Cost on ...M,...wgnm

Late payment on Treasury Bonds'
Discount an T-bonds

“Closing 30 June

Impairment provision

Closing 30 June

‘The amortized-cost of the government securities closely .approximates their fair value.

31.2. Treasury bonds — Medical scheme

Opening balance t July

“Investment during the year

Interest income earned during the year
Receipts during the year

Cost oir T-Bonds

Late payment on T-Bonds
U.mmnosi.c: T-bonds

Closing 30 June

Impairment provision

Closing 30 June

The amortized cost of ..Emn.moé_ﬁam:ﬁ. securities approximates their fair value,

2024 2023,
Frw'millions Frw'millions:
316,744 192,670
- 184
37.849 125,250
40,760 30,475,
(73.677). (31,834)
321,677 316,744
{1,362) (1,341)
320314 315,403
2044 2023
Frw'millions Frw' millions
129,889 159,016
39,812 86,912
17468 11,186
(17,800) (27,224)
169,369 129,889
(717) (550)
168,652 129,339
109




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE. 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

'31.3. Treasury bonds - maternity leave scheme

Opening batance 1 July

. Ecnmﬁamnﬁnﬁm: g the year

“Interest income camed during the yedr
Receipts during the year.

.n_.o_um.:w 30 June

Impairment provision

Closing 30 June

31.4. Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza

Openiing balance 1 July.

Investment during the.year

Interest income. earned during the year
wnnmm?m..m:._.m:m..ﬂrm year

Cost'on T-Bonds

Advance payment

Closing 30 Junc

Impairment provision

Clesing 30 June

32. Treasury bills

Ummnl_:m.c:

Treasury bills - Pension schernie
“Treasury bills - Medical scheme

Treasury bills - Maernity leave scheme
‘Treasury bills — CBHI

2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
32494 6,864

623 25,694

3.822 2,024
(3:838) {2.088)
33,101 32,494

{140) (138y
32,961 32,357
2034 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
41,705 27.775
10,521 15857

5708 4,250
(5,706) (6,177)
52,229 41,705

(221 (118)
52,008 41,587

Balanee as at

Balance as at

Sub-Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Frw'millions - Fiw'millions
321 37.945 9,568
322 47,127 32,434
323 8186 2,356
32.4 - 19,711
“Total 93,259 54,070
110
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32.1 Treasury bills — Pension scheme

Particular

Opening balance | July
Opening balance adjustment
Purchasés.

Intcrest accrued.

Late payment-on T-Bills’

“Maturities

Clositig 30 June

Impairment provision

.Q.Em_..m.ma June

The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value.

32.2. Treasury bills— Medical scheme

‘Particular

‘Opening balance 1 July

Purchases

Interést dccrued

Late payment o:..H.mm.__m
Maturities

Closinig 30 June
_.E_um.w:.ﬁoi provisien

Closing 30 June

The amortized cost of the government; securities closely-approximates their fair value.

2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
9608 22,491
39,583 21,322
2,295 1.145
{13.380) (35.350)
38,106 9,608
(161) (41)
37,945 9,568

2024 2023
Few'millions F rw'millions
32,572 38,220
62,833 50,705
4,031 2,878

9 -

(52,100) (59,240)
47,328 32,572

200) (138)
47,127 32,434
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

'32.3. Treasury bills — Maternity leave scheme

Particular

Opening balance 1 July
Putchises
Interest accrued
Matiurities
-Closing 38 June.
‘Tmpairment provision

Closing 30 June

The amartized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value.

32.4. Treasury bills - CBHI

Particular

Opening balance 1 Tuly
Purchases

Interest acorued
Maturities

Closing 30 June
Impairmen provision

Clostag 30 June

2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
2,366 1979
15,662 2,275
692, 112
(10,500) (2,000)
8,221 2,366
(33) (10)
8,186 2,356
2024 2023
Frw'niillions, Frw'millions
19,795 -
50,219 19,781
1,150 14
(71.164) -
- 19,795
- (849)
- 19,711

112
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {coniinued)

33. Commercial papers

During the year, RSSB invested in commercial papers as follows:
Company issuing commercial paper

City of Kigali

NPD Limiied

NGALI Holding Limited
RULIBA Clays Ltd
Total

Details of the commercial papers are as follows:

33.1 City of Kigali

Opening balance 1 July
Purchases during the year
.H.Eo.aamﬂ accrued-during-the year
‘Maturities

Closing 30 June
Impairment.provision

Closing 30 June

Sub-Note 2024 2023
Frwniillions. Frw'millions
311 29:217 -
332 - -
313 50,748 50,658
334 16,994 7,280
196,959 57,038
124 2023
Frw'millions  Frw'millions
Mm.ch—c -
1,302 -
29,342 -
(124) -
29,217 -

113
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REFORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

33.2. NPD Limited

Opening balance { July
.m_E.n_,_mmnm during the year

‘Interest accrued during the year

Manirities

Closing 30 June
Impairment:provision
Closing 30 June

33.3. Ngali Holding Limited.

Opening balance 1 July
Purchasesduring the year
Interest mnnncmu..nzlam. the year
Maturities

Closiiig 30 June

Impairment provision

.Closing 30 June

33.4. RULIBA, Clays Limited

Opening-balance 1 July
Puichases during the year
Interest accrued during the year
Maturities

.Closing 30 June

Impairment provision
Closing 30 June

2024 2023

Frw'millions  Frw'millions

- 12,849,

- 398

- (13,748)

2024 . .N:M.u

‘Frw'millions Frw'millions

50,963 30,567

- 20,000

6,000 5,025

(6,000) (4,628)

50,963 50,963

(216) (306)

50,748 50,658

2024 2023

Frw'millions  Frw'millions

7324 -

9,164 7.324

1,050 -

17,538 1,324

(544) (44)

16,994 7,280
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

34. Loans and Advances to third ‘parties- Government

Pension Medieal CBHI Matéernity leave Tofal
2024 2033 2024 2023 2024 2023 2074 2023 2024 2023
. .m,_.._u MOte  Fiomitlions  Frw'millions 12.._=.m._=.§ Fro'millins  Frw'mlions  Fre'milions  Fre'milions  Frw'millions  Fre‘'millions  Frw'miltions
Loan to City of Kigali 34.1 - - - - - - - - - -
Loans to MINECOFIN - Pension- 342 58,105 3,825 P - - - - - 58,105 3,825:
Loan to MINECOFIN (CBHI loan) 343 . - 924 26111 - - < - 2924 26111
“Tuotal 58,105 3,825 22,924 26,111 - - - - 31,028 25,936
Classification of advances to third parties (Non-cuirent Vs Carrent)
Pension. Medical Total
2024 2023 2024 . N.auu 2024 2023
Frw'millions’ Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'miltions: Frw'nillions: Frow'millions
Non-¢urrent.
Loan to City of Kigali - - - - - -
Loans to MININFRA 54,279 - - - 54,527 -
Loan to MINECOFIN - - 19.775 18,933 19.775 "28.933
‘Sub-total (1) 54,279 . 19,775 28,933 74,301 28,933 |
‘Corrent -
Loan to City of Kigali - - - - . -
Loans to MININFRA 3,825 3.825 . . 3,825 3,825
Loan to MINECOFIN “ 3,247 26,111 3.247 26,111
Sub-total (2) 3,825 3,825 3,247 16,111 T.072 29,936
Grand total {142). 58,352 3,825 23,021 35812 81,373 58,869
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

_.."I....z..ﬁ.... H..S..i.,..”!._......

34.1 Loan to City of Kigali

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2024 2023
Erw'millions Frw'millions
At 1 July - 1,156
Reclassification from MININFRA . 165
Répayments ) (1,321).
‘At 30 June g Ny
‘Impairment provision - 3
At 30 June - -
34.2. Loan to MININFRA/MINECOFIN
2024
Loan for .
Partitioning of i Sale of land -
Loan for CBDI ‘Kicukirg Sale of Kinyinya Kinyinya - 82.9 Kigali Executive o _
[nfrastructure pension plaza land 1 hectares Appariments sale Parklane sale Total,
Frw'miillions Frw'millions. Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Fi _.s...n,_m.._mou.u Frw'millions
At 1y 3,694 149 3,844
Additions. - - 4,642 31198 11,274 7,394 54,508
Repayments. . - - - - - - =
AL30 June 3,694 149 4,642 31,198 11,274 7,394 58,352
Impairment provision - (247}
At 30 June 3,694 149 4,642 31,198 11,274 7,394 58,105
'34.3, Loan to MINECOFIN (CBHI Subsidy)

_ 3024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
At $luly 26,268 28,933
Additions " B
Repayments 3.2471 (2.665)
At 30 June 23,021 26,268
Impairment provision {97) (158)
At 30 June 22,924 26,111

The Loan to MINECOFIN relates to amounts advanced to Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) Schene.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

35, Mortgages loans

Pension Medical Total

NH-.N.& 023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions Firw'millions Frw'milliens Frw'millions: Frw'millions
At 1 July: 32 1 - - 32 11
Adjustment to opening balance . (61) - . - - (61)

Unallocated receipts on Mortgage loans - prior Co- - -
year - 46 46
Acerued interest’ 10 15 . - 16 15
Receipts during the year (27), (27) - - 27 2n
Reclassification to other payables - 47 - - - 47
Balance at the 3¢ June 15 3 - < 15 32
Impairment provision - v - - - -
‘Net balance at 30 June _ 15 2 - - 15 32

Classification of Mortgage loans. (Non-curreni Vs Current)

Pension scheme Moedical scheme Tatal
At 30 June 2024 At30 June2023  At30June 2024 At 30 June2023 2024 .N.:.Nu..
F 34..5.:._.82 m._..qe.a:_.ma ns. Frw'millions Frw'millions m,i_,.._ﬂw_ma_..m. Frw'millions
Non-ciirrent 6 13 - - 6 13
‘Current . 9 19 - - 9 19
Total 15 33 - - 15 L7
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

36. H=<m=8w%

ﬁnam_m.c: Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Maternity leave- Tatal
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2923 2024 2023
Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'milions Frw'millions Frw"millions . Frw'millions Frw'miltions:  Frw'millioas Frw'millions Frwmillions.
Office suppliers 73 76 74 71 91 87 7 7 243 241
Fuel inventory 2 1 1 1 2 [ - - 3 4
74 77 76 72 92 ‘88 7 7 250 245

37. Advances to contractors

Pension Medical CBHI Maternity leave Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Frw' Frw' Frw' Friv' Frw' Frw' Frv' Frw' Frw' Frw'
milligns millions millions millions millions  millions -milkions - millions: ‘millions milions
Engineering Brigade - - - - - - - - - -
-AFRJ precast Ltd - 3,478 - - - - - - - 3,478
Other-advances (Special Engineering Ltd) 3,131 - - - - - - - 3131 31
Tatal 3,131 3,478 - 31 - - - - 31n 3,509
Impairment provision on (108) = (1) - - - - 97} (109}
Total {net of impairment) 3,034 3,370 - 30 - - - - 3,034 3,400
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38. Dividends and other income receivable

Dividends receivable
Other iricome receivable
Total:

Impairment provision

Total

38. (a) Summary reconciliation of movement in dividend receivable

Opening balance
Dividends declared
Dividends received

Gross dividend receivable
Tmpaitmint provision

Net dividend receivaiie

Opening balance
Dividends declared
Dividends received

Dividetids converted into share capital

Gross .&.?En.—.ﬁ_ receivable

Impairiment prévision

Netdividead receivable

Perision Medical ‘CBHI Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2013
H;._E::o;w Frw'millions Frw'millions -Frw'millions Frw'miillions Frew'millions .m.ﬂ,....s::ouu Fi _..i.a..m._:a.__u
9,468 12,430 363 1073 . . a8 13,504
9,468- 12,430 363 1,073 - - 9,831 13,504
&) (75) @) (6 - - (59) (81)
9412 12,356. 361 1,067 - - 9,772 13423
Year m_._mm..a.me.....—:.._n..uau.u
Pe um...mnn Medical Total
‘Frw'miltions Frw'millions Frw'millions
2,430 1073 13,504
13,308 1,909 17.017
{18.070) (2,620} {20,690)
9,463 363 9,831
(37) (2) {(59)
9,412 361 9,772
Yéar ¢cnded 30 June 2023
Pension’ Medical Total
Frw'millions: Frw'millions Frw'millions
8,690 223 8913
21,030 3,057 24,087
(17,290) 2,207 (15,497)
12,430 1,073 13,504
(75): 16} (81
12,356 1,067 13423
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RWANDA SOCTAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38. (b) Detailed reconciliation of movenient in dividends receivable per equity investee — Pension scheme

Local investments

Bank of Kigali Limited

Crystal Telecom Lid

Ruliba Clays Limited

Rwanda Investment Group

Brasserie Ei Limonaderie Du Rwanda (BRALIRWA)
Rwanda stock exchange

1&M Bank:

CIMERWA

Sub-total (I}

m.,n.-_.e.mm..: investments

Safaricom Limited

Eastern and Southem Africa Trade develepment bank
Afréxim Bank

EABL

Equity tiank group

KCB Group

Sub-total (2)

n_.‘mi._.an._ (143}

Dividend converted

AtlJd E.M. Nc.uu. Dividend declared .Ec:_e-:_ received into share capital At 30 June 2024
Frw'millions Frv'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millians
9,850 7.326 {12,407 ) 4,769
- 479 - i 479
- 44 {44) - -
-_ (,877 (1L.877) i -
B 2279 - . 2,279
- 15 {13) - -
B 106 (106) - -
2,850 12,126 (14,449} - 7,527
. 921 (921 - -
817 - (8173 ) -
- 110 (110} -
- 11 (1 - -
854 1,941 (8543 - 1,941
909 - {909) - -
2,580 2,982 (3,621 - 1,941
12,429 15,108 (18,070) - 9,468
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATENENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED-30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Dividend
38.Dividends and other income receivable (Continued) o Dividend Dividend convertedinte .
) ) ’ At T July 2022 declarcd receivied sharecapital  Af30 June 2023,
Frw'millions Frw'miltions Frw'millions Frwmillions Frw"millions

Local investments

Bank of Kigali Limited Ri690 9,850 (8,690) - 9.850
Crystal ..m&mmo:._ Ltd - 796 (796} ) -
Rowarida Investment Group . 324 (324y - -
Brusseri¢ Et Limonaderie Du Rwanda (BRALIRWA) . g 1,740 (L740) . -
Rwanda stock exchange "~ 17 7. - =
1&M Bank - 38 (138) ) -
CIMERWA - 1.062 {1.062). - -
Sub-totst {1) 8,690 13,927 12,767) - 9,850
Foreign investments

Safiricom Limited N 560 (360} - -
-Hastern and Southern Africa Trade development bank E ‘1,452 (635 " 817
Afrexim Bank - 84 (84) " -
EABL - 253 (253) - -
Equity bank groip - 2,803 (1,950) . 854
KEB Group 1,950 (1,040) - 599
‘Sub-total (2) - 7,103 (4,523) - 12,580
Grand total (1+3) 3,690 21,030 (17,250) - 12,429
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38. (¢) Detailed reconciliation of movement in dividends receivable per-equity investee — Medical scheme

Local investments

Bank of Kigali Limited

Rwandd Investment Group-

Brasseric Et-Limanaderi¢ D Rwanda (BRALIRWA)
CIMWERA

Cogebanque

Sub-total {1)

m,a..aw: .Een.m.m..._nn-u
PTA Bahk
Substotal {2)

Grand tofal (1+3)

Lecal invéstments
-Bank of Kigali Limited
) ws,uznn?f.nm:ao:m_oa:.u
Brasserie Et Limonaderie Du Rwanda (BRALIRWA)
CIMERWA:
Sub-total (1)
Forcign invéstments
PTA Bark
Sub-total (2)

Grand total (1+3)

Dividend converted

At 1 July 2023 Dividend declared. Dividend received into share capital At 30 June 2024
Fre'millions Frw'millions, Frw' millions Frw'millions TFrw'millions
251 187 {316) - 122

- 563 (363) - -

. 241 - - 241

- 918 [£113] - -

251 1,909 1,797 - 363

822 - (822} - -

‘822 u {822) - -

1,073 1,909 {2,620 - 363

N Dividend eonverted

At 1 July 2022 Dividend declared Dividend receivid into share cipital  At30 June 2023
Frw'millions Frwv'mitiions Frw'niillions Frw'miflions Frw'millions
223 251 (223) : N 251

- a7 {97) - "

- 184 (184) - -

1,062 (1.062) : }

223 1,595 (1,567) - 251

- 1463 {640) - 822

- 1,462 (6407 T 822

223 3,057 (2,207) i 1,073
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
39. Other assets

Péaision Medical ‘CEHI Materniry Jeave’ Eja Heza Tosal. )
o024 2013 2024 - 2024 2013 024 2023 204 2023 2024 2013
. Frw'millions  Fro'milliens  Frw'millions  Frw'milions.  Frw'millions  Frw'milions  Fro'millions . Fra'milions . Frw'm Blions  Frw'millions  Fra'omillions  Fra'millions:
STAFE ADVANCES - - - - - - - - - - -
FORMER STAFF ADVANCES 36 30 34 2 13 5 1 - - - 86’ &
OTHER:RENTAL RECEIVABLE 33 1 - - - - - - - - M, 12
r,._nciwo PENSION PLAZA TENANTS 21 2l - - - - - - . - . B!
GRAND PENSION w._..».mqu%zﬂ 387 an - - - - . - - 587 3
NYANZA PENSION PLAZA TENANTS 49 32 - - - - . - - - 19 32
MUSANZE PENSION PLAZA TENANTS 26 6 - - - - - - - 26 6.
KARONGI PENSION PLAZA TENANTS 105 1z - . - - - - - : 105 113
RWAMAGANA PENSION PLAZA TENANTS 7 7 - - . - - . - - 7 7
DOCTORS' PLAZA TENANTS - b 1 - - : - - B 3 1
CRYSTAL PLAZA 423 423 - - - - - - - - 423 423
MUTARA ENTERPRISE BUILDING' 18 I8, - - - - . - 13 1%
TOWER 2 TENANTS 2 2y a1 44 - - - - g 39 42
NYARUTARAMA PLAZA 1238, 845 - - - - - - . - 1,238 845
STAFF ADVANCES A4 - 48 39 - 5 - . - i92- -
" OTHER DEDUCTIONS - - - - () - - - - - (. .
ISHEMA RYAQU 4 4 4 a 5 s - - . - 13 i3
PETTY CASH SHORTAGE - - - - ] 1 - - - - I !
‘SALARY REVERSALS - - - - i9 19 - . - . 3 19
ADVANCE TO BE JUSTIFIED 15 13 12 9 65 62 2 ] 1 . 9 85
OTHER DEBTORS 1,050 4,39 65 3 15.994 14.90% ) T 6 - 17,144 19,841
KCC DEBT 310 1 . B . Ll - . - . 211 n
BATSINDA HOUSE DEBTORS an {17) - - - - - - - - (t7) an
WITHHODING TAX RETAINED 9. 30 16 22 - . : - : - 5 ‘53
OTHER RECEIVABLES 4. 28 220 91 1,026 5 7 9 - - 317 162
INTERSCHEME TRANSFER I 1 - - - - - - - - 1 1
PREPAYMENT 38 34 36 25 33 8 17 3 3 - 127 72
Total 3,062 6,955 484 256 17,247 15,045 31 19 16 . 21,744 22,274,
IMPATRMENT PROVISION 4y 45y 3 2) (103) (90} - - - - 130 136}
Total {net-of impairment) 3938 6,910 481 254 17,143 14958 31 18 16 = 21,610 22,138

Other asseis largely comprise rental receivables and CBHI related receivables from different sources of income.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.JUNE 2624

40, Due from (Due to) other schemes

Ejo.Rezn

Pension Medical CBHI ..ar:nq__:w.._o:«.e Total

2024, 2023 2024 Nﬁm . 2024 2023 2024 Nauu 2024 M_.unw" 2024 2023

Frw'millions  Frw'millivas  Frw'miltions Fra'millions  Fra'mitions  Fre'millions Erw'millions.  Fra'milfiois  Fro'miffions  Few'milions  FPre'milisns’  Frw'millians

Interscheme Loan Reéeivable - - 4,940 6,553 - - - - - - 4,940, 6,333
Inierscheme Loan Payables 67). (6299) - - U QN (15) (232) - Gy (65%)
Net due froni/{due to) otherschemes (4,675) (6,294) 4,940 6,553 A{114) (27} (1s2) (232} - - - -
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

41. Deposits with financial institutions

Long term deposits

Rwanda Development Bank

AB Bank

Bank of Africa

Bank of Kigali

Bank Populaire du Rwanda (Allas Mara)
Kenya Coininercial Bank

CogeBangue

Equity Bank Rwanda Limited

Access Bank Rwanda

ECOBANK Rwanda Limited
Zigarna CSS

Tali

1&M Bank Rywanda Limited

Suhb-tetal (1} 411
Short term deposits

ADB BANK Bwanda Limited.
.Bank of Africa

‘Bankof Kigali Limited
_Bank Populaire du Rwanda (Aflas Mara)
‘CogeBange

ECOBANK Rwanda Limited

mn__..:.a, Bank Rwanda Limited

I&M Bank Rwanda Limited
‘Kenya Commercial Bank:

LETSHEGO Bank
‘Unguka Bank

Zigima CSS

Commereial Bank of Africa(Rwanda)
Jali

Peision. Medical Moternity leave Ejo lexi "Total
24 2023 2024 wﬁ..»m 2024 2023 2034 ik E 2024 2023
Fro'millions  Frw'mitlions Frw'miflioss  Few'millions  Few'millions  Frw'millions  Frw'millions Few'millions.  Frw'miltions  Frw'millions
16:932 15,049 17,785 20,008 - - - - 34717 39,056
1,075 1101 - - - - 1,075 1,101
13,449 22,341 2,018 2018 - - - - 15,457 24,359
2,246 2076 ‘7,166 6444 221 822 - - 10,333 9,342,
I 459 1,790 1784 1,105 - - - : 3242 2,896
- - - - 515 515 - - 515 515,
- - 6,739 2062 - - - - 6,739 2:062
2,121 1061 2338 1,130 - . - - 4,459 2181
1,048 1049 - - - . - - 1,048 1049
50,126 33927 48 455 24,637 - - - - 98,580 58,565
- - - 539 539 - - 539 539
. 1,595 1,635 .- - = 1.595 1,635
108,456 82,393 87,879 59,029 1,975 1877 - - 198310 143299
- - - - 1101 1,339 1371 - 2472 1,33
4,327 - - - - - 4,327
19,269 19,346 21,651 21,738 - - - - 40,920 41,084,
- - - 12,306 - 4,308 1,569 529 1.569 17,142
- - - 1 - 4622 - - - 4623
4,121 4170 5,120 - - * - - 9240 4,170
- - 10,958 - 3,287 - - 14245 -
- - - 14,564 . - - - - 14,564.
13,498 5286 42.843 14,995 9,349 - - - 65.689 20,281
- - - - 551 - - - 551 .
- - - - * 850 735 850 735
- - 2,184 - - - = - 2,184 -
- - - . - * 1,063 - 1,063
- . - - 324 321 - - 324 321
125
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'RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘FOR THE YEARENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Pension Medical . Maternity leave . m.ma Heza "Total B

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2033 2024 2023

Eratmillions  Frw'millions  Frw'millions - Frw'miliiors: Frw'milligns-  Few'miillions  Frw'nitlisns Frow'miltioss  Fre'miliiens  Frw!mililans

-Access Bank Rwanda 1,055 2,106 11,727 12:898 - - - - 12,782 15,004

DUTERIMERE IMF Ple - - 533 - - - 1512 R06: 2,046 806

Goshen - - - - - - - 823 - 823

‘SAGER.GANZA MCROFINANNCE 200 260 -

MUTANGUHA 827 827 -

Sub-total (2) 41.2 37,943 35,236 95,015 76,501 14,612 10,559 6,330 3,956 153,899 126,282

€all deposit.- KCB - - - - - - - - - .

Sub-total {3 - - - - - - - - - .

Bank of Kjgali - Nest fund (long term deposity 4§35 49 49 = - - - - 49 49

Stib-total (4) 49 49 - - - - - 49 49

Grand total (142+3+4) 146447 117,678 182,894 135,530 16,587 12,466 6,330 3,956 352,258 269,630,

Impairment provision (835) (671) (1.042) (773) {95) an (363 (15) (2,008) {1,529y

"Total tuet o lnipairrsenty 145613 117,007 181,851 134,757 16,492 12,395 6,254 3,941 350,251 268,100
Q.m.mmﬁaumc: of deposits with financial msmﬁsmoum (Non-carrent Vs Curren )

Pension Medical Maternity leave. Ejo Heza Total

2024 2023 2024 N.S_..».. 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Fro'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'milliens Frw'millioris’ Frw'millions  Fiw'milliens  Frw'millions Fri'millions.  Frw'millions

Non-current. 107,670 81,771 865 837 58 257, 1,881 1,806 - (15) 196,387 141,818

Current 37,943 35,236 95,015 76,501 14,612 10,589 6,204, 3,956 153,863 126,282

145,613 117.007 181,851 134,787 16,492 12,395 6,294 3941 350,351 268,100
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

41.1. Reconciliation of moveément in ltong term deposit during the year

Pension Medical Maternity Leave Total

2024 2024 2024 2024

Frw'millions- Frw'millions Frw'millions: Frw'millions

Opening 1 July $2,393 59,029 1.877 143,299

Prior year adjustment - 3 . 3

Placemenis, . 26,200 .mm,m.oo - 54.500

Interest accrued during the vear 10,381 3,038 222 18,841

Receipts during the year (10,718) {7.486) {123) (18,327)

Clusing 30 June 108,456 87.879 1,975 198,310
41.2; Reconciliation of movement in short term deposits in financial institutions during the year

Pension Medical Maternity léave .Ejo Heza ‘Total

2024 2024 2024 2024 2024

Frw'millions  Frw'miilions Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions

Opening 1 July . 35,236 76,501 10,589 3,956 126,282

Adjustment to opening balances ) (1) - 2y

"Placement during the yedr 61,441 102,190 14,000 6,100 183,731

Interest accrued during the year 3,294 9,626 1,416 404 1 .&.u.q.u.o

Maturities (62,029) {93,301y {11,393) (4,129) (170,852)

Closing 30 June: 37,943 95,015 14,012 6,330 ‘153,899

41.3. Reconciliation of movement in Bank of Kigali — Nest Fund.

2024 2023

. ' Frw'millions  Frw'millions

Opening 1 July 49 5,194

>&..c.m:dmﬁ 10 opening balances - (%)

Interest-acerued during the year - 149

Maturities - (5,290)

‘Closing 30 June 49 49
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REFORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned)

42, Cash and bank balances

BNR and Commercial banks

Interest receivable

Impairment provision

BNR and Commercial banks (halahces
net of impairment)

“Savings and Credit Societies (SACCOs)

Mbbeash
Petty cash

Transit accounts

43. Payables

43, (a) Benefits Payable’

Bengfits payable

43. (b) Amounts retained on construction contracts

Retention on constriction conlracts

Prasion 7..—»&2._. CRI1l Matérnity leave EjoHeza .,—.,o.m;.
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Frw' Frw Frw! Frw! Frw! Frw! Frw' Frw'! Frw Frw' Frw'
millions 'millions  millions  milliois  milliens millions  millions  miltions 'millions.  millions  milliens
92251 68862 53,55 43417 33780 12,363 5.187 1,691 1514 193647 127957
13 N 13
(528) (392 (308) @47) (203) (54) {74) 3h (10) O (L1 {(734)
9,723 68,470 53,252 43,170 33577 8,921 12,289 5,156 1,680 1,519 192,524 127,235
1 - - - 26 154 : . 10 (4 36 150,
5 8 5 7 6 9 - 1 - N 25.
374 i9 420 17 i8 ‘116 28 ¥ - - 837 154.
92,102 68,497 53,677 43,195 33,626 9,280 12,318 5,158 1,691 1,518 143.413 127,565
Pension Medical CBHI Maternity leave Total
2024 2023 w24 2023 2024 2023 2034 2023 2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'miltions. Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'milions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millionsFrw'millionsFrw' millions
- - 15,526 14,334 23.277 22.646 456 291 39.259 37.271
- - 15,526 14,334 13277 22 646 456 291 39,259 37,271
Pension . Medical CBHI o Materaity leave Total .
.Nem.a .Nauw.. 2624 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions Fro'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'milliors Frw'millions Frw'miflionsFrw'millionsFrw'millions
2.551 2452 77 69 14 4 1 0 2,644 2,526
2,551 2452 7 69 i4 4 1 B 2,644 2,526
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43. (c) Other payables.

Pension ~ Madieat CRHL Matemity leaye Eju Heza, “Tutal

2024 023 2024- 2013 2024 2023 n4 U223 M 2023 2004 2023

Fre -Frw Frw. Frw- Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frow Frw Frw
SUFPLIERS 387 472 2242 1,233 191 365 10 3z 155 - 3,005 2133
SUPPLIERS EOR MARTENITY LEAVE R - - - - - 335 0 - e 135 140
AL, GONTRIBUTORS - - - - - - & 145 - - é EL
ML, UNIDENTIEIED . . " . . - . 1 . . 1.
"ML CONTRIBUTIONS DECLARED NOT YET-PAID . - - . - - 1060y (1,045 N - {1,060} {1,045)
ML (CONTRIBUTIONS PENALTIES DECLARED NOT YET PAID - - - - - - 920 B8 - - 929 B&6
ML, ESTIMATION FOR NON-DECLARED CONTRIBUTIONS - - - - - 134 38 - “ 134 3%
STAFF SALARIES PAYABLE i 4 . ] - - - - - 4 4
SCLARIDITY FUND £ 18 - 17 o 25 d 3 - - 58 63.
CESTRAR CONTRIBUTIONS . - . . . - - . . - . -
MUTUAL AID FUND - o o - ‘- - - - - - o -
'STAFF CONTRIBUTION 10 TONTINE - 1 - 1 1 2 - - - . 2 3
SONARWA INDIVIDUAL INSURANCE - - - . - N . - - . - | 1
SFAR DEDUCTIONS . - - . 1 i . . . q 1
CORARSNSURANCE- - . - . . . . . . . . B
SPA. “ - . - . . . - . - - .
SORAS INDIVIDUAL INSURANCE . - 1 1 5 6 . . - 4 7.
AGACIRG DEVELOPMENT FUND - . - - - . - . - . - "
PRIME LIFE INSURANCE . . - - . A i - . . - . 1
Ej} HEZA. I ! i I 2 ) - - - - 4 k)
OTHER SALARY REVERSALS. . - : - 2 - - . . . 2 ..
‘RRA-WHT 94 (1zh 416 302 (21%) . i (2 1 - 91 39
PAYE ‘84 60 84 59 136 131 7 ? 13 - 324 258
VAT {VALUE ADDED TAX) 1,005 1,678 (764) (839) {i9n (157 1 z T - 1 B4
VAT [VALUE ADDED TAX) FROM RENTALS (152) 161} : - - - - - - - {152) (&)
‘PENSIGN BENEFIT PAYABLE- 170 156 . - . - - - - - 170 155,
UHBENEFIT PAYABLE 13 6. - - - - - . - - 13 g
PENSION BENEFITS RETURNED UNPAID- 12 12 - - . . - - . - 12 13
OCCUPATIONAL HAZARD BENEFITS RETURNEL UNPAITH iy (8] - - - - - - - - {1} (1}
CPGEL PAYABLE 44 45 - - - . - - - - 44 45.
CONTRIRUTION DUE TO EMPLOYEES FROM BURUNDI 198 110 - - - - - - - 108 . e
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Penision - Medical CBHI Matemity Leave EfoHex Total

2024 2023 204 08 2034 2003 04 2023 114 2005 4 2023

Frw ‘Frw " Frw, Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
UNDERWRITTEN UNDUE TO BE RECOVERED - . - - - . . - - - - -
ELECTRICITY ADVANCES TO TENANTS, . } i N N . . . - . B} -
RSSBPENSION &OH 14 13 19 1z 6 ki i 1 4 - 4 50
RSSB/RAMA s 1 k]| 19 58 51 2 2 T - 121 Bl
OTHER CREDITORS 49 4 - - - . - - . - 44 41
RSSEMATERNITY - 1 ! 2 2 - . . . 4 3
RSSBICBHL 0.5 ] i ! 1 2 2 - - - - 3 3
UNIDENTIFIED RECEIFTS, - - . - - - . . R R .
OTHER MISCELLANEOUS CREDITORS 1.546 82 345 0 12,894 1965 T 19 368 . 15,158 12,26
- ARREAS CBHI - - : - 1,134 1131 - . - - 1,13 (RES]
ACCRUED EXPENSES I4 T 13 13 14 i6 1 1 - am 4 246
DEFERRED. INCOME ] 121 3 2 - - - . . ) 144.
TOTAL, 3,486 2,080 2,383, 993 4,195 13378 - 435 211 e 202 21,035 16,860

-Othet creditors mainly represent advance paymerits-teceived by CBHI froni mérbers for the sibsequent year:

ﬂ...«...ah.... —,...,..l..r..,. A ﬁ.,...rs...é ms..r_.....ai:. meri..z?. —. - — ﬁ




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD-
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

44. Deferred income- Ejo Heza

Pensinn Medical .CBEL Maternity leave: Ejo Heza Tatal
20 2023 1023 024 2073 24 2023 2029 2023 2024 2023
Frw'millicns,  Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions  Fro'millions  Frw'miilions Fra‘milions  Frwmillions  Frw'miltions  Frav'miflioss
MINECOFIN defirred income- wnuiiiized Fands . . X - - - - - . 1,086 . 1.0%6
AFR deferred income tinngible assét) . - - - - - - - - 214 - 11
AFR.deferred income {(PPE) - - - - - - - - . B . -
- - - - - - - - - 1305 - 1,308

The balance for deferred income on Property, Plant and Equipmient and intangible assets is equivalent to the netbook value of the assets as at the reporting date.
Deferred income from MINECOFIN represents unutilised balance on eperational bank acéount net of any outstanding payables.at the reporting date.

.

_.., ...... "

o
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned)
45, Capital Accumulated members funds and retained earnings.

(a) Share capital

At 1 July'2023

Pension
Frw
53

Medical
Frw
1,179

Total
Frw
1,232

At 30 June 2023

53

1,179

1,232

At 1.July 2024

53

1,179

1,232

At 39 June 2024

53

1,179

1,232

This reserve records all transfers received from the. Government of Rwanda through.the Ministry of Finance-and

Economic Planning (MINECOFIN) which are designated as capital to the Board
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continied)
45, ._Q&.. Accumulated members funds and retained earnings

Retained-earnings relate to surpluses from the medical and pension division not converted 1o slalutory reserve. Accumulated members® funds represent the surplus o the other
reserves of occupational Hazards, Movements in the reserve aré shown:on the statement of members’ fund. For £jo Heza, net income earned has been reported as retained carnings.
and not allocated 1o the imémbers” fund. Changes in [air valte of equity ibvestments:through profit and loss is presented it a fair value reserve and not processed through retained

earnings.
Pensian Medical CBHI Mateinity leave. Ejo Heza Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 3033 2024 2023 2024 2023
Frw' Fraw' Frw' Fry' Frw Frw! Frw! Frw' Frw Frw Frw' Frw:
millions millisis  millions niiflions  'millions millions.  millions millions  ‘milliens  "millions millions-  !millions
A1 July’ 471,384 415,396 429,568 371,670 3345 {12.3204. "51,360 38,634 6,564 ille 267.81% 816,494
Adjustments to opening balances M 0 4 { - @ - - 430 (5 (55)

Altotment of net income for the year to reserves - -
Zmﬂ...mzncq:n.,waﬂ the year- 197,376 176,341 ‘82,658 57,240 5,323 20,667 _,.,_L.E 12,926 15019 1501 9 118,048 276,193
Allotment of netincome for the-year 1o statstory reserves-

: : i3 1e4 e o ) ) . . R - 2260353y (113,694
and fair value reserve (13.173)  (114353)  (7.180) 638 (220333 ( ]
Allptrient of increase in oeéupational hazdrd reserve - . ) - . - - : ~ . .
‘technical ) = - - E - | B
Netinicrease in Ejo Heza member funds - - - - - - {9,758} (1L120) @758y (11,120)
Net increase in'Ejo Heza unallocated member. funds - - - - - - - - - -
Netincome for year-after allofment 84204 55989 75478 57,899 5323 20,667 17,444 12,9% 5488 3,899 187937 151379
At30 June 555,586 471,384 505,043 429,568 13,668 8,345 69,003 51,560 12,452 6,964 1,188,751 967,819
133
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
46. Revaluation reserve

The: revaluatlon surplus represents the surplus: on the. revaluation of land, buildings and investment
propertles and is non-distributable. Movements in the reserve are shown on the statement of changes

in equity.

Pension .Nlediﬂll Tatal

Frw'millions  Frw'millions  ¥rw'millions.
At 1 July 2022 87148 7,834 94,982
Revalugtion gain/(loss): B - B
At30 June 2023 87,148 7,834 94,982
At 1 July2023 87.148 7.834 94,982
Revaluation gain/{loss) - - -
At.30 June 2024 £7.148 7.834 94,982

47. Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents thé surplus on the revaluation of equity investments at fair value through profi it
and loss, and investrhent properiies: This surplus. is non-distributable. Movements in the reserve are shown on
the statcment of changes in equity. The revaluation has no deferred tax lmpact as RSSB. is tax exempt by law,

Pensian Medical “Total
2024 20023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions.  Frw'millions:  Frw'millions  Frw'millions:
At 1 July (4). 159.364) (42,776) 21,527 23,186 (37,8373 {20,590}

A'djust_merit to opening balance
Allotment of increase in net assets
during the year - gainf{loss).arising 63,568 {16,588) 7,180 (658Y 70,748 {17.247)
fram changes:n fair values.of ‘
‘equity-investiments (B)

Allotment of increase in net assets
during the year - gain loss) arising
from change in fair value of
nvestment properties

AL30 Juric (D=A+5) 4,204 (59,364) 28,707 21,527 32911 (37,837)

48. Statutory reserves

The statutory teserves.arc sct out by decree law of 22 Augist 1974 concerning organisation of Social Security.
Atticle 15 of the Lawv stipulates that the National Social Security Institutions provide the following reserves for
both the occupational hazards and pensions branches;

d) Pension Working Capital rescrve is equivalent:io a quarter 6f.the tolal expenses. of the pension’s branch
prévious year

b) Pension Technical resefve should not-be lower than the total expenses of the branch for the current-three
vears

¢)  Occupational Hazards Te_clinic__al' reserve must be equal to twelve times the total amount of occupational
‘hazards paid during the year

d}  Occupational Hazards Secuiily reserve is equal to a quarter of the expenses incurred during the last three:
years

€)  Occupational Hazards Working capital resetve should be equal to 4 quarter of the expenses of the previous
year.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

48, Statutory reserves continned

Statutory reserves as at the end of the year were as follows:

Qccupationat hazard reserve -technical
Occupafjonat hazard reserve. -Security
Occup'at'i_or_:al hazard rescrve- Wu_rking_ capital
Sub-tofal (1).

Pension reserve- technical

Pension reserve- wufking..{_:apit'al

Sub=total (2)

Total

48.1. Occupational hazard reserve “technical

At 1 July (A)
Allotment of increase in ‘net asséts during 'thc'_year _(B) :

Allotment of decrease in oceupational hazard teserve ~ tech_nical_

At 30 June (C=A+B)

48.1 (a) Reconciliation of allotment-of net income for the year to reserve

b_i;_cupational hazard benefit paid during the year ended 30 June 2023 (B) [See note: 10.1]
Alloeation of inerease in net assets to Qectipational hazard fechnical reserve {Bx12)

Occupational hazard benefit paid dutinig the year ended 30 June.2022 [See note 10.1]
Allocation of increase in net assets to Occupational hazaid techuical reserve (Bx12)

48.2. Occupational hazard reserve -Security

At July (A)
Allotmient of increase in net assets during the.year (B)
AL36 June (C=A+B)

2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
48.1 66,584 64,401
482 10,694 9,646
483 3,844 3475
81,123 78,522
484 935,106 799,196
48.5 67.576 56,482
1,002,682 855,678
1.683.805 934,200
‘Pension
2024 2023
Frvw'millions Frw'millions
65.401 63922
49.1 () 1;183 1,479
66,584 65.401
Abiount
{Frw'millions)
1183
1,183
1479
17,742
Pénsion-
2024 2023
Frw'millions  Frw'illions
9,646 8,663
49.2 (a) 1.048 978
10,694 9,646
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RWANDA SOGIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

48.2 (a) Reconcilistion of allotment of net income for the year to reserve:

Ampunt
(Frw'millions)y
Tetal ecoupational hazard benefits expense2021 37
Tatal (}ccupaii;}nal ‘hazard benefits expense 2'0'22 437
Total ocenpational hazard benelits expense 2023 460
Tatal occupational hazards benefit expenses paid in the lxst three years (A) 1,277
Allgeation of increase in net assets of pension scheme to reseive (C=Ax25%) 319
Amount
A{Frw'millions)
‘Total occupational hazard berefits expense 2021 1,009
Total oceupational hazard benefits-expense 2022 896
Total aecupational hazard benefits expense 2023 1009
Total 6ecupational hazards benefit expenses paid in the last thiee. years (A) 3.915
Allocation of increase in net assets of pensian schéme to reserve (C=AX25%) 729
48.3. Occupational hazard reservé- Working capital
Pension
2024 2023
‘Frw'miflions Frw'millions’
At 1July (A} 3,475 F141
Allotment of ingrease. in.net asséis during the year (B) 49,3(a) 370 333
At30 June (C=A+B) 3,844 3,475
48.3 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year fo reserve
_ Amount,
(Frw'millions)
Total oceupational hazard benefits expense 2023 469
Allocation of inciease:in net assets of pension scheme to réserve (Friv) (B=Ax25%). : 187
Totsdl cceupational hazard benefits expense 2023 1009
Allgcation of increase.in net assets of pénsion scheme to reserve (Frw) (B=Ax23%) 252
48.4. Peasion reserve- technical
Pension
2024 2023
Frw'millions Frw'millions
At1 July (A 799,196 681,035
Alletmentof increase in net assets _'during' the year (B} 49:4 (a) (35910 118,161
At 30 June (C=A+B) 935,106 799,196,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

48.4 (a)y Reconciliation of‘atiotment of nct income for the. year

N Amount
{Erw'millions)
Total Pension benefits expense (Paid 1o Pensioners) 2022 34,501

: Total Pension benefits expense (Paid to Pensioners) 2023 A8.545
Total Pension benefiis expense (Paid to Pensioncrs) 2024 _ 41,530
Total benefits expense forthe last three years (A) 114,577
Allocation ‘of net assets to. pengion technical reserve (B=A) 114,577
i 3 _ -Amount.
! : (Frw'millions)
: “Total Pensicn benefits expense (Paid to deceased members Beneficiaries] 2022 5458
; Total Pension benefits expens (Paid to deccased members Beneliciaries) 2023 5.831
Total Pension benefits:expense (Paid to dleceased members Beneficiaries) 2024 _ 10,045
Tutal benefits ¢xpense for the last threg years (A) 21,333
‘ — Allocation of net assefs to pension technical reserve (B=A) 21,333
: 48.5. Pension reserve- working capital
_, Pension
L 2024 2073
Frw'millions  Frw'millions
= At T July (4) 56,482 16,492
; ; Allotment of increase in net assets during the year {B) 49,5 (ay 11.094 9,990
; A 30 Juné (C=A+B) 67.376 56,482
ST e .
; | (2) Reconciliation of allocation of net income Tor the year to reserve
: ' Amount
; (Frw'millions)
) Benefits paid to pensicners in 2023 (A){see note 10;1] 38.545
’ Allgeation of increase in net assets-to Pcns;iu_n working capital reserve for the .yea_r-_(B=A*25% 5.636
? - ’ Amount
; (Frw'millions)
! ‘Benefits paid to pensicners in 2023 (A) 5,831
j — Allocation of incréase in net issets to Pension working _chpital.re'ser_ve. far the year (B=A*25% ) 1,458
4%. Unallocated pension contribution reserve
; ) ) ) ) Pension Tatal _
S 2024 2023 2024 2023
; Frw'millions  Fro'milligns.  Frw'millions. Friv'millions
L At 1 July (4) 2,154 1,964 2,154 1,964
f — Reglassification of unallocated contributions from ather pa'yabic_s to } ) . .
H TESErVes
* .},I_lin)allocated_-.comnbutm'ns. received during the year 162 282 162 282
‘ — Allocation of previously unallocated contributions to member ¥ . - aiy
}: accounts () (93} 1135y (93} (1359
At31July D=(A+B-C) 2,180 2,154 2,180 2,154
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY- BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
50. Ejo Heza Member funds.

Ejo Heza
2024 2023
Fro'millions  Frw'millions
Accumulited member funds (allocated member contributions) 48,488 18,730
Reserve for unallocated member 'contribu_tiq_ns‘; 242 103.
48,730 38835

Accurhulated member-funds {(member contribufions/savings)

Ejo Heea
2024 2023
Frw'millions  Frw'millions
Asat T July 38730 27,610
Member.coritributions during the.year allocatéed 7,125 11,120
Government-contributions during the year aliocated 2,633 -
As at30 June 48,488 38,730

‘51. Contingent liabilities

Thie Board i5.a htlgant'm various cases for breach of contract arising in the ‘nerimal course of business The
directors are.of the view that the Board has: high chances of success against.the plaintiffs and noneof the cases
individually or in aggregate would have a significant. impact on the RS8B's operations.. The. directors are.
confident that the.Board shall receive tavourable ruling from thé oulstanding cases. Information on these cases
has not. been disclosed as. the directors consider that the .disclosure of the information could prejudice the
Board’s position. The-cases in which the Board is a litigant ma_|or]y relate to:alleged breach of conteacts that the

‘Baard entered into and menibers sumg for their unséttled benefit claims.

-Othér than. the above: cases and l:abl]lty to pay future pensions and other Lienéfits, there Were no contingent

liabilities at 3¢ June 2024,
52. Related parties

The Rwanda Social Security Board operatés uider the Ministty of. Finance and Economic Planning
(MINECOQFIN). In accordance ‘with Law No 45 of 2010 .establishing the Rwanda Social Security Board and
determining its mission, organization and ﬂmctlonmg, the Priine Minister appoints. the directors to the Board-of
RSSB. RSSH considers the Government of Rwanda (*GoR™) to-be in a‘position to exercise: significant influericé
over it, and therefore regards GoR and several of its bodies as related parties for the purpose of the disclosures,

“required by 1AS 24-(2000) Related Paities Disclosures

RSSB has elected to. ddopt the e!(empt[on available in paragraph 25 of [AS 24, and therefore has nat provided
detailed disclosure of its-transactions. with GoR and it agencies. A summary of fhe Board’s iransactions with

the GoR and-its bodies is. included below:

- RSSB advanced dmounts fo the City of Kigali, Ministry of Infrastrecture and Ministry of Finance ‘and
Economiic Planning, Details.of thesc advances are disclosed in note 34 td these financial statements..

] RSSB in the normal course of 'lts investment and ireasury operations during: the year purchased treasury
bonds and bills as reflected in notes 30 and 31 to the financial statements. RSSB also places term depesits
and operates currerit bank accounts with the following institutions which dre related partiesy

~  National Bank of Rwanda (BNR) which is the central bank of the. Republic of Rwanda.

—  Rwanda Development Bank (BRD) - RSSB held 32.2% of ordinary shares in BRD as at 30 June
2024,

—  Bank of Kigali (BK) — RSSH held 34:3% of ordinary shares’in BK as at 30 June 2024.
—  Zigama CS8~ is.a.crédit and savings bank inder the Ministry of Delence (MINADEF).

Thie transactions descritied above are both collectively and individually significant to the financial slatenients.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

'ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

53, Actuarial valuation
a) Pension and eccupational hazard sclieme
Background and purpose of the actuarial valuation

As prcwously reporiced, RSSB therefore commissioned AON ch1tt limited to conduct actuarial valuation of the
pension and occupational hazard scheme as at 30 June 9020, The: purposc of an actuarial valuation is to review
the long-term financial sustainability of a scheme. Aoh Hewiit Ltd issued an acluarlai réport- dated 16° Fcbruarv
2021,

The actuarial valuation report includes projections over the next 50 years from the valuation date, i.e. over the
period 2026-2021 to 2069:2670 lor:

i) ‘the financial position of the-Sclieme on a "goirig concern” basis, comparing the actual assets held against
‘a target amount planned to-be sufficicnt (o pay the bencfits;

iy the planning or budgeting of cantributions required to bring the asseéts in line with the planned target.

iiiy  ihe contribution rate required to balance contributiori income and expenditure (knowr as ‘Breakeven
Conftribution Rate®)

iv)  income and expenditure

¥).  The ‘Balance of Fund® asa multiple-of expenditure (also known as the *Fund Ratio”)

vi} Dependeiicy ratio and meémbership profile.

Minagement.and directors have not undertaken-an actuarial assessment-for the period ‘ended 30 June 2022 and
believe the report for the'period ended 3¢ June 2020 provides reasonable actuarial valuation.to support a review.
of the long-term. fi nancial sustainability of & schcmc

The results of the actuarial valuation of the Rwanda Pension and Occupational Hazard Scheme {"thc Scheme"}
as.at 30 June 2020 over are as summarised below:

1} Actuarial present value of promised retirerhent benefits for the scheme
The actuarial vafuation shows that the pension and occupational hazards scheme had ‘projected actuarial

present value of" promised refirement benefits. of Frw 5,709.2 billion compared to net assets of at Frw
1,052.3 billion at.30 June 2020, resulting to 2 deficit of Frw 4,656.9 billion, as shown below:

As at 30 Jane

2020 Firw’

: L biilions

Net assets of the scheme (A) o B ' L 1,052.3
Past service liabilities {present value of benefits promised on scrvu:e)

. Aciive. members. ; ' o o _ ' ' ' (4.640,9)
Deferred members . e R AL LD
‘Pensioners N e {351.9)
“Total past service liabilities (B) (5,709.2)
Short fall (C-B) =~ ' ' T T (4,656.90)

‘This.corresponds to-a funding ratio of 1 8.4%. This compares with a_Schemc funding position of 54 1% at.the
previous actuarial valuation as at 30-June 2016 (issucd in January 2018).

The actuarial présent value -of benefits promiscd on service as at the valvation-date is derived. as the

discounted present value of projected expenditure in respect of ‘accrued benefits, based on projected salary
levels. .
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)

Pension branch

For Pension ‘hranch of the scheme, ‘the actuarial ‘vilugtion shows that the branch had prajected actuarial
present value of promised retirement benefits of Frw 5;673.9 billion compared to net assets of at Frw 789.2

billion at 30 une 2028, resulting to a deficit of Fri 4,884.7 billion, as shown beloy:

As:at 30 June.

2020

Frw’ billiens

Assets of the scheme (A) 789.2

“Past service liabilities owed '

{present value of benefits promised on service) . -
Active members (4.614.8}
Deferred members {(716.9)
Pcnsioners _ _{342.7)
Taotal past service liabilitie's (B) (5,673.9)
Shnrt fall (A-B) (4,884.7)

This cotresponds to'a funding ratio of 13.9%. This compares with 2 funding ratio: of 41.1% at the previous

actuarial valuation.

Occupational hazard branch of the scheme

‘For Occupational hazard branch of the scheme, the détuarial valuation shows that the branch had projected
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits of Frw 35. 3 biliion compared to. net assets of at Friv
'263.1 billion at 30 Junc 2020, resulting to a surplus of Frw 227 8 billion, as shown below:

As at 30 Jane 2020
e » Frw' billions
Assets-of the scheme.as at 30 June 2020 2631
Past service liabilitics (present value of benefits pl;dm'ised' on service) .
Active members ' . B - (26:1) |
”Pensmners (9.2)
Total past service liabilities {35.3)
Surplus 2278

The:surplus of the assets relative to the technical provisions 1§ Friwv 227.8bn. for the occupational hazards
branch. This. corresponds to a funding ratio of 745.53%, compared 1o [‘undlng ratio of 1,100.9% at“the

previous actuarial valuation..

The overall decline in the funding ratio of the.scheme compared o previous actuarial valuation is attributed
fo.a.number of changes t¢ the Scheme since the previcus actuarial valuation was completed as ‘at 30 June
2{)16 as well as changes in the data, methodology and assumptions. This has led.to changes in the results
since the previous actuarial valuatlon The main changes to the Schemie durlng he inter-valuation’ period

‘were outlined in the actuarial feport to a5 follows;

a) The last pension increase in the Scheme was awarded i0.2018 where the Minimum Pension was
incréased from RWF 5,200 per menth (which was applicable from 2002) to RWF 13,600 per month.

and other-pension-benefits increased as well,

B}  Prior to 2015, deﬁ:rred members who had contributed but did not-make any claim on their pensions for
a period of 10 years and above would [orfeit their benefits. However, new: laws with effect from 2015
have reversed this-approach and now anyone who cofitributed and who claims their pension even aftera

10-year period, will have their accrued rights. preserved,
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR.ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Funding position excluding deferred members

‘The overai]l shortfall of the -assets relative to the techaical provisions. ‘excluding deferred members is RWF-

3,940.5 billionr for the Scheme. This corresponds to: a funding ratio of 21.1%; The shortfall of the assets relative
to the technical provisions excluding deferred members is RWF 4.168.3 billion for the Pension Branch. This.
corresponds to a funding ratio of 15.9%.

2) Contributions required to bring the assets in line with the planiied warger (the required future
service contribution rate)

The required future service contribution rate is the vate of contribution that would normally be appropriate if the
Scheme had no surplus o shortfzll and the asséts were exactly - equdl to the technical ‘provisions at the valuation
date_ The required total contribution rate under the Pension Branch to cover the cost of benefits accruing over
the next year, excluding expenses of the Scheme; is 27.1% of pensionable salaries {The tai¢ is before any-
allowance to cover the amortisation of the deficit) as shown below:

Pension branch-
.Required coatributions for: %age of pensionable salary,
" Future service benefits under pension branch o ' B ' 271 '
Administrative expenses-under pension branch ' ' 03
, - sk SR - - prra

This compares with coniributions of approximately 16.6% of pensionable sdlaries at the previous valuation. It
should also be noted that only 6% of pensienable salarics is currenily being paid by the employer and cmployee
jointly.

Th_e increase in contribution rate overthe valuation period under the Pension Branch is mainly dusto the change
in financial assumptions and demegraphic assumptions {ageing pepulatien and increase in life expectancy).
Occupaﬁan_af fiazard Branch

The required total contribution rate under the Oceupational Hazard Branch to ¢over the cost of benefits aceruing
over the next year, excluding expenses of the Scheme; is 0.2% of pensionable salarjes (The rate is before any
allowance to Tower the surpius).

Required contr:butmns for %oage of p'en_sinn_able-s_al_ary
Fulure service beneﬁts under occupatlonal Frazard branch 0.2
Administrative expenses under occupational hazard branch ) 0 o

0.3

Historically, administrative expenses represent on average 0.4% of pensionable salaries. These expenses were
apportioned between the: pension and ocuupatlonal hazard branches in a 75%/25% split.

3) The contribution rate requtired to balance contribution income and expenditiire (hknown s
“Breakeven Contribution Rate’)

The breakeven contribution rate represents the Pay-As-You: Go (PAYG) contribution rate as if the Scheme was

‘unfiinded 4nd only considers money-in and money-out without fiuture investment rélurns, The contribution=

weighted average break-even contribution rate over the projectioh period is arourid 23.4% of pénsionable salary
as compared fo the current 6% of contributions.

The projected short term and long-term break-even contribution rates required-p. balance contribution inconte
with e:\pcndlture on benefits and expenses-each year over-a 50-year projection period are shown below:
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

Short-term break-even confribution rates:

Year 2021 2022 2023] 2024] 2025 2026 ] 2027 2028 | 2029 | 2030 '
Pension 6.60% | 3.30% | 3.10% | 3.20%.| 320% | 3.30% | 3.40% | 3.50% 3.60% Ta00%

Oi:cupatmna! 020% | 0.20% | 0.20% 3 0:20% | 0:20% | 0.20% | 0.20% § 0.20% |. 020% 0.20%

hazard _ _ ' ' ' 3 _ . .

Scheme 6.80% | 3.50% | 3.30% | 340% | 3.40% | 3.50% | 3.60% | 3.70% 356% | 4209

Long-term break-even contribution rates:

Year _ 2021 | 2030 |- 2040 | 2050 '_ _2060 2070

Pension ... . 6.60% | . . 400% | . 970%| _2780%{ 3310%|  18.710%

Occupational hazard | 0.20% |  020% 0.20% | 0.20% 0:20% ' 0.20%

Scheme 6.80% 420% | 18.00% | 28.00% 33.30% | 18.96%

These ‘compare with the current 8% salary conttibution rate of which' 6% in respect of the pension- branch and
2%is in respect of the occupational hazard hidnch.

The:current contribution rate seems to be sufficient fo meet benefits. ot a PAYG basis until the year 2038. The
lower Break-sven cortribution rate. at the start of the projection period reflects the lower average service (i.e.
those entitled to-a lump sum. instcad of the more costly pension paymentsy and part subsidy by the surplus in.

-occupational hazard branch'as well-as covering pénsion paymenis by a large active population earfier in- the

projection. Afier 2038, theé current contribution rate is no longer sufficient as evidenced by the rising required
break-even contribution rate.

The, current pension branch contribution rate- is cxpcgtcd to be.sufficient to henefits oni a PAYG basis until the
year 2036. Howevet, after. 2038, the pension branch break-even contribution rate increases ta 35:6% of

- pensionable salary in 2056/2057 assuming that there will be fewer active members in.the future to bear the cost
-of benefit payments and expenses thereby clearly indicating that the current contribution rate of 6% would not

be adequate over the projection period. The occupational hazard Branch break-even contribution rate is Tow for

‘the duration of the projection period ta reflect the low level of benefits currently claimed from this sectioh of the

Scheriie.

-4). Meinbership profile and dependency ratio

Age distribution of active membe‘réhip.a_s_ at 30 June2020'(s shown below:

Age biracket {years) 16-20 20-30 | . 3040 40-50 | 50-60 >60

Number of active members | 20,401 206,471 204.903 102,781 | 42315 10,398

The dependency ratio shows how the membership-profile is exp;cted_ to.change over-time-and: is calculated as a
piojected ratio of pension beneficiaries 10-getive members. The dépendency ratic is expected to increase and

then stabilize at around 120%. reflecting, the Sclicme maturing aver the projection period and the ageing of the

population asshown below:

Year 2020/2021 | 202172022 | 2030/2031 | 2040/2041 | 2056/2051 | 206072061 | 2670/2071
Active members 587.269 | 639456 | 1.097.689 | 1.149344 | 1013552 | 862940 | 971,205
" Dieferred mcmbcrs 925,028 916,993 | 8502911  763.115 6476911 504.600 343,605
Pensioners '38.338 54.584 | 102,959 273629 650.594 | 1,040,366 | 1.165.163
Dependency ratio 7% | 9% | 9% 4% | 64% - 121% 120%

Active membership:is projected to increase rapidly- initially due to the high assumptions for new entrants and
low number of pensioners. It starts to fall afteér year 2050 due to the higheér number of pensioners-and the slower
increase’in new enirants,

“The deferred members are projected to .décrease over time -only consi'derihg;lhe’ .'e:{isting deferréed members

without allowing for-any ncw members and a zero-withdrawal rate has heen zssumed 1o reflect the. mandatory
nature of the Scheme.

The pensionets: are projected to increase gradually over time to reflect the retirement of the. existing active
miembership, retirement of new entrants in the active membership-and retirement of deferred members. It also
reflects the fact that pensioners are living longer than expected,
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RWANDA SOGIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3) Incore and e;xp'enditure

The long-térm projections’ of future income and expenditure from financial- year: 2020/2021 to financial year

207042071 dre shown below:

2020/2021 | 2030/2631_| 2040/2641 izoﬁofzusl f 2060/2061 [zovnfzml
. ) . . . Fr“‘ billions: . o
Assets at start of the year 1,052 3,726 9,294 (850)° .{81.609) {271,854)
Income: B ' - ) - . .
Contributions _ 167 518 581 1,483 2619 | 6,087
Outzo e | e : : & — T . .
Bénefits paymerit _ 131 233 1,153 5,005 - 10702 | 13,931
Experises . . 36 691 . 104) sz | 4%
Tatal outgo : 143 | 269 1222 | 5,199 10885 | 14,357
Operating serplus/(deficit).. 24 | 249 2an | @7 (8:266) (8,270)
Investmcn’s income: 68 246 587 (171) (3.483) {17.639)
Assets-at the end of the year 1,144 | 4221 9,640 47351 | (95358) | (297.783)

Expenditure is prmcctcd to be.more:than income on an annual basis from the year 2043. The projected income
becomes riegative as a result ‘of exhaustion of assets around 2049 assuming the shortfall will be finance out of
borrowing {hence the neégative interest).

At branch level, the pension branch has higher income: than expenditure until around 2039/2040. Aller 2040, the
projected: expendﬂure is higher than the. projected incomne, This is dug to. the scheme demographics of having

‘highet number of beneficiaries many of whom are currenily above.normal retirement age and the effect of the

lower contributions than required. The assets held are projected to. reduce to become negative due to-increasing
benefits payments and expenses.

The occupational hazard branch is. projected to have higher income than expenditure over the avhole projected
period.

6) The ‘Balance of Fund® as a multiple af expenditure (also known as the ‘Fund .Ratit);’_)

The fund ratio shows the prijected balance: of the fund at theé-stdrt ol the year expressed as a multiple of
expenditures on benefits and other administrative costs expevted in that year, The projected fund ratios have

‘been calculated assuming:the current contribution rates remain unchanged and allowing for future investment

returns and are as fa_l!ow_s:

_ o _ 20211 2030 | 2040 2050 2060 2070
Fund ratio - Pénsion branch 5.7 9.6 | 4 '(2,5) (10:1) (236)
_Fund ratio — Occupational hazard branch 6371 9681 1614| 2783 44591 5329
Scheme 7.4 13.8 7.6 1 (1.2) {(7.5) | (18.9)

The scheme-is projected to continue to grow for ‘several years and peak in the financial year 20291’2030 atter
which it is pro;ected to decline and became insolvent at around financial year 2049/2050. This is because the
pension branch is expected in the long term to pay out pension benefits to an increased number of members
while insufficient contributions are being miade 1o pay. for the required benefits,

At brarich level, the pension branch is.projected to. continue to:grow and peak at financial year 2023/2024 after
which it is expected t6. decline until. if becomies-insolvent around. finangial year 2046/2047.. The occupational
hazard branch has a net surplus -and is. projected to continue to- grow and remain solvcnt aver the projected
period dug to-the projected low fevel of benefit payments.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Methods and key assumptions used

Projection methodology

The modeél used for projection used as 4 starting point theclean data and applied the labour. force
assumptions for the development of the future contributory population.

The ‘model used was based on a cohoit approach using the flow method for -generating future
generations of pensioners on ‘a single age basis, i.e. the identification ‘of each new pensioner-and the
recording of the avérage period of past pension credifs and the average earnings 6f each cohort, Future
new entrants wese assumed to have. the same average salary as. the relevant cotiort at the valuation
date but allowing for the rate of earnings inflation assumption.

The present value of the liabilities was calculated by projecting cashflows over the whole lifetime of
the. ex:stmg membership, i.e. effectively allowing for every existing member to die. For the year on
year income and expenditure projection, only a snapshot of the cashflows over a projection period of
50 years was illustrated.

The same active member pensionable service proporhons at the valuation date for the projectmn
period were used, Members with more than 15 years service were projected to recéive pension
benefits; whereas members with less than 13 years’ service were projected to réceive lump sum
benefits, as per the rules of the Scheme.

Active members were grouped by age and sex based on who would receive pension and. Tump sum
benefits based on the June 2020 membertship data takmg into account the members' projected service
at retirement. We assumed that these groups would apply to futuré new entrants during the prajection
perlod

Each cohort of future new entrants was assumed to follow the same age, gender, salary and marital
status distribution of existing actives for the different age groups. The distribution of new entrants by
age and sex would reflect that observed at the wvaluation date and it was assumed ‘that these
distributions remain constant throughout the projection period.

The Projected Unit Method has been used to calculate the future service contribution rate. This
calculation draws on the:same assumptions used for the technical provisions.

The Ptojected Unit Method (PUM) is one of the common methods- used by actuaries to calculate a
contribution rate for.a funded scheme. This method calculates the present value of the benefits

expected to accrueto memibers overa control period (often one vear) following the valuation date.

The present value is usually expressed as:a percentage of the members’ pensionable pay. It allows for
projected future increases fo pay through to retirement or-date of leaving service.
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'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Key assumptions made

Margii for advérse experience

‘An allowance has been made for adverse experience in both the financial and demographic assuinptions
uséd to calculate technical provisions.

Fi {mm cial assumpfions

A summary of the key economic.and expense assumptions: adqptgd for the valuition of the Scherié as at 30.
June 2020, together with the long-term assumptions adopted for the previous valuation as at 30 June 2016

-are shown below:

Key assomptions

“Vialuation-as at 30 June 2020

Valuation as-at 30 June 2016

Price inflation

10.0% p.a. for the first year;:
6.0%: p.a. in the second year;
5.0% p.a, in'the-third year and for
the rémainder of the projection

| period

9.0% pa. for the first year; 7.0%.
p:a. i the:seoond vear; 5.0% p.a.
in the third year and for the

| remainder of the prajection
| period

Earnings inflation

12.0% pa. for the fiest véar;
. 8:0% p.a. in the second year;

-the reniainder of the pro_]ectlon
period

“7.0% p.a. in the third year and for

1 10.0% p.a. for the first yeat;

8.0% p.a. in the:second year;
6.0% p.a: in the third year and for-
the remaifider of the projection
neriod

Investment return

6.4% p.a:

11.0% p.a. for the first year;

9.0% p.a. for the second year;
7.0% p.a. in-the third yearand far
the remairider of the projection
period

Pensions increase-

1.0% p.a.

No allowance

Expenses

| 7% of contribution income
assumed to be funded in future
-each year

"10% of contribution income
assumed io be funded-in future
each year

The long-térm econoinic assumptions adopted are the same for all future years of the projection.

Demagraphics

A summary of the key demographic assumptions adopted for the valuation of the Scheme as at 30 June
2020. together with the long-tefm assumptions adopted for the previous valuation as at-30 June 2016 are.

shown below:

Key assumptions

Valiaation as at 30 June 2020

Valuation as at 30 June 2016

Labour Market
(Increase in Scheme
membership)

Increase of 12% in the first year of -
the projections, reducing io a lohg-
term assumption of 2.0% a year over
a L0-year period. and contibuing at
2.0% p.a: for the remainder-of the
projection period.

Incredse-of 10% ini the first year of
the, projections, reducing to a long-
term assumption 0f2.5% a year
avera 10-year period. and
continuing at 2.5%p.a. for the
remaindcf of the projection period.

Mortality assamptions

Rwarda Mortality Tab]e, 2012- 2016
scafed by 60%:; with an-allowance for
future annual improvements.of 0.8%
foi-males and 1% for females

Rwanda Mottality Table; 2012-

2016; with an allowance:for futore:
annual improvements of 1.25% for
males-and 1.5% for females

Withﬂr’awal Rates,

| Samé as Jast valuation

No allowance was made for-early
withdrawal from active-service.
However, an implicit allowance

“was captured in the labour market
: a%sumptlon

Invaiidity Rates
{Pension Branch).

1A rateof 0.01% for active members

between ages 20 arid 64

" Arate of 0.01% for: actlvc members
‘between ages 20 and 60

Incapacity Ratcs

Samc as last valuation

Permanent Incapacity Rate of
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Key assumptigns

"Valuation as.af 30 June 2020

Valuation as.at 30 June 2016

(Occupational Hazards
Branch)

0.005% for both males and fomales
between the ages of 20 and 60.

| Assumed that 5% of future

permanent incapacity will be full
incapacity (based on 100%

| incapacity rate) and 95% will be
| partial incapacity based.on a 40%
| incapacity rate).

Workers Medical Benefits
(Occupetional [azards
Branch)

An uplift of 30% to the projected

Permanent Incapacity expenditure in - r
| in order to make an allowancg for

order 10 make an allowance for the
Workers Medical Benefits,

An uplift of 33% 1o the projected
Permanent Incapacity expenditure

the Workers Medical Benefits.

Constant Care' Supplement
{Pension Branch and
Gceupational Hazards
Branch)

No allowance

1 No.allowance

Retirement Rates

Same- as last valuation

Non-Unitormed members retire at

i age 60.and that Udiformed

members retire at age 50.

Mo allowance has been made. for
carly retirements as the experietice
indicaied that few such benefits are-
paiﬁ-.

FamilyS_tatiét_ics_—
proportion married

76% of'male members and 62% of
- female members are marricd at al)
‘ages .

'80% of male members and 65% of

temale members are married at-all
ages.. .

Family ‘Statistics - Age
difference

A 4-year age difference between
‘members and spouses has been
adopted, with husbands older than
wives, with a 27-yedr age differerice
betwéen- male parents and children
and a 23-year age difference between
iff:m ale parents and. children.

1 A d-vear age difference between

‘members and spouses‘has been

-adapled, with Hushands-oldet than

wives, with a 32-year age

| difference between male parents:

and childrén.and a 28<y¢ar age
difference between female parents.
and children,

Family-Statistics —
Number of dependants

'Sa:ne: as last-valuation

Unmarried members have two

| dependents, that is, both parents,

and that married members.have
{tiree dependents; a spouse and Lwo.
dependent children.:

We have not made any allowances
for remidrriage rales and we have
assiimed that orphan benefits cease.
at age 25,

» Deferred members

‘The previous valuation resu[_t_s did not-allow for deferred members wha lefi active _cmpl_oymc_n't before July:
1994. Thé previous actuary was provided with 641,018 deferred member records, of which 208,754 last
contributed before July 1994. Athe valuation datc, ail the deferred members.even those prior to 1994 have

been included,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

= Investmiént retuins

In detéimining the investment teturn assumption, an- allowance for the berichmark allocation sct oit in the
Fund's Investment Policy (third ¢ditien) and-expected returns-on each. asset class has been made. A long term
expected-investment return of 6.4% per annum was abtained,

The previous valuation construgted the investment return assumption by adding a margin-to the price inflation
assumption whercby a long-term margin of plus 2.0% p-a. in addition 1o price inflation was used to get an
investment return assumption of 11% p.a. for-the first. year, 9% p.a: for the second year; 7% p.a: in the third year-
and for the remainder of the projection period:

The net effective rate in service would be ~0.6% in the Jong term which is fower'than the previous valuation,
»  Edrhings inflation:

‘The. previous valuation assumed-that the rate of‘-c_arhings: inﬂ_h_tion t0 be 10.0% p:a. for the first year; 8.0% p.a.
for-the second year; 6.0% pia. for the third vear; and remaihing at 6.0% p.a. for the remainder of the projection

period. This was equivalent to the price inflation.assumption plus.a 1.0% p.a. margin.

The current valuation assumes that the rate of earings inflation to be 12:0% p.a. for the first year; 8.0% p.a. for
the. second year; 7.0% p.a. for the third year; and remaining at.7,0% p:a. for the remainder-of the projection
petiod. This is equivalént to the price inflation assumption plus a.2.0% p.a..margin.. The higher margin was
derived based on the data‘analysis.. '

= Pension incrense

The current valuation: makes.an ‘allowance of 1% per annum for any increases i'n'hénef'it payments or minimum
pensions-as such increases are provided on a discretionsry basis based on our analysis of past increases and
tollowing a requigst by RSSB..

The previous ¥alogtion did not include any allowance forperiodicincreases to benefit payménts.
= Expenses

The expense assumplion is based on.our ﬁndings drom the Anmial Report &: Accounts duri_ng_l’h‘r:__intcr.—valuati_on
period. The acmarialzassum_ption is 7% p.a. of contribution income for the. projection périod.

This compares to the previous actuarial valuation expense assumption of [0% & year'of confribution income Tor
the prajection period which reflected higher-expenses recorded at that time,

«  Labour market

The current. valuation assumes that the. active membership: of the Scheme increases by 12%.in the first year
reducing to'a fong térth assumption of 2.0% over a 10-ycar petiod (i.e. using a declining scale from 122 t6, 2%
at:the end of the 10 years); and continuing at 2.0% for the remainder of the projection period. The lorig-term
assumption reflects the combiried effect of increases in the-employed population and increases in coverage that
might be expected during the period. '

The previous valuation assumed that the active membership of the Scheme increases by 10% in the first year
Teducing to'a long-term assumiption of 2.5% ovér a 10-year period; and continuing at 2.5% for the remainder of
the projection period.

The short-icrm assumptions adopted reflect the high numbers of new entrants to the Scheme in recent years. The

lotig-term assumption reflects. the combined effect of increases in -the total population, total employed-

‘population and increases in the coverage.of the Scheme:

It is assumed that ‘these-high Tevels will not continue over the longer-term as Rwanda is the most. densely-
‘populated eountry in East Africa (and Africa); and so it is likely that the:population growth will begin to plateau
during the projection peried. However, it'is cxpected that the formal sector will expand during the projection
period; and therefore creating more gradual increase each year.

®  Mortality

The -current valuation assumes mortality experience in. line with the. ‘Rwanda Mortality Table;
20122016 scaled by 60% with an allowance for future annual improvements of 0.8% for males
and 1.0% for females. A 60-year old male pensioner is. assumed, on average, to live to age 84.4
years and under a 60:year old female pensioner 1s-assumed, on average, to live to age §5.4 years,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

Financial year Total Population Size. Total Contribution. ‘Total Benefit Accumuiated

[neome (Frw® millicas) 'Eipehditurg"{l_?rw’:' ~ Fund

] ) millions} (Frw’_ millipns)’

203472035 1 268258 | 121,228 308,076 324,733
203512036 277,713 125,769 370519 | 77300

2036/2037 o . . 287483 _ ' o 139. 677 449,073 ' :(261,'26'1)

2037/2038 mmsm B | N (691.770)

2038/2039 308,542 137,973 661,589 (1.236,220)

_203__9}'2(]40 1 _3.]9;-’?84' ' ) 141,350, | ' 805903 | (1.922,116).

The projecied fund will be depleted by 30 June 2036 with the deficit growing exponentially until the end of ihe
projected period.

For the first seven years.of the projection period. annual contributions arc expected to cxceed annual claims, however,
after this, annual claims are expected to-cxeeed annual contributions as the assumed rate of claims escalation exceeds

the rate-of salary growth. For the year ending 30 June 2027, fotal claims arc.cxpected to represent 93.7% of total gross
contributions incorme before allowing for expenses of the schéme. In the following year ending 30 June 2028, the total

-claims. are projected-to-exceed fotal gross contributions and the utifisation ratio is104.2%

From the year énding 30 June 2028 1630 June 2030, the projected invesiment inceme will be sufficient to meet-the
shortlall caused by increasing claim costs as well as projected expenses of the scheme.

After the year- ending 30 Junc 2030, net cashflows are: projcctcd to-be negative, This-differs from thiz projection as at

30. Jurie 2016 whéte the scheme was p!‘()_]ﬁ'l:ted to remain in-a positive cashflow pasition for 55 years in'the future. This

difference is miainly attributable to the worsé than expected claims escalation that resulted from an upsward revision of
tariffs, Claims management so[ut:qns are essential 10 improving the long term health of the scheme,

Methodology and key assumptions itsed
Methodology

The projection model used considered the evolution-of the contributing members, which-forms the basis for projecting
‘the-fiture primary cashflows-of the sclieme. The primary cashflaws were then used to model the firture retained funds
of the scheme, by considering projections of future investment returns and expenses.

The membership of the scheme has been segregated info employees. from the public scotor, employees. from the
private sector and retitees in assessing the fiiture evolution.of the scheme. The bases used for the various projections
‘have been -arrived at as a result-of detailed analysis on data. and experierice over the past five years as this is most
likely to reflect future experience. [lowever, long term expectations based on regional and global benchmarking as
well as macro-economic factors have been used in determining the final set-of assumptions for these projections. .

Key assumptions used
Below is a sumimary of the key assumptions used in-preparing these projections:

Déemagraphics

Assumptmn _ Yilue used in valuation as at 30 Junc 2020

Membershlp growth rate o 2.60% ) ) ) )
New entrants’ -proportion {per-age) Based-on data. ~'dis_tribuling-t_h'e new eneants ina given year into a

. . L ) su;tablc age

Mortality rates Rwanda Mortality Table - Mﬂy ”017

Rcfirétﬁent_ratesi ' ) | Stepped n:t_lr_cmentratea for dlfferent_ age-. grbi.lps

Salary growth rate public | 5.90%

Salary growth Tate private o L | 4A0%

‘Pension growth rate TH0%

Working population contribution rite 1 15:0% ofbasu.: sa]ary
) Pcns_io.ne_r__s contribution rate . 7.5% ofpensmn
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Economic

Assumpfion Valie used in valuatlon as at 30 June 2020
Inflation ' _ 10% in thc first year,. 6% in the'sécond year and 5%

_ _ _ _ from vear- 3 onwards _

‘Invéstment rate of rétitn ’ 1 8.9%
Other inconie T ‘| 0.43% of coniributions

Administrative expénses- ' ' 1 12% of contributions
Statutory CBHI coilributions © 1 10% of contribution s

Claims
Assumption : Value used in valuation as af 30 June 2020
Cost Component Annual Claims escalation rate | Average Cost per Affiliate -

. . . . e __Member (Frw)

Consultation : 9. 8% 22:867
Laboratory tesis o ' ; 9% 36,620
Medical imaging _ 21.1% 13,513
Hospitalization N B S 140% ' 6,242
Procedures and materials o 205% 29,710
QOther consumables 2% 2,650
Medicines ' _ o 108% B 10535
Pharmacy - 5:3% 40,171

¢) Maternity Leave
Benefit Actuarial Valuation:

Overview of the maternity leave benefit scheme

The Maternity Leave benefifs Scheme (MLBS) was established by Law 003/2016 of 30/03/2016 Establishing
and Goveérning Maternity Leave benefits Scheme: Under the law. thie scheme, the employer arid employee each
contribute 0.3% amounting to 0.6%.of the employee’s salary.- Claims are made and paid as and when maternity
leave is taken.

Background and puirpose of the actnarial valuation

‘The Board commissioned -air actuarial valudtion of the Maternity Leave beriefit schémé MLBS). The actuarial
valuation ‘which was performed by Mihanna and Co. Actiaries AND Consuftants on behalf of the Board and
.considers data up to 30 June 2022 was issued.on 11 May 2023.

The actuarial ca]uulaimns were carried out in accordance with Tniernational Accounting Standard 19 { IAS'19)..
‘The prajections were carried out.aver the.next 50 years ( the {ast year beiag: 2072} in line with the Intemational
Labour Association and [nternational Labour Office Guidelines for short term benefits.

Siunmary resuits of the actuarial assessment

Base Scenario

Pay As You Rate

The Pay as You Go Raie (PAYG) or cost rate was 0:15% ih 2022 and was pro_;cctcd at 029 of total salarics-in
the year 2072. The PAYG rate is the ratio of total expeniditure to total salaries in-a particular year, 1t is the
contribution rate needed to finance. the expenditure on benefits and administrative expenses throughout the year
without producing any surpius.or-deficit.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

-ANNUAL REPORT AND.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

General Average Premiun.

The General Average Premium (GAP) was éstimated.at 0.2%of salaries. This is thé contribulion rate riceded 8o
that the- future contribution income and investment return wnll be enough to exactly cover the fulure- expected
cxpendltures of the scheme aver the prolectcd peried.. The current contribution ratio is 9.6% of 1otal salaries
based on the current legal framework,

Reserve ratio.

The projected reserve ratio is projected to 160 in 2072, The resetve ratio is defined as the rafio of the total
accumulated ﬁmd(reserve} at the ¢nd of the year 10 tofal expenditure during the year. Hence. this reflects a
préjected healthy réserve ratio.

Conclusion _ _ _
Therefore, based on-the results iuinder the base scenario, the MLBS is in a healthy financial position, The level of

-the ‘current contribution rate-is adequatc to cover the maternity leave henefit as well as the expenses needed 10

operate the scheme. A sensitivity analysis is summatised under the séction Risks-and Sénsitivity A nalysis.
Methodology and hey assumptions used

Methodology

The: methodology used for the Actuarial Valuation of the MLBS involved the projection of the income and
ouigo of the MEBS into the fitire, on an open ‘group basis, and examining the sufficicncy of the current
reserves and @xpected future income to. meet current and. future liabilities. The actuarial projections were based
on the current- legal provisions of the MLES, the data at the stamng point for the projections (30 June.2022) and
on the assumptions regdrding future demographic arid economic expérignce.

Open group demographic: and cash-flow projcctions allow for future entrants, as well as exits, from the scheme
across all projection years, Actuariat 'Valuations for benefits undcr a“Social Insurance Schemie arc carried oul'on
an -Open Group. Basis over a long-time horizon as ‘this difectly recognises the compulsory nature ol luture
participation, the nature of promised henefits' and the unkikely possibility of winding up a social security
arrangement. The methodology adopied was in. line with the International Standard of Actuatial Practice (ISAP)
2 practice {paragraph 2.4 for the Financial Analysis of Social Security Programs, which. states that for pay-as-
you-go or partially funded schemes, the analysis. should use an open-group methodology, under. which
contributions and benefits., 0[‘ both current and future. participants are considered,

Theactuarial calculations were’ performcd in lmc withi the. Internatmnal Accountmg Standard 19 {IA8.19) .

The base year of the projections. is 2022 and the reference date (or valuation date) was the 30th June-2022. The
projections were carried out for the next 50-years (in line w ith the relevant International Acluarial Association
and Infernational Labour Olfice guidelines for short-term benehts] — that is the last year of the projection is set
1o be 2072,

The revenue of the: MLBS includes both contributions and investment income. For each projected year, total
coritributions were derivid fiom the active members' salarics and the eontribution rate preseribed by the Law for:

the MLBS. Investment income is caléulated on the basis of assumptions on vates of retuin on the MLBS
investinents,

The MLBS outgo includes the maternity leave benefits paid-out. which are projecied using assumptions based
on the fertility ratés, the mémbers' eligibility for: the. maternity -lcave benefit, the projected. salaries and the
expected duration of the benefit, In addition, the MLBS ouigo includes the. cost of administering the scheme, [n
order io carry out the projections. the-demographic and finahcial information. rélating to MLBS ‘members ds:at
the valuation date (30 Junc 2022) was used.

The actuarial model projected the numbers of males and females separately because of the different.
demographlcs and specificities of ‘these groups. The active population for males was used for the
contribution income purposes. On the ‘other hand; the active population for females is used for both
the ¢ontribution income and the, benefit outgo Projections.

The methodology applied is summarised below.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED-30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continied)

MLBS Contribution income.

Contribution income =MLBS active Population X' Project-Salaries X Contribution rate

The assumptions applied in-projecting the MBLS active population and the Projected Salaries are summarised in
the iables under key demegraphic assumptions and key financial assumptions below.

MLBS Benefit Expenditire

MLBS Benefit Expenditure = Beneficiaries Population X Projected Salaries X Benefit duration

The assumptions applied in projecting the Beneficiaries Population, the PrOJt.ctcd Salaries and- the. benefit
duration are summiarised in the tabtes inder kcy demographic assumptions and Key financial assumiptions below.

Assumptions

Assumptions were made about each factor that was.applied in estimating the cashflows. The assumptions
included statistical (dcmbgraphlc) and financial {cconomic) assumptions. ‘The: assumpiions ook into
consideration the récent experience of the. MLBS the country s demographic and: economic outlook, as well ag’

the short- and fong-term trends.

Sumniary of demographic assumptions

Key assumptions

Key Highlights

Rwanda Population

Growth

According to the United Nation projections as well as the Sth Populafion and
Housing Census 2022, the population of Rwanda is growing by approximately 2.3%.
Over the next 10-15 years, the growth fate i5-expected to reduce to 2:0% and 1.0% in

‘the. longer term (2060+). The expected population growth as well as the éxpected

changes in age structires were-taken into accdunt when setting the assumptions for
the growth of the population. insured under the MLBS.

Labour Force and

" The expected g_r_d.wih and composition of the 'ML-{BS-memhership-is directly linked to-

the population structure and more importantly to the. Jabour force and employed
population. The current tabour force participation rate is 56% and the MLBS
coverage rate was estimated at 15% of the labour force and 8.5% of the working age

_population. It was assumed thai the MLBS membership-will grow and therefore the

coverage rate will increase.

Employment,
‘Mortality Rates
{Active Membcis)

The mortality rates used for the.valuation were based on the Rwarida Mortality Table
rates. Given these rates, along with statistics for the life expectancy in Rwanda and
considering the group of members covered by the MLBS, we adjusted the standard
table rates:to reflect the' scheme mortality experience. The life expectanciés at age 20
and at age-60 derived from the mortality rates assumed were as tollows:

Life Expectancy Males Females
2022
— At age 20

55.0 (age 73.0) 38.0 {age 78.0)

= Atage 60 18.0 (age 73.0) 21.0 (age 81.0)
2052+

—_ Atage20 58.0 (age 78.0) 61.0 (age 8'1.0)-

— At age 60, 20.0 (age 80 ) 22.0¢age 82.0)

Fertility Rates

The-current total fertility rate in Rwanda is 3.6 children per woman and

the general fertility rate in year 2022 was equal to. 106.9 births per- 1,000

women. The experience of the MLBS shows signifi cantly fower number- of births
and fertility rates.

We LOI’lbldLr{.d the age specific fertility rates of Rwanda, ‘but initially reduced the
rates 1o reflect the lower experience of the scheme as summarised beluw

- Ages 15-19: 3 hirths per 1000 woinen increasing to 3 births in the:long-term;
- Ages 20-24: (3 births per 1000 women inereasing to 35 births in the long-term;
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‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Key assumptions

Key Highlights

Age gender
distribution of riew
éntrants

-on the 2-year average joining age of members was assumed at 30:

The numbet -of active members -of the MLBS was projected from one yeatr to the'
next, based on the number of fiew entrarits and exits for‘'each year and the number of

‘members surviving trom previous years. A distribution of néw éntrants by age group

is essential in order 1o allocate the new éntrants expected to cntet the scheme each
year

"The new active members joining the MLBS follow the distribution of those MLBS

members who joined over the Idst 2 years. We also considered the joining pattern‘of
all members, irrespective of the year of joining, The pattern was similar and based.

x®

The age-refated rates used: are summarised below,

Age New éntrants New entrants.

Male Femiale

20-25 29,5% 34.0%
25-30 27.0% 28.0%
30-35 16.5% 15.5%
35-40 10.0% 8.5%
4045 7.0% '5.5%
45-50 5.0% 3.5%
50-35 3.5% 2.5%
55+ 2.5% 25%.
Total 160% 160%

Exit rates

“The probabilities of exits were based on the analysis of the dala carried out for the.

movements in ‘the active miehibership over. the last 4 ycars (2018-2022). In
particular, the active members in two consecutive ycars {2{)18,’2019 201972020,

2020/2021 and 2021/2022) were comparcd and we isolated the cases who, even

though they contributed in one year, they were not-present in the following year.

‘These cases were assumed 1a, have left the MLBS: and therefore were uscd.-'fn'__
czlculate the ¢xit rates, The exit rates were c;alc_ulat_cd for individual age groups-and
s'eparaiéiy for males and females. The projected exit rates for males and femates are
presented in the table below.

Age Exi¢t.rates Exit iates
Male Female
20 40,0% 40.0%
21 40.0% 40.0%
22 ' 40.0% .35.0%
23 40.0% 35.0%
24 35.0% 35.0%
25 30.0% 30.0%
26 25.0% 25.0%
27 25.0% .25.0%
28 25.0% 23.0%
29 20.0% ' -20.0%
30 20.0% 20.0%
31 20,0% . 28.0%
32 18.0% . 17.0%
33 ' 17.0% 16.0%
34 17.0% ' 15.0%
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Key assamptions Key Highlights
35 17.0%: 15.0%
36 17.0% 15.0%
37 17.0%. ' 15.0%
38 17.0% ' 1.0%
39 16.0% 14.0%
40 16.0% 14.0%
a1 16.0%. 14.0%
4% ' 16:0% 14.0%
13 16.0% 15.0%
44 i6.0% . 15.0%
45 16.0% _ 16:0%
16 16.0% 17.0%
47 ' 16,0% 17.0%
48 16.0% ' 17.0%
49 17.0% 17.0%
50 18.0%. 17.0%
51 18.0% 17.0%
52 18.0% 17.0%
53 18.0% 17.0%
54 18:0% 17.0%
55 19.0%. 18.0%.
56 ' 19.0% 18.0%
57 20.0%: 19.0%
58 20:0% 19.0%
59 30% 20.0%
60-64 25.0%. 25.0%
65+ 30.0% 30.0%

Sumemary of financial assuimptions

Key financial assumptions

Econosnic Growth

Over the last tive vears {2018-2022}. réal GDP increased by 6.4% oir

average. In.year 2022, the National Institute of Statisiiés of:Rwanda (NISR)

shows a rcal GDP growth 0f'8.9%..

Estimates of the International Monetary Fund:show that: real GDP growth
will be approximately 7.0%-7.5% over the next 2 2-3 vears and stabilise to
6% after ¥ear 2026, Based on the recent growth ratesand’ the shortierm

-gxpectations, it was ﬂSbl.Ide that real GOP g growth will be 7.5% bver the next
~years and gradugily fall to 6.0% after yvear 2025,

Investment return

7% per annum.

This investriient Téturn assumption is net of'all invesiment transaction
expendes. This assumption wias based on the investment rates of relurns.of
the MLBS over the last 3-years, .as well as on the asset alfocation and the
expectation of returns of asset classes.

Inflation rate

5.0% per anpuni (Jong-térm aqsumpnon}

Over the last §° years the inNation ratc was equal to 3.6% by fiscal year-and
4.4% by -calendar vear. [f we consider a shorter period, then the average
inflation rate (fiscal yearyoverihe last ¥ years was equal to 5%

According to-estimates. [rom the [nternational Monetary Fund, the. forecast
inflation fate in Rwanda by cdléndar year would gradually fall to 5.0%.in vear
2024 and would remain flat nnfil yéar 2027,
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Key financial assumptions:

The cstimates for inflation by fiscal year were taken from the National Bank
of Rwanda. The assumpfion o in'ﬂuti_qn was_-ih line with the recent intlation
“rates experienced, as well as-the estitriates.o [ the International Monetary Fund
{IMIF) for Rwandi.

Salary increases 6.0% a yeat for the.gencral salary increases (inflation + general increases)
plus.Q 25%-1.0% for merit/promotion salary increases, or 'Salary*Scales’,

The projected salary scales are. summarised below.

Age Group Males . Females
20-24 1.00% 1.00%.
25-29 1.00% ' 0.75%
30-34. 0.73% 0.75%
35-39 0.5% 0.5%
40- - 44 0.25% 0.25%
4549 0.25% 0.23%
50+ 0%. 0%
Administrative expenses- “The average administration expenses (mcludmg staff’ costs) over the last 3-4

years. We have assumed that administration ¢éxpenses will be equal to 5.0% of
contribution income.

Density of Contributions The density of contributions is defined {6 be the propottion of the year during
which parficipanis pay contributions io the scheme. The analysis of the data
supports .the assumption of a density equal to 65%: based on recent
expetience.

Starting. valus of MLBS.| Frw 38:6 billion
réserve

Risks and sensitivity analysis

The results of the base sceénatio whose: assumptions afe summiariséd in the preceding sections were tested
against -chariges to- the main-assumptions i.¢: investment. return, salary increases, future scheme participation,
administration-expenses-and fertility rates:

[nvestment return

The effect of changes 1o the investment teturn assumption (+/- 2 percentage units) was investigated; all ather
assumplions were Icft unchanged to view the lmpact of these changes in'isolation. A lower long-term investment
return of 3. {)% p-a. was assumed under one scenario and a h igher long=term investment return of 9.0% p.a. in
another- scenarlo

Salary increase/ Inflation

The long-tertn general -salary increase (inflation plus preductivity) was assumed to be 6.0% (5.0% + 1.0%). In
addition, salaries were dssumed to increase by age-related promotional scales ranging between 0.25% and L. 0%,
For sensitivity testing purposes, two sensitivity scenarios were taken under which we. assumcd that the inflation
rate is 1 percentage unif lower-and higher, respcctwcl)

Lower scheine participation

The demogtaphic and financial results were tested against the change in. the assumption for the growth of the
MLBS active contributors’ population. We examined the {inancial position- of the scheme if the growth rate of
the active members was lowér than viider the BASE Scenarin. Urider this scenatie, the

number of contribuitors is assumed to increase by 6%-8% in’ the short-term and gradually reduce to 0:5% growth
after 20 years. In the medium-term (vear 2042+) the populatlon of contributors was assumed to remain stable.
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: Higher fertility ratés _
Feitility rates were.assumed to be higher in the short term.as well as in the long-term. the initial fertility rate was
- ‘gssumed to increase from 0.4 (0 0.6 and the general fertility rate from 17 live births to:25. [n the lofig-term, these
were assumed to increase further.
Administration expenses _
% Under -one scenario, it was assumed that the -administration expenses Tite is lower by 2 percentage units i.¢. 3%
E ‘of contribution income. Under another scenario, the admiristration expenses rate was assumed to be higher than
' higher by 2 percentage units i.e. 7% of coniribufion income.
"_E Summary of results from the sensitivity-analysis compared to base.scenario..
Seenario description General Avérage Reserve ratio in 20 | Reéserve r'a_ti:(_l i 40
Pireminm (GAP) rate years ‘years {2062)
- _ (2042)
i Basc results 0.2% 95.1 158.8
— _Effect of var’ied'assumptions:
‘Investment Return: 5,0% p.a. _ 0.2% 74.7 95.0
' Investmeni: Return: 9.0% pid. 0.2% 122.1 . 273.7
— Inflation 4.0% p.a. 0.19% 107.5 208.1
Inflation 6.0%p.a 0:205% 84.5 122.8
Lower Growth of Active Members 0.22% 03.8 165:2
Higher Fertility Rates 0.25% 735 121.6
i Lower Administration Costs 0.19% 104.0 169.8
Higher Administration Costs ' 0.21% 87.4 148.7
T 54. Events after the reporting period
I » L
There-are no repoitable subseguent gvenis.
— 55. Financial risk management
The Board has exposure te the following risks from its use of finanicial instruments
— o Market risk,
" Liquidity risk,
: n Credit risk, and
Ll Cipital imanagement risk
i Included below is information. about the. Board's exposure to-each of the above risks. the Board’s objcetives,
; policies and processes for measuring and managing the tisks and the Board’s management of capital.,
- Risk management framework
S T'he: Roard’s Board of Directors has overatl resp_onsibi]ity for the establishment and oversight of the Board’s risk
' managerisént framework. The' Board has establistied an Audit and Risk Committée, and the Risk Department,
which.are responsibie for developing.and monitoring the risk management policies in their specified areas. All
“‘; Board commiltees ‘have nor-ekecutive members and rcport regularly fo the Board of Ditectors on their
; activities.
The Board’s risk management policies are ostablished to identity and analyse the risks faced hy. the
- Board, to set appropriate risk limits and-controls; and to monitor risks and adberence to limits. Risk management
; policies ‘and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in ‘market: conditions, products and. services
- offered: The Board through its ‘training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
_ disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees understand their roles and
1 obligations.
b §
%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continiied)
—y 55. Financial risk managemént continued

i ‘The Board’s Audit and Risk Committee is rcsponsible for monitoring compliance with the Board’s risk

management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy ‘of the risk management framework in
— relation to thé risks faced by the Board. The Audit and Risk Committee is assisted in these functions by Internal
Audit and Risk functions.

Internal Audlt undertakes hoth regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls ‘and procedures, the
resulis of which. are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee

-a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that ¢hanges in market prices, such as investment prices, inlerest rates’ and foreign
“: exchange rates will affect the Board's income. or the value of iis holdings of financial instruments. The objective
: of market risk management, is to manage- and control market risk.-exposures within the acceptable’ paramiters,
while optimising the returfi ori investment.
- Marnagement of market risks

Market risk arises from a decrease in.the market value.of a portfolie of financial instruments caused by adverse
ovements in'the market variables such as equity. bonds and property prices, currency exchange rates and
- interest rates.

The Boaid grants authority to take.on market risk exposiire lo the Management knvestment Committee (MIC).
This committee manages this risk through the gu:dc]mcs set out in the Board’s investment pol:c}
- Equity price risk

The Board is exposed t¢ equity securities price risk through its investments-in quoted and unquoted shares, The
Board’s Investment comrnittee diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance
with the puidelines set out-in the Board's investment pohc; All shares lield by the Board are either quoted on

—
Rwanda Stock Exchange and'Nairobi Securities Exchanges or unquoted.
i The table betow shows the effect of share price sensitivity on'the-surplus for the-year bascd on the share price
volatility asat 30 June:2024;
"; Change _ .
i Type of Investment inshare  Effeet on surplus Effect on
R A surplus
price %
— Pension Medical Total
ol 2024 2024 2024
Frw'million  Fro'million  Frv'million
Equity-invistments at fairvalue through profit.or loss H-10% 19,849 359 20:248
2023 2023 2023
Frw'million.  Frw'million  Frw'million
e
Equity jizvestments at fair value ﬂirough profit or loss +H:10% 18,063 1,307 19,370
7 Property price risk
: The Board is exposed to property price risk through its investments in Teal estate propcrtws "The. Board’s
Investment committee- diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolic is. done in accordance with the -
~ guidelines set-out in the Board's. investment policy. The Board last. undertook a valuation of its investment’
: property as at 30 June 2022 and adopted valuations of investmient and adminisirative properties as.at 30 June
) 2022 and maintained as-at 30 June 2023 and. 30 Junc 2024,
D
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1 Market risk continued
i Property price risk continned
The-table below shows the: effect of property. piice sensitivity on the surplus [or the ycar;
_ Change in ,
i property  Efféct on surplus Efféct on surplus Effpct an
. ;. : surplus
price %:
. Pension Medical Total
: 2024 2024 2024
- _ Erw'million Frw'million  Frw'million
- Tnvestment property +-10% 13,469 1,253 19,722
2023 2023 2023
Frw Frw Frw:
Investment property +-9% 19,357 1,128 20,485
. Curiency risk
"“The ‘Board 'is exposed to currcncy risk through' transactions m forcign currencies. The Board transactional
exposures give rise to foreifn curtehey gaing and losses that are recognised in the stalement of comprehenswe
"'; inicome. In respect of monetary assets and llabllmes in forc:gn cutrencies, the ‘Board ensures that its net
exposure s kept:1o an acceptable. level. Momtormg of foreign. currency fluctuations is. done through the
- Investment Committee. The Board operites wholly within Rwanda and: its assets and liabilities are réported in
— Rwanda Francs; although it maintaids some of its asséts and trades with banks in foreign currencies.
-~
.
-
™
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .anaa:.azm&

Currency risk

The Board had the following currency positions:

(zruss Balances

30-Tune-2024

Finuncial assets

Cash and bank balances
Deposits-with financial institutions
Treasury bonds
" Treasury bills

Corporile bonds

Commercial papers

Mortpage loans

Loans and. advances {o third parties
_Dividend receivable

Advances td conttactors

Other assets

U_.H.m.._.anﬁcsm to] other:schemics

Total financial asscts {A)

Financial liabilitics

Refentions on construction contracts
Medicai and:matemity leave benefits
payable’

“Due to.ather schemes

Other payables

Total financial liabilities (B)
Net finarcial.assets {A-B}

‘Fareign currercy exposure 30 .Jine 2024

Pension Medical Pension Pension Medical CBHI  Maternity Leave Ejo Heza Total
USD usp Kshs Frw Erw Frw Frw " Frw Erw
Frw'millions. Frw'millions Frvw'millions Frw'millions: Frw‘millions Frw'miillions. Frv'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions
7,859 7,550 1,839 82,932 46,434 33,829 12,392 1,701 194468
- - - 146 ,448; 182,854 - 16,586 6,334 352,262

- - - 331,676 168,370 . 33,101 52,229 576,376

. - - 38,106 47,328 - 8221 - 93,655

- - - 93,410 4,346 - - 1,542 59,298

- - - 97,843 - - - - 97,843

- - - .._ 5 - - - - 1 M

- - 58,352, 23,021 - - - 81,373

- - 1941 7,527 363 - - - 9.830

- - 331 - - - 3131

- - 3:962 485 17,247 1 31 21,754

- - (4,675) 4,940 {114 (152) - :
7,859 7,550 3,780 848,726, 479,181 50,962 70,180 61,837 1,530,074
- - - 2551 77 - - - 2628

. g 15,526, 23277 456 i 39.259

- - 4675 114 152 A4

- - - 3,457 2,383 14,199 433 145 20,619

- - - 10,720 17,986 31501 1,043 145 67447
7,859. 7,550 3,780 837,970 461,188 13379 69,137 61,624 1,462,487
7,859 7,550 3,780 - - - - . 19,189
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Currency risk continued

Gross Balznces

3-June-2023

Financial assels

Cash and bank balances’

Depésits with financia! institutions:
Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Corporate bonds

Commercial papers

Mortgage loans .

Loans and advances to-third parties
U_:..“_n:a receivable

Advarices to contraclors.

‘Otheér assels

Due fram/ {Due to) ofher schemes
Equity investments
Total financinl assets (A}

Financial liahifities
Retenitions on construction contracts

‘Medical and. E%«BHZ leave benefits
. payable

Othér payahles
Dwe to other mnwnanm

Total financial liabilities (B}

Net financial assets (A-B)

Fareign currency exposure at-30 Juse
2023

Pension Medical Pension Pension Medical CBHI Materaity o Total
N : Leave Ljo Heza

UsDh HSD Kshs Frw Frw -Frw Frw © Frw Frw

Frw'miliions Fra'mittions Frw'millions  Frw'miltions  Frw'miRions  Frw'millions Frw'miilions  Frw'millions Fiw'millions

31,015 5,675 2,579 35,295 37,767 255 5,189 1,527 128,302

- - - 117,780 135.529 12,465, 3,956 269,729

- - - 316,745 129,890 . 32494 41,705 520,834

‘ . . 9,608 32,572 19,795 2,366 64,342

- . . 58,503 15,765 ] i 74,268

- - - 58,287 . - - - 58,287

- - - 34 . - - - T3

- - - 3,844 26,368 - . - 30,112

817 822 1,763 9,450 251 - - - 13,503

T - 3478 3l - 3,309

- - . 6,548 249 14,950 18 72,164

. - - 6,553 T - - 6,553.

31,832 6,497 4342 620,372 384,875 44,000 52,433 47,188 1,191,637

- - - 2452 69 - - 2521,

- - - - 14,334 22,646 291 i 37,271

- - . ] 9,396 19,440 368 ) 29,204

- - - 6,294 27 232 6,553

- - - 15,650 - 15,250 36,048 742 145 67,834

31,832 6497 4,342 604,722 369,625 7,952 51,791 47,043 1,123,303

31,832 6,497 4,342 - - - - 42,670

The table below indicates the currencies to, which the Board had significant exposure at-30 June on its non-trading monetary assets and. liabilities and its forecast-cash flows.
The analysis calculates the effect ofa meonm_u_w _uomm__u_m movement of the currency rate.against the Rwanda Francs, with afl other variables held constant, on the statement
of ncE_u_.n:nzm:_n icome {due to- the fair vahie of currericy sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities). A negative amount in the table reflects a _uoﬁna_m_ net

currericies against the Rwanda Franes would have resulted in an equivalent but opposite. impact,

redugction in-the statement of compreherisive income and equity, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase. An equivalent decrease in each of the below
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Currency risk continued

The mo:.oéim exchange rates applied during the year:

Pension Zﬂ_m.n.m_ Total
Change.in ~ Effect on Change in Effect on net Effect on net
Currency currency rate in netincome for  currency ratein  income for-the income for the
% the year % year year
. 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024.
usp +H=10% 786 +-10% 755 1,541 :
KES i +-10% 378 +-10% - 378 i
1,164 755 1,919
, 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
o Frw Frw Frw
USD +-10%. 3,183 +-10% 650 3,833
KES§ +H-10% 434 +H-10% - 434
3,617 650 4,267
-Average rate. ‘Reporting date spot rate
2024 2023 2024 2023
Frw Frw Frw Frw
UsD 1252.5 1,059 1,311 1,193.96
KES 9.48 8.12 10:14 8.82

Interest rate risk

In broad terms, interest rate risk is the risk that concerns the sensitivity of the Board’s financial performance to changes in interest.rates. The Board's operations dre mzc._moH o
the risk of interest fate fluctuations to the extent that interest ¢arning assels and interest: “bearing liabilities mature or.re-price ar different times or in differing amounts. Risk
management activities are aimed at optimizing net interest income, given market interest rates levels consistent withi the Board’s business strategies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk continned

The w.uma does. not account for any fi fixed rate or variable rate ﬁ aw:n_m_ assets or rnmzn_m_ liabilifies at fair value through profit or loss.. Therefore, a change in interest rate.at
the statement of financial position date will not affect the Board's surplus or deficit but would only. have the effect of nrmum_zm the future performance of the. Board. In
addition, thete are no finaricial assets held at floating interest: rates. The tables below suthmiarize the exposure to interest rate risk’of the Board: Included in the table. are the
Board's assets and liabilitics at carrying aniounts, categorized by theearlier of contractual ré-pricing dates and the maturity dates.

30 JUNE 2024 .

Average rate ‘Matured <3 months 3-12. months = 1'year Non-Interest Total

o _ bearing
Financial assets Frw' milliens  Frw' millions Erw’ millions Frw'millions Frw' millions Frw' millions
Cash-and bank balanccs 5% 194,536 - - - - 194,536,
Deposits with commercial banks 10% - 74,716 127,406 150,140 - 352,262
‘Treasury bonds 12% - - 19,377 556,999 . 576:376.
Treasury bilfs 8% - 4,830 88,826 - - 93,655
Corporate bonds. 12% - 15,670 83,621 - 99,292
Commercial papers 11% - - 97,843 - - 07.843
Morigage loans 12% - - 15 - - 15
Loans and advances to third parties 0% - - - 58352 23,021 81,373
Dividend _.mn.m?m.._.u_m 0% - - - - 9,831 9,831
Advances fo contragtors. 0% - - - - 3,131 3.131
Other financial assets 0% - 3,962 g . 17,762 21,724
Due from/(Due to) othér schemés 0% - - - - -
Total financial assets 194,536 83,508 349,137 849,112 53,745, 1,530,038
Retentions on conitruction contracts 0% - - - - 2,629 2,629
‘Benefits payable 0% . - - - 39,259 39,259
Other payables 0% - - - - 31,035 21,035
Total financial liabilities - - - - 62,923 m.u,wmu.
Interest rafe exposure as-at 30 June 2024 194,536 83,508 349,137 849,112 - 194,536
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD.
-ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk continued

30 JUNE 2023 Avérage rate Matured <3 months 3-12 So.:._..m > 1 year Non-Interest Total
bearin
Frw'millions  Frw'millions.  Frw'millions Frw'millions m_;..._:.:_m::m Frw'millions
Financial assets.
‘Cash and bank balances. 5% 127.565 - - - - 127,565
Deposits with commercial banks 10%- “ 126,488 30,417 111,204 - 268,199
Treasury borids 12% . 21,291 40,817 456,579 : 518,687
.‘._,ﬂm.mu:_.w. bills 8% - - 44,358 1] - 44,358
Corporate bonds 12% - . 13,769 60,054 - 73,823
Commercial papers 1% - - 57,938 - - 57,938
Morigage loans 12% - - 32 - - 32
Loans and advances to third parties 0% - - - 3.823 26,111 129,936
Dividend receivable 0% - - - - 13,423 13,423
Advances to dontractors. 0% - - - - 3,400 3.400
Other financial asscts 0% - 6,503 - - 15,215 22,118
Bue from/(Due to) other schemes: 0% - - - - -
“Total financial assets 127,565 154,682 187,331 631,753 58,148 1,159,479
Retentions on construction contracts 0% - - - - 2,522 2,522
wmummﬁm. umwm_u._m 0% - - - - 37,271 3721
Other payables 0% - - - - 16,651 16,651
Total finatcial liabifities - . - ; 56,444 56,444
Interest.rate exposure as-at 30 June 2023 127,565 154,682 187,331 631,753 - 127,565
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contiruéd)

Interest rate risk continued

Pension schieme

Gross’

30 JUNE 2024

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with financial institutions
.HRB:Q bonds

Treasury-bills

Corporate-bonds

‘Commercial papers

Mortgage loans

Loans and advances to third parties
Dividend receivable.

Advances 1o contractors

Other financial assets

Due from/ (Due to) other schemes
“Total financial assets (A)
Reteéntions on construction contracts
Other payables

Total financial labilities (B)

Net financizl assets {A-B)

Interest rate exposure as at 30 June 2024

Average rate

5%.
10%
12%
8%

12%.
1%
12%

0%
0%
1%
0%
0%

0%
0%

Nogp-Interest

Matured <3 months  3-12 months > 1 year beasing Total
Frw'millions Fr#'millions Frw'millions Frw'millioris: Frw'millions. Frw'miilions
92,630 . - - - 92,630
- 24,662 33,836 87,950 - 146,448

- . 13,633 308,043 - 321,676

. : 38,106 - - 38,106

- . 15,536 77.874 - 93,410

- - 97,843 - - 97,843

- - 15 - - 15

- - - 58352 . 58352

. . - - 9.468: 9468

- - - 3,131 3,131

- 3,936 - - - 3,936

) (4.675) {4.675)

92,630 28,597 198,969 532,219 7.924. 860,340
- - - : 2,551 2,551

- - - - 3,503 3,503

- - - - 6,054 6,054
92,630 28,597 198,969 532,219 1,870 854,286
92,630 28,597 198,969 532,219 - 92,630

165
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk continued

Pénsion scheme

Average rate Matured <3'months. - 3-12 months: >1 year Za._.-qﬂuﬁn_...nmﬂ Total
. . caring .

. . Fry'millions Frw'millions  Frw'milliens Frw'millions:  Frw'millions Frw'milliens
30 JUNE 2023%

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances 5% 68,497 - - - - 68,497
Deposits with financial institutions 10% - 39,400 16.687 61,022 - 117,169
Treasury bonds 12% 21,291 26195 267,917 - 315,404
“Freasury bills’ 8% - - 9,568: - - 9,568
Corporate bonds 12% - - 13,003 45,148 - mm“u_...m.w.
Commercial papers 11% - - 57.938 - - 57,938
Mortgage loans 12% - - 32 - - 32
Loans and advances to third parties 0% - - - 3.825 3.825
Dividend receivabile: 0% - - . - 12356 12,356
Advarices to contractors. 0% - - - - 3370 M_..ch
Other financial assets 0% - 6,903 - - - 6;903
Due from/(Duc 10) other schemes 0% i i E ) (6,294) {6,294)
Total financial assets 68,497 67,594 123,423 377,913 9,431 646,358
Retentions on .ooaw.qcn:o: confracts 0% - - - - 2452 2,452
Other payables 0% - - - - 2,080 "2,080
Total financial liabilities - . - - 4,532 4,532
Intefest rate exposare.as at 30 June 2023 68,497 67,594 123,423 377,913 R 68,497
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Interest raie risk continued

Medical Scheme

Gross.

2024

‘Financial Asséts

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with: financial institutions
Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

-Corporate honds-

Loans arid advances to third parties
>9_.m.:n_~m to contractors.

Dividend receivable

Other financial assets

Due from other schemes

Total Assets

Retentions on construction coniracts
Benéfits payable.

Othier payables

‘Total financial liabilities

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30.June
2024

Average rate

5%

10%.

12%
8%
13%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

0%
0%
0%

Matored <3 months 3-12 months >1 year 29:-”».2..,»&. Total
: : earing

Frv'millions Frw'millions  Frw'miflions Frw'millions Friv'millions Frw'millions

53,984 - - . - 53,984

- 44,571 78,112 60,211 - 182,894

- - 1,057 168313 - 169,370

- 4,830 42,498 - 47,328

- - - 4,346 - 4,346

- - 23,021 23,021

- - - 363 363

- - - 484 484

. - - 4,940 4,940

53,984 49,400 121,667 232,870 28,809 486,730

77 77

15:526 15,526

2,883 2,883

- - - - 17,986 17,986

53,984 49,400 121,667 232,870 - 457,921
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk continued

Medical Scheme

Average rate Matured <3 months 3-12 months > 1 year Zo_#”““.mhﬁmm. Total
Assets Fro'millions: Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions m,...s.._.::._mo._m nﬂs..am__muuw.
2023
Cash and bank balances 5% 43,195 - - - - 43,195
Deposits with financial insfitutions 10% - 76,499 2790 48,467 - 134.756
Treasury bonds 12% - - - 129,340 - 129;340
Treasury bills 8% - - 32,434 - - 32,434
Equity investments 8% - - 765 14,905 - 15,671
Loans and:advances to third partics 0% - - 26,111 26,111
Dividend receivable 0% - - 30 .30
Advances to contractors 0% - - 1,067 1.067
Other financial assets 0% - 247 247
Due from other schemes 8% - - 6,553 6,553
Total Assets 43,195 76,499 42,989 192,712 34,007 382,403
Retentions on construction contracts 0% - - - - 69 69
Benefits payable 0% - - - - 14334 14,334
Other payables - 0% - - - - 847 847
Total finaneial lidbilities - - - - 15,250 15,250
Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June 43,195 76,499 42,989 192,712 ) 355,396

2023
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Interest rate risk continued

CRBHI scheme

Gross

2024

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Advances to contractors
Other financial assets

Total finzncial assets

Financial liabilities

Amounts retained on-construction contracts
Benefits payable

Due fo other schemes.

Other payables

Total financial liabilities

Exposure.to interest rate risk as at 30 June
2024

Averagerate

5%
0%
0%

0%
0%
0%
0%

Non-Interest

Matured <Y months  3-12 months > 1 year . Total
: : bearing
Frw'millions Frw'milions  Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'aiilions  Frw'millions
33,829 - - - d 33.829
- - - - 17,247 17,247
33,829 - d - 17,247 51,076
- - - - 23,277 23,277
) ) - ) 114 114
o - - - 14,199 14,199
- - - - 37,5901 37,591
33,829 . - - 33,829
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Triterest rate risk continued

Gross

2023

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Advances to contractors
Other.financial assets

Total fiancial assets.

Financial Labilities

-Amounts retained on construction contracts
Benefits payable

Due to other schemes

Other payables

Total financial Hlabilities

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June
2023

e

‘Aversge rate

5%

0%,

0%

0%
0%
0%
0%

Noa-Interest

Matared =3 months 3-12 months > 1 year bearing Total
Frw'millions:  Frw'millions  Frw'millions. Frw'miflions  Frw'millions  Frw’millions _
i
9200 - - - - 9,200 :
- 19,711 - - - 19,711
. - . - 14,950 14,950 :
9,201 19,731 . - 14,950 143,861
- - - - 22,646 22,646
- - - - PAi 27
- - 13,375 13,375
- . - - 36,048 36,048
9,200 19,711 - - - 28,912
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( maka..aam&
Interest vate visk continued

Maternity Leave scheme

><n...m.m.m rate

Gross

2024

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances 5%
Deposits with financial instititions 10%
Treasury bills 8%
Tréasury bond 12%
-Other financial assets 0%

“Total financial assets:

Financial liabilities

Retention onh-construction contracts . 0%
Benefits payable 0%
‘Due from/ {Duk to} other Schemes- 0%
Other payables 0%

Total-financial _mw_um..::nm

'Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 Junc
2024

e

Mitured <3 ronths  3-12 inonths > 1yegy TOMerest Total
earing
Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'miliions
12,392 - - - - 12,392
. 4939 9,669 1,978 - 16,586
] . 8,221 - - 8221
- - 391t 29,190 - 33,101
- - . . 31 31
12,392 4,939 21,801 31,168 3 70,331
. . - - I 1
. . . - 456 456
- . . . 152 152
. n - - 433 435
- - . . 1,044 1,044
12,392 4,939 21,801 31,168 - 70,300
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Inierest rate risk continued

Maternity Leave scheme

Gross

2023
‘Financial assets:

‘Cash-and _u..mb_.n balances

Deposits with financial institutions
Treasury bills

Advances to contractors

Qther .m:m:ﬂ&. assets

Tofal financial assets

Finaneial liabilities

Retention on construction contracts.
Benefits payable

Due from/Due to} other schemes
Other payables

Total financial liabilities

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June

2023

Average rate

5%
10%:
%
12%
0%
0%

0%
0%
0%
0%

Non-Interest.

Matured <3 months  .3-12 menths >1 year bearing Total
Fra'millions Frw'millions. Frw'millions Frw'millions m.._.i_sm__mo.-_.m Frw'millions.
5,158 : - - - 5,158

- 10,588 - 1,806 - 12,394

“ - 2,356 - - 2,356

- - 11,876 20.481 - 32,357

- - - - 18 18

5,158 10,588 14,232, 22,287 18 52,283

. - - - 291 20(

- - - - 232 232

- - - - 219 219

. - - - 742 742
‘5,158 10,588 14,232 22,287 - 52,265
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Interest rate risk continued
Ejo.Heza

Gross ><n._.m..mm rate
2024

Financial asséts.

Cash and bank balances 5%

10%
12%
12%

Deposits with financial institutions
Treasury bonds
Corporate Bonds

Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Other payables 0%

Total financial Habilities

Exposure to .m.:nz.h rate risk as at 30 June
2024

—

—

e

Non-Interest

P

‘Matured <3 menths 3-12 months > 1 year Beari Tatal
earing
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Erw'millions

1701 - -~ - - 1 q..uc._
- 545 5,790 - 6,334
- - 776 51.453 52,229

135 1,401 1,536

1,701 543 6,700 52,854 - 61,800
- - - - 560 560
- - - - 560 560

1,701 545 6,566 52,854 - 60,264
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ?.nzwma.zm&
Interest rate risk continued

Ejo Heza

. Average rate
Gross : e

2023

Financial assets

‘Cash and bank Balances 5%
Degosits with finagncial institutions 10%
Treasury bonds 12%

Total financial assets,

Financial liabilities

P8

Other payables- Y

Total financial liabilitics

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June
2023

Non-Interest

‘Matured <3 months 3-12 months >1 year bearing Total
Frw'millions  Frw!'millions Frw!miltions  Frw'millions Fro'millions  Frw'millions
1,515 - - - - I,515
- - 3.941 - - 3,941
- - 2,746, 38,841 - 41,587
1,515 - 6,687 38,841 - 47,043
130 130
- - - - 136 130
1,515 . 6,687 38,841 - 47,043,
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 38 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

b)  Liquidity risk.
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Board will encounter difficulty in meeting -obligations on its financial liabilities. It includes both the risk of being unable to
fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates and the risk of being unable fo liquidate an asset at'a reasonable price and in an appropriate time frame.

Management of liguidity risk

The Board has dccess to a-diverse funding base. Funds-are raised mainly from members’ contributions and reserves. The Board continually assesses liquidity

risk by identifying arid monitoring changes.in funding required in meeting business goals: and targets sét'in terms of the overall Board strategy, Try addition,

the Board has a Zm:mmmz._m:ﬁ Investment Committee that méets on d regular basis to' monitor liquidity risk, review and approve Heuidity policies and
procedures.

Exposure to liguidity risk

The table below analyses financial assets and financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings: based on the remaining ‘period at 30 June 2024 to the

contractudal maturity date. Al balances are in Frw,
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NOTES T0Q THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

b) Liquidity risk continued
Liquidity position

30 June2024

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances:
Deposits with commercial hanks
Tredsury bonds

Treasury bills.

Corporate Bonds

Commercidl papers

Mortgage _o.m.Em.

Loan and advances to third parties
Advances to confractors
Dividend receivahle

Other assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Amounts retained on construction contracts
Other payables

.Benefits piyable

Financial liabilities

Liguidity surplus asat-30 June 2024

Matured <3 months '3-12 months 1-5years > 5 years Total
Frw'millions Frw!millions: ij..im.__.m.o__m m,.;....qa__.mo:m. Frw'miltions. m.wi.u.Ew.mcu.m.
194,536 - - - - 194,536
- 74,716 127 406 112,052 38,088 352,262
- . 19,377 175,607 381,392 576,376
- 4,830 88,826 - 93,655
- - 15,536 58,915 24,848 99,298
- - 97.843 - - 97.843
- . 15 - - 15
. . - 81373 - 81373
- - 3,131 - - 3,13
- 9.831 - S = 9,831
. 3,962 17,762 - - 21,724
194,536 93;339. 369,894 427,946 444,328 1,530,044
- - 14 2,629 - 2,644
- 39259 - - - 39,259
. 21,035 - - - 21,035
- 60,204 14 2,629 - 62,938
194,536 33,045, 369,850 425317 444,328 1,467,106
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANGIAL STATEMENTS.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (contiried)

b)  Liguidity risk continued
Liquidity position

30 June 2023

Cash and bank balances
Deposits with commercial banks
Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Corporate Bonds

Commercial papers

Mortgage loans

Loan and advances to third parties
Advances to contractors
Dividend reccivable

Other assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

...}Bocam retained on construction contracts
Other ﬁm%mv_mm

Benefits payable

Financial Eabilities

Liquidity surplus as-at 30 June 2023

Matured <3 mouths 3+12 months 1-8years > 3years Total
Frw'millions Frw'millions "Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'm .m_mca.m ﬂﬂi.im:m:um.
127,565 - . - 127,565

. 126,488 36,318 80,379 30,916 268,100

- 21,291 40,817 176,027 280,551 518,686

- 19,711 44,358 - - 64,070

- . 13,769 60,060 - 73,829

- - 57,938 - . 57,938

- - 32 - - 32

- . - 29.936 - 29,936

- - 3,400 - - 3,400

- 13.423 - . - 13,423

. 6,903 15.235 - - 22,138
127,565 187,815 205,867 346,401 311,467 1,179,115

. - - 2,526 - 2.526

- 37271 - - - 37271

16,860 - - - 16,860

- 54,131 - 2,526 - 56,657

127,565 133,684 205,867 343,875 311,467 1,122,458
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

b) Lignidity risk continued
Liquidity position continned

Pension scheme
At 30 June 2024

Finaneial assets

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with commercial banks
Treasury bonds.

Treasury, bills.

Corporate Bonds

Commereial papers

Mortgage loans

Loan and mm.ﬁanom to third parties
Advances to coritractors
Dividend receivabile

Other assets

Due from/ADue'to} other schemes
‘Totalfinanicial assets

Finascial liabilities
Amounts retained on construction contracts
Othier payables

Finaricial liabilities

Liquidity surphus as at 30 June 2024

Matured <3 months '3-12 months 1-5 years =5 years Total
Frw'mitlions F _.s__im._mcaw Few'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions

92,630 . - - - 92,630
- 24,663 33,836 67,676 20,275 146,448
- - 13,633 64,824 243,219: 321676
- - 38,106 - - 38,106
- . 15,536 54,569 '23,306. 93,410
- - 97,343 - . 97,843
- - 15 - - 15
- - - 58,352 - 58,352
- - 3,131 - . 3131
- 9468 - - 0,468
- 3,962 - - - 3,962
- (4,675) - - (4.673)

92,630 38,092 197,424 245,420 286,799 860,366
- - - 2,551 - 2,551
- 3,456 - - - 3,456
- 3,456 - 2,551 - 5,008

92,630 34,609 157,424 242,869 286,799 $54,358
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Liquidity position continued
Pension scheme-
At 30 June 2023

‘Finanicial asséts

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with commercial banks.
Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Corporate Bonds

Conimercial papers.

Mortgage loans

Loan and -advances to third parties
Advances to tontractors
Dividend receivable

Other assets

Dug from/(Due to) other.schemes

Total financial assegts

Financial liabilities:

Amounts retained ol construction contracts.

{Other payables
Financial liabilities

Liquidity surplus as at 30 Jane 2023

Matared <3 months. 3-12 months. 1-5 years > 5 years Total”
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
68,497 - - - . 68.497

: 39,400 16,687 41,533 19,489 117,169

. 21,291 26,195 89,578 178,339 315,404

- 9,568 - - 9,568

- - 13,003 45,148 - 58,152

- - 57938 - 57,938

- - 32 - 32

- - - 3.825 3,825

- - 3.370 - . 3370

- 12,356 - - - 12,356

- 6,903 - - - 6,903

- . (6,294) - - (6,294)

68,497 79,950 126,793 180,085 197,828 646,858

- - - 2452 - 2,452

: 2,080 . . 2,080

- 2,080 - 2,452 . 4,532

68,497 77,870 126,793 177,632 197,828 642,325

179
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Liquidity position continued
Medical schenie
At 30 June 2024

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with commercial banks’
Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Corporate Bonds

Loan and advances to thitd parties
Advances to contractors
Dividend receivable

‘Other assets

Due from/(Due 10} other schemes

"Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

».?.EQ.EG ‘retained on construction contracts
Benefifs payable

Other payables

Total financial liabilities

Liquidity surplus as at 30 Juie 2024

Matured <3 months 3.12 moriths 1-5 years >§ years Total
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions TFrw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
53,984 - - - - 53,984
- 44,571 78,112 42398 17.814 182,894
- - 1.057 92741 75.572 168,370
- 4,839 42,498 - 47,328
g - - 4346, - 4,346
- - - 23.021 23,021
- 363 - - . 363
. : 484 - - 484
: ; 4,940 - - 4,540
53,984 49,763 127,091 162,506 93,385 486,730
- - - T7 - 77
- 15,526 - ) 15,526
- 2,383 } i i 2,383
- 17,917 - 77 - 17,986
53,984 31,847 127,093 162,429 93,385 468,745
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continvied)

b) Liquidity risk continued
Medical schenie

At 30 June 2023

Financial assets

n.wm: and hank balances.

Deposits with comimercial banks
Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Corporate Bonds

Loan and advances to third parties
>n_<m=nom.5. contractors

Dividend receivable

Othcr assets

Due from/(Due-to} other schemes.

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Amounts. retained on construction contracts
Benefits payable

Othier payables

H,nqu_ mununmu_.sz_#mum

Liquidity surplusas at 30 June 2023.

Matured <3 months. 312 months i ..m”w_.»u TS >§years Total

Frw'millions Frw'millions. Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions

43,195 - - - - 43,195

- 76.49% 9,790 37040 11.427 134,756

- - - 27,128 102,211 129,340

- - 32,434 - - 32,434

- - 765 14,905 - 15,671

- - - 26,111 - 26,111

- B uo . _ 30

- 1,067 - - - 1.067

- - 247 - - 247

- - 6,533 - - 6,553

43,195 77,566 43,267 105,184 113,639 389,403

- - - 69 - 69

- 14,334 - - - 14,334

- 847 - - - 847

15,181 - 69 - 15,250

43,195 62,385 43,267 105,L18 113,639 374,153
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

b) Liquidity risk continned

CBHI Scheme
At 30 Juné 2024

Financial assets
Cash and bank balances
Other asscts,

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Benefits payable

Dug to otherschemes
Other payables

Financial liabilities

Liquidity surplus/(gap) as at 30 June 2024;

Matured <3 months -3.12 months 1-5 years > & years Total
.._#.i._az_mcn.m m;,_a._s:.c.nm m,”;_..-:m:.m.e.._m Frw'millions .m..-.s...q....m__.mo:.m Frw'millions
33,829 - - - - 33,829
- 17,247 - - 17247
33,829 - 17,247 - < 51,076
- 23,277 . . - 23277
. . 114 - . 128
: 14,199 14 - - 14,199
. 37477 128 - - 37,605
33,829 37477 17,375 - - 13,471
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

b} Liguidity risk continued
CBHI Scheme
At 30 June 2023

Financial assets
Cash and bank balances
Treasury bill

Other assets

Tatal financial assets

Financial liabilities.
Beénefits payable

Due to-other schemes
Other payables

Financial liabilities

Liquidity surpus/(gap) as at 30 June
2023

Matured <3 months. 3-12.months 1-5.years. > 5 years Tatal

Frw'millions Frw'millions: Frw'millions Frw'millions. Frw'millions Frw'millions
9,200 - - - - 9,200

- 19,711 - - - 19,701

. - 14,950 - - 14,950

9,200 19,711 14,950 - . 43,361

- 22646 - N - 22,646

. 27 - - 27

- 13,375 - - - 13,375

- 36,021 27 i - 36,048

9,200 55,732 14,976 - - 7,814
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contiriued)

b) Liquidity risk continued

‘Maternity scheme
At30 June 2024

Finaniial assets

‘Cash and bank balances

Treasury bills

“Treasury bonds

‘Deposits with financial institutions
Other-asséts

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Retention on-construction contracts
-Benefits payable

Ehie to other schemes

‘Other payables

Financial liabilities

Liquidity surplus as at 30 June 2024

Matured <3 mionths 312 mon qw_m 1-5 years > § years ‘Total
Fiw'millions Frw'millions Frw'niillions Eriwv'millions Frw'millions Frw'niillions
12,393 - - - - 12,392
- - 8.221 - - 8,221
- - 3,911 2.049 27,141 33,101
- 4,939 9,669 1,978 . 16,586
- - 31 - - 31
12,392 4,939 21,832 4027 27,141 70331
- - - 1 - 1
- 456 - - - ‘436
- - 152 - - 152
- 435 - - - 435
- 891 152 1 N 1,844
12,392 4,048, 21,680 4,026 2141 69,287
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

b) Liquidity risk continued
Maternity scheme
At 30 June 2023

-Financfal assets.

Cash and bank balances

Treasury bills

‘Trezsury bonds

Deposits with financial institutions
Other assits

Total financial assets

TFinancial liabilities.
Retention.on construction
Benefits payable

Due to other schemes
Other vmwmz.nm

Financial liabilities

Liguidity surplus as at.30 June.2023

Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
Frw'millions ‘Frw'miiligns Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'niillions. Frw'millions
5,158 . - - - 5,158

- . 2356 - 2,356

- . 11.876 20.481 . 32,357

- 10,588 - 1,806 - 12,394

- - 18 - - 18

5,158 10,588 14,250 22287 - 52,283

- 291 - . 291

- - 232 - - 232

. 219 - - 219

. 510 232 - 742

5,158 10,078 14,018 22,286 . 51,541
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

b) Liquidity risk continued
Ejo Heza
At 30 June 2024

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with financial institutions.
Treasury bonds

“Total finanicial assets

Financial liabilities.

Other payables

Financial liabitities

Liquidity surpliis as at 30 June 2024

At 30 June 2023

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with financial institutions:
Treasury bonds

Tatal finaneial assets

Finarcial labilities.

Deferred income

Other payables

Financial Eabilities
Liquidity sarples as at 30 June 2023

Matured <3 months 3-12 ..-...E...n.rm 1-5 years > .m.wnn:.m Total

Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions

1,701 1,701

- 545, 5,790 - - 6,334

- . 776 15993, 35461 52229

. . . . 1,542 1,542

1,701 S5 6,566 15,933 35,461 60,264

560 560

= 566 - h = 360

1,701 (16) 6,566 15,993 35461 59,704

gm:_..da <3 moinths 3-12 monthis 1-5 years > 5 yedfs Tatal

Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions Erw'millicns Frw'millions Frw'millions

1,515 - - - - 1,515

- - 3,941 - - 3.541

- - 2,746, 38,841 - 41,587

1,515 - 6,687 38,841 - 47,043

- - 1,305 - - 1,305

- 130 - - - 130

- 130 1,308 - - 1,435

1,515 (130 5,382 38,841 - 45,608
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

b)  Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Board if‘a tustomer or counterparty to a financial instrumént fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and.arises principally from the Board’s loans and advances, trade and othier
receivables, deposits with commercial banks and ifvestments in government and corporate bonds. For risk
management reporting purposes, the Board considers all -elemerits of credit risk exposure such as individual
obligator default risk, country and sector risk.

‘For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on tradmg gecurities is managed mdependently, but reported as
-a:component of market risk exposure.

Management of credit risk

The Board of Directots: has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to its Management
Investment Committee. The Investments Departmeni is responsible for oversight ‘of*the Board’s credit risk;
-including:

- Formulatlng credit policies, covering collateral requiréments and credit assessnients, risk grading and
reporting. Documentary, legal procedures-and compliance with regulatory and ‘statitory requirements is
done in consiltation with the Board’s Legal and Comgiliance Department.

*  Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities. Authorisation
limits are allocated to the Management Investment Committee. Larger facilities. require approval by the
Bosrd of Directors 4s appropriate. '

= Reviewing compiiance of investment mix with agreed exposure limits, including those for selected
industries, country risk and product types. The Board’s Investment Committee -is responsrbie for
monitoring.the credit quality of investments.and ensuring that appropriate corrective action is taken and
prov:dl_n_g advice, guidance and specialist sk_:_lls to-business units to promote best practice throughout the
Board in the management of credit risk.

The Investment department is requited fo implemerit the Board's credit policies and procédures, with-credit
approval authorities delegated from the Board’s Board-of Directors. The Investment department is responsible for
the quality and performance of the Board’s investment portfolio.and for monitoring and controlling all credit risks
i the Board’s portfolio, including those subject to Board approval. Regular audits of the Investment department
and the Board’s credit processes are undertaken by the Internal Audit department.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
. Exposure fo-credit -risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum credit exposure as at the staternent of financial position date was:
Pension Scheme Medical:Scheme CBHI Schieme Maternity Schemée Ejo Heza Total
2024 2023 2014 2023 2014 2023 2034 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millious:  Frw'millions Frw'millions Fro'millions Frw'millions  Fre"miflfioss Fre'millions Frw'millivns  Frw'nillions  Frw'milfions

Bankbalances ‘92,102 68,497 33,677 43,195 33,626 9,200 12,318 5,158 1,691 1,515 193.414- 127,565
Treasury bonds: 320314 315,403 168,652 129,339 - - 32,961 32,357 52,008 41,587 573935 518685
Treasiry bifls “37,945 9,568 47127 32,434 - 19,711 8,186 2,356 - - 93,259 64,070
Loans and advasices 1o 58,105 3.825 Vo¢ 261N - - - - - ‘ 81,028 29.936
third parties .. R ? i 81,028, -29,936
Dieposits due from banks 145613 117,007 181,851 134,757 : - 16,492 12,395 6,294, 3,941 350251 268,100
Dividends andother 9.412 17356 361 1,067 - - - - . . 9,772 13,423
income receivable '
Comméreial papers: 96,959 57.938 - - - - - - - - 96,959 57,938
Mortgage loans 15 32 - - - . . _ ) i is 1
Other assets 3938 6910 481 254 17,143 14955 31 19 16 - 21,610 22,137
Due from/Dug to) pther (4675 (6.29%) 4940 6,553 (114) @ (152) @232) - - . -
 Total financial assets 759,728 585240 480,014 373,710 50,655 43,840 69,336 52,053 60,009 47,043 1,420,242 1,101,885
188
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et

NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirined)

&y Capital risk manageraent

R 7.::\{.-..'1

The primary source of capital used by the Board is member contributions and income from investments, For
-fegulatory purposes, the Medical division’s capital includes both Capital and retdined eamings. By the nature
— ofits establishinént, the medical division does not pay dividends. Its-equity is managed-to safeguard its ability
to pay members medical benefits. Other objectives when managing its capital are:

T

“to comply with the capital requirements-as set out'in the Insurance 'chuiations;

*  tocomply with regulatory sclvency requiremients as.set cut in the Insurance Regulations; and

" to safeguard the medical 5c1-1_e:_né?s ability to continue in operational continuity, so that it can-continue
to-pay benefits to its members.

..«n:n.d' -.»:j

In 2008, Law No. 52/2008 governing the orgamzatmn of insurance business in Rwanda (“the Insurance
Law”) was promuigated. The Insurance Law requires entities providing short term insurance to hold a
minimum level of paid up capital of Frw 1 billion. It also sets regulatory solvency thresholds for insurance
; ; companies, based on préscribed admissibility ‘criteria for -assets and liabilities. The regulatory sotvency
reguirements, were-effective in. 2011,

e

On 7 January 2019, Regulation N° 2310;’2018 00014[614] OF27/12/2018 Of The National Bank of
Rwanda on Llcensmg Conditions for insurers And reinsurers was gazetted. Under article. § of the
regulation, the miriimum paid -up capital for general insurance businéss was set at a minimum of Frw 3
~ ‘billion.

The pensmn fund considers its reserves COlTlpl']Slng of statutory reserves and accumulated members funds

as its ‘equity’. The primary ob_lectwe in managing those reserves fs 1o ensure that adequate solvency is
: maintained for purposes of firfure benefit payments to members. The level of statutory teserves is
3 legislated as set out under Note 48. Other than for those reserves, the fund is not required to meét any other
extemnal capital requitements. The. fund carries out periodical actuarial assessments to assess its actuarial
salvency.
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